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Bank Alfalah Limited '

Chairman's Message

I am pleased to see that Bank Alfalah has delivered a solid financial peformance along with a
satisfactory shareholders' returns despite navigating through a ctraltenling year. The Board ofDirect.rs is pleased with the Bank's progress and confident its iouno foundaiion wi support itthrough
changing tides,

I am very proud of the fact that our Bank was recognized as the ,Best customer Franchise,for the
third consecutive year along with the'Best Bank for s;alllMedium Businessesiit the pakistan aanrcnj
Awards jointly organised by the Institute of Bankers, A. F. Ferguson & Company and Dawn Medii
Group in 2018. These awards are a testimony to our custome;-centric focus, and outreach which
drives us to constantly engage with them and deliver services that surpass expectauons,

The Bank is optimistic about the economic prospects in 2019. we wi| continue to pray our rore in
Pakistant banking system, The new gor/ernment inherjted a platform with many challenges in the
shape of twin deficirs, losses in public se;:tor Entities (psE), infrastructure challenges and-declining
reserves. However, the new Government seems committed towards addressing thl macroeconomii
challenges, generating higher groMh and employment oppoftunities. pakistan is poised to recover
with agriculture and industriar production gaining momentum. Looking ahead, boosi to exports in the
backdrop.of global €conomic recovery and improvement in domestiainvestment climate, backed by
various initiatives ofthe Government, supports favourabre groMh ouuook. It is the time fo; the private
sector of Pakistan to prove its credentials as an .engine of growth,by committing capital in groMh
sectors to generate wealth, create jobs and sustain the economy.

Technology is reshaping the world faster than ever, The shifting customer preferences for digital
products which has been a success story in the shape of various e-commerce setups has becom6 an
in-spiration for the banks to revamp.ttre traditionar way of banking. The customert demanding ease
of doing transactions, is itself inducing a change in customer behaviour and makino customers ;sk for
more convenience from their bank. Many purely digital banks have been setup ani performing well in
different market, . Further, the rapid groMh of the more nimble Fintech players are forcing th; banksto enter into partnership with them to improve service derivery and cu;tomer service. A Boston
Consulting report says that smartphone users will equal bank accounts by 2020. This explains why
qgl.q 

:nd. lnte-ch.-companies are falling over one another to attract customers by sprucing up thei;
digital banking facilities. It is the bank's core strateqy to lead the digital wave and iimplify binring for
our customers by offering products, enabling secure payments through effective use of technology,

The Bank has a robust balance sheet with strong capital levels, sustainable earnings and inherent
value across its businesses, The Bank has always demonstiated its ability to spot emerging
opportunities and execute strategies to capture them. I am optimistic about the future, being confiden-tin our ability_ to turn €harenges to opportunities. The 

'Bank 
is well-positioned to reverage a

eventualities for profitable groMh and value creation. It will continue iL commitment to bJing a
partner in Pakistan's growth and develdpment,
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Bank Alfalah Limited

Chairman,s Message

A key strength of the Bank is its depth of leadership talent, and the contribution and commitment of
the employees. The management team under the leadership of the president is executing a focused
strategy, leveraging existing strengths, and building new capabilitjes to stay ahead in the evolving
environment. I deeply value and appreciate the commitment, dedication and hard work of the Bank,s
employees. It is their passion to do things passionately and their determination to act with integrity,
which has made it possible for the Bank to live up to its values and deliver on the promise made to
our stakeholders.

In line with our strategy of delivering superior results in a compliant manner while taking care of our
People and our Customers, 2019 has been declared as the'Year of Happiness at Eank Alfalah".
We realjze that our workplace influences a large part of our lives, and as such we want to commit to
making working at Bank Alfalah a truly memorable experience. We believe that by investing in and
enriching the employee experience positively impacts both our productivity and our customer
experience. This is the journey which we believe will help us stand out and become an employer of
choice.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank all our externaknd internal stakeholdeB especially
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and Stat'iBank oPPakistan for supporting us through
one of our most challenging periods last W, remain focused in our priorities and will continue to
build a trusted, compliant and financially
ways to secure the financial future of our

BanB,rhich will remain at the forefront to find new
meej in this fast changing world of today

HH SHEIKH NAHAYAN
Abu Dhabi
21* February 2019

L NAHAY



Directors' Repoit to the Shareholders

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I am pleased to present the Directors, Report of the Bank along with
the audited flnancial statements and Auditors' repod for the year ended December 31, 2018.

Economic Review

The year 2018 saw some of the structural constraints of Pakistan economy come to the fore, which were
magnifled by the political noise associated with an electjon year. While the country saw a major @sitive of
demoqatic continuity, economic challenges continued to grab the headllnes.

Key data points announced during the year indicated that the country continued to observe high groMh in
FY18. Real GDP recorded a growth of 5.8ol0, highest in a decade, supported by manufacturing and service
secto6 which grew by 6.84010 and 6.43%, respectively. This translated into averaqe GDP g.oMh of the last
five years i.e. FY13 to FY18 clocking in at 4.80/0, compared to 2.8olo in FY08-13. GroMh numbers for FY18
have subsequently been revised to 5.2olo.

lhis growth momentum kept credit demand at elevated levels and credit to private sector incrcased by
16010 YoY in FY18. Despite a likely slowdown in GDP growth during FY19, private sector credit has not
shown signs of abating during lun-Dec 2018, where provisional numbers reflect a 20olo YoY growth.

The high groMh phase seen in the economy during the last few years, has on the other hand resulted in
stress€s with the e-{temal account imbalan@ leadingthe way. Strong importgrowth to meet rising domestic
consumption saw Pakisbn! import bill grow at a CAGR of 10o/o over the last five years. In comparison,
exports from Pakistan remained stagnant in the last few years due to multitude of factors, which resulted
in compressing exports to only 9.40lo of the GDP.

Rising domestic demand as well as soaring commodity prices further dented the externai position in FY18,

stretching countryt trade deficit to US$37,5bn. Capital inflows and worker remittances were insufflcient to
bridge the trade deficit, which resulted in depletion of Pakistan foreign exchange reserves, from us$20.2bn
at start of 2018 to US$13.8bn by December 2018,

The impact of delepleuon of foreign exchange reseryes was setn in monetary and currency ma et
adjustments during the year, The cumulative interest rate hike during CY18 stood at 425 bps while fle
currenc./ depreciated by 26010 to PKR139.5/USD by year end. In addition, policy initiatives were also taken

to en@urage exports and discourage imports. The impact of the above was also seen in inflation, which,

as measured by the Consumer Prjce Index (CPI) increased to 6.2010 for December 2018, compared to 4 60/0

for December 2017. Notable increase was seen in core inflation which increased from 5.5% to 8.40lo.

Though inflationary pressures were by and large considered manageable, the depleting Foreign Exchange

reserves amid Pakistan! upcoming debt repayments, has put Pakistan in a difficult situabon. While

st ucturalreforms to address the deficiencies will require time, the new govemment was abletoavert near-

term pressures by bridging the shortfall via inflows frorn friendly counhies, namely Saudi Arabia and IJAE/

while China also extended support in multiple forms.

In addition to cash deposits of US$3bn each by Saudi Arabia and UAE, the two lliddle Eastern countries

are also considenng to supplyoilworth US$3bn each to Pakistan on a defened payment basis, which should
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provide meaningful respite to Pakistan's external accounts beginning CY19. Whlle the immediate pressures

were averted due to timely support from f.iendly countries, the next phase reqlires much-needed external
account reforms.

Anoher area that requires immediate attention is the bourgeoning fiscnl deficit that has grown to 6.60/0 of
GDP in FY18 (highest since FY14) from 5.8yo in the previous year. The strain of highercurrent expenditures
has been magnified by a slowdown in non-tax revenues, which can be baced to the absence of Coalition
Support Fund (CSF) and lower markup/dividend income from PSES. Tax revenues showed an increase of
130/0 YoY but were lower than target, tu per provisional data for 1Q FY19, the deficit has not slbwed down
and is 1,4olo of GDP for the quarter. The incoming govemment has however announced a number of fiscal
measures via two Addendums to the Finance Bill.

Outlook:

Going forward, the key talKng point is likely to be the level of engagement b€tween Pakistan and the II4F.
Discussions with Il4F have been underway sincethe government assumed power but details have not been

made public. While there is consensus on the perceived economic stability that will come with an Il'4F
program, views differ on the conditiooalities vis'e-vis the government's economic Aoals and objectives.

Irrespective of the outcome of ongoing discussions with IMF/ the upcoming twelve months are likely to be
instrumental in shaping the medium term outlook for Pakistan's economy. with the election year behind

us, the government has gradually laid down key pillars of its macro€conomic framework with an emphasis

on rcindustrialization and export push.

Results of Some of the measures and adjustments will start reflecting more meaningfully in macro-economlc

data over the next few months. but the initial signs indicate that the steps are bearing nascent fruit. While

GDP growth is likely to clock in the 3.5-4.5olo range, policy decisions will be instrumental in depicting the
govemment's desired equilibrium between stability and economic growth.

BANXI G SECTOR REVIEW

h 2018, despite economic challenges and political noise of an election year, Pakistan's banking sector

continued exhibiting positive momentum on multiple fronts. Barring external factors impacting profitability,

the banking sector received positive traction with gradual increase in spreads following severai rounds of
monetary tightening and stable capital adequacy.

Domestic deposits growth remained on lower side, clocking in at 80/o YoY, the slowest deposit groMh seen

in the last d;cade. The latest available category wise data up to September 2018 however suggest that

this could partially be due to a conscious effort by banks to focus on mix of deposits, as bank solicited

lower cost transactional deposits and did not aggressively pursue higher-cost fixed deposits. CASA deposits

depicted an increase of 12% YoY by September 2018, taking mix to 77.20lo; 200bps higher YoY FurfEr
banking industry also faced multiple chalienges in deposit generation due to accountability drive, slowdown

in govimment payments and devaluation, where all of these resulted in liquidity erosion and depositors

staying away from the banking system

Gross advances of the sector witnessed another year of remarkable groMh in 2018, increasing by 21%

YoY, prompted by higher credit to private sector' This led to net Advance to Deposit Ratio (ADR) of the

seabi incr;asing lo s-6"2" in 2018, highest in last6 years and marked a shiftfrom investments to advances,
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capitalizing the rising capital demand in the ecooomy. Correspondingly, Investment to Deposits Ratio (lDR)
receded to 56.7010 as of end 2018 vs. 69.0010 at the same time last year.

tuset quality of the banking sector witnessed nascent signs of strain, owing to economic challenges
domesticnlly, while devaluation of the currency inflated the stock of overseas NPL in PKR terms.
Combination of the two saw the stock of outstanding NPL5 increase by PKR,l4bn in first nine months of
2018. The vibrant loan growth, however meant that the 9ro6s NPL rauo at 8.00/0 in September 2018 was
materially better than the reading of 9.2olo at the same time last year, f4ore importantly, banks ensured
that the coverage of increasd NPL stock inched up further to 860/0,

On the investments frcnt, government securities continued to remain the dominant component of the
investrnent pie, with a visible shortening of maturibes seen during the year. Expectation of monetary

tightening accompanied by gradual maturity of PIES shortened the duration of investments of the sector

and skewed the concentration towards Treasury Bills.

On the profitability front, risinq interest rates saw the se€tor record gradual increase in spreads. This helped

offset the impact of maturity of higher yielding PIBS on net interest income. On the non-interest income

front, ffE increased volatility in the forex market provided the banks an avenue of recording higher income

from dealinq in foreign curencies. while these emerged as positive contributoE, the impact of the same

on bottom line was countered by higher credit cost, as banks maintained the coverage ratios on the higher

NPL stock mentioned above. Other headwinds to sector profitability emerged from lower capital gains and

atso due to other extraordinary evenb impacting some industry players during the year.

On the regulatory front, few notable developments were introduction of 1) Deposit Protection Fund (DPF)

and 2) Domestic Systematically Important Banks (DSIB5). While under the first initiative, all banks were

mand;ted to deposit a certain percentage of their deposits into an Insurance / Protection Fund created by

the SBP, the second revolved around increased minimum Capitai Adequacy Requirements for banks

designated as DSIB.

Going forward, the industry outlook will depend on how the economic landscape shapes up in light of
policies of the new government. Path of interest rates might emerge as one of the key drivers, while

govemmenfs fiscal needs and desired maturity profile of bonowing will shape the mlor of bank's

investment books. in terms of the split between shorter tenor T-8ills and longer tenor PIBS AS existing

stock of PIBS mature and banks build fresh bond positions as and when the opportunity arises, Capital and

currency markets vibrdncy will likely be bigger determinants of ma*et related income for banks for most

part of ihe year, Furthermore, reinstatement of 4olo Super Tax with back dated impactand removal of the
'1olo 

p.a. reduction in the same announced earlier, would impad profitability for 2019..The banking sector

has been singled out by the Government by reinstating this lew and exempting other industries'

Government! focus toward; reindusbialization and export push cnnies positive undertones for bo$ Ioan

grow$ and traOe retated fee income but the high interest rate environment will keep banks vary of ass€t

6uality pressures, especially in liqht ofSBP looking to transition to a more consewative and forward looking

provisioning regime in the. near future,
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THE BA K,s PERFORMA]{CE

The Bank's performance for 2018 remained impressive as we closed the year delivering sound financial
results.

The highlights of the financial results for 2018 are as follows

Flnancial Positlon
Shareholders' Equity

Total Deposits

Total Assets

Advances - net
Investments - net

2018 20L7
(Restated)

Rupees in lYillions

75,647 65,800
702,895 U4,9a5

1,006,218 998,828

501,636 400,655

277,660 400,733

Finanaial Pelforrnance
Net Interest Income and Non lYarkup Income - continued operations

Non Markup Expenses - continued operations

Provisions and write offs (net)- continued operations

Profit before tax - c.ntinued operations
Profit after tax

Profit after tax - continued operations

Profit after tax - discontinuing operations

Basic earnings per share - Rupees

Diluted earninqs per share - Rupees

2018 20L7
(Restated)

Rupees in 14illions

41,791 38,052

24,36s 24,963
s88 (616)

16,A3a t3,ro5
10,625 8t367
10,150

475

8,166
201

5.99

5.98

4.74
4.72

The bank recorded an impressive gtc,ulr'lh of 2la/o in profit after tax despite a challenging operating

environment. The Bank's profit before taxation (from continued operations) for the year stands at Rs.

16.838 Billion as against R5. 13.705 Billion last year, showing imprcvement of 22 gvo. Proflt after tax (from

continued operations) is Rs. 10.150 Billion as against R5. 8.166 Billion last year, improving by 24.3vo. The

total profit after tax ofthe bank stands at Rs. 10.625 Billion against R5. 8.367 Billion, improving by 27.0Vo.

This tsanslates into an EPS of Rs. 5.99 per share (2017: Rs, 4.74 per share),

On the revenue front, net markup income and non markup income from continued operations show

combined gro.rth of 9.83o/o. The Bank was able to overcome tte pressure on net interest income (NU) due

to tt\e mairrities of hiqh yielding bonds through growth in overall average eaming assets and improved

spreads. Non-funded income stood at Rs. 10 2OO billion, an increas€ of 12.39V0 over the coresponding
period last year, led by skong growth in foreign exchange income, fee businesses as well as dividend

income.

Total non-mark up expenses (from contanued operations) were reported at Rs. 24.365 Brlhon as against Rs'

Za.gO+ gillion last year, declining by 2 4ol0. This rs after taking an rmpact of branch expansion and

investrnent ia ff infrasiructure, digital channels, depo6it protection premium along with inflationary

aajuit'nenB ana pfn aevaluation aathe latter part of the year. Excluding the one-offs in 2017 and 2018,

the operating expenses remained flat
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The Bank achieved robust growth in its retail and corporate businesses, across lending and deposit-takin9.
The Bank! gross advances portfolio increased impressively by Rs. 100.98f Billion, i.e. 25.20q0 year on
year. The bank strategy is to acquire high quality credit while maintalning an efficient risk weighted assets
(RWA) profile. The Bank has managed to adequately cover its non-performing advances of Rs 18.822

Billion. Our NPL ratio has improved to 3.6010 as compared to 4.20lo last year, and continues to remain one

of the lowest infection ratios in the industry. As at December 2018, the Bank's provision coverage stands

at 84,39ol0, These ratios incorporate the impact of subjedive provisioning taken by the bank based on
prudence.

We continue to carry a diversified deposit mix on the balance sheet, with improved concentratlon levels

This buildup in the core deposit levels positions the Bank ideally to maximize on the yield upside in its net

earnings as interest rates trend upwards. Ourfocus throughoirtthe year remained on improving our deposit
profile and managing spreads. Total Deposits were reported at Rs. 702.895 Billion as against Rs. f,44 985

Billion reported last year mainly led by groMh in curent accounts by 11.07yo, At the year end, our gross

advances to deposits ratio stands at 73.80/0, and remains an indicator where Bank maintains a lead in the

industry.

On the investments side, following the significlnt maturity of PIBS, the investment mix shifted towards

Treasury Bills. Investsnents (net) have been re@rted at Ps 277 660 Billion as against Rs 400 733 Eiliion

reported last year.

AsatDecember3l,2ols,theBankremainsadequatelycapitalizedasoutlinedinthesectiononCapital

Directors' Report ' BAFL

The bank's profit from discontiouing operation has increased from Rs, 201,064 million to 474.952 million
and includes reversal of provision amounting to Rs.443.898 million (USD 3.949 million), previously held

against amount blocked in the Bank's Nostro account following sett,ement of dispute, and release of funds
in favour of the Bank.

structure below,

SUBSIDIARIESCO PANIES!

Bank Alfalah posted consolidated profit after tax (PAT) of Rs. 10.991 billion for the year ended December

31, 2018 (20i7: Rs. 8.613 billion), Earnings per share (EPS) was measured at Rs 6 20 in comparison to

Rs. 4188 for the corresponding period last year.

The Bank has 97.91yo shareholding in Alfalah Securities (Private) Limited, which is engaged in the business

of stock brokerage, investment consultancy and fund placements During the year, CLSA lV Holdings

Limited and Bank Alfalah umited entered into a strategic partlership in Pakistan that will leverage Alfalah

Securitlesi martet teaCing position and CLSA! award-winning research and outstanding client base of global

institutional investors, According to the agreement, cLsA JV and other investors, subsequent to the year-

end have acquired shares in Alfalah Securities by way of right issue diluting the bank! holding to 62% of

tn" *.p""f, ft" A"* also has 40.220lo shareholding in Alfalah GHP Investment l4anagement Limited'

which i9 reg'istered as an Asset Management Company and Investment Advisor under the Non-Banking

Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules

Performance of Subsidiaries:

The Asset Under l4anagement (AUN4S) of Alfalah GHP lYanagement Limited increased from tu 25 59 billion

i" R;1, ;ild; ;;"rp 21v; YoY. 
'The in;u1, AU!1s oiopen end mutual funds meanwhile increased

i., ni sk uiffion to R5 ss2 oiltion i e. 1olo durrng the year' The company has earned gross revenue

"rnor"il"s 
i" iiazO ,illion as compared to Rs 539;rllon last year' AUNI5 in high fee earninq equity and
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equity related funds declined due to bearish stock market resulting in pressure on stcrck funds both from
redemption and revaluation losses, On the other hand due to high interest rates money market and fired
income funds became more attract ve. The profit after tax amounted to Rs 164 million as compared to Rs
165 million last year. The bottom line remained intact due to cost control on discretionary expenses and
prior year's tax benefit.

Alfalah Securitaes earned an operating revenue of PKR 130.801 million as compared to PKR 192.857 million
for the correspond ing period. The company posted before and after-tax loss of PKR 86.229 million and PKR

99.652 million respectively as compared to before and after-tax profit of PKR 31.043 million and PKR 19.536
million respedively for the corresponding period. The loss per share for the yea. stood at PKR 3.99 as
compared to profit per share of PKR 0.33 for the conesponding period. The main reason for decline in
revenue and earnings were persistent low market volumes at local bourses and negative Sentiment among
the investors throughout the year. The focus of the Company in the upcoming year will be on eamings
growth through captuflng market share, as investor sentinment .ecovers. The parbershipwiur CLSAshould
work well to achieve this target.

BONUS SHARES At{D DIVIDE D

The Directors have recommended final payment of Clsh dividend of Rs. 1,50 per share (15 o/o) for the year
ended December 31, 2018, subrect to approval of the shareholders in the upcoming annual general

meeting, bringing the total crsh dividend for the year to Rs. 2.50 pershare. The Board had earlier declared
and paid interim clsh dividend of Rs. 1.00 per share. The Board had also declared interim stock dividend
of 100/0 i.e. 10 shares for every 100 shares held.

ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

During 2017, the Board accorded its in-principle approval and authorised the management of the Bank to
explore the possibility to sell the Afghanistan Operations of the Eank to the potential buyer, subiect to
obtaining all regulatory approvals, compliance with appljcable laws and regulations in the matter.

In Q2 2018, ffle bank signed a Business Transfer Agreement with the potential buyer for the sale of the
Afghanistan operations and subsequently an application for approval of the transaction was made to the
DA Afghanistan Bank (DAB), the Central Bank in Afghanistan. The DAB has raised some queries on the
application whici the Bank and the potential buyers are in the process of responding

Resultantly, all assets and liabilities and income and expense for the Banks Afghanistan Operations are
presentd as a sepaEte line items on the balance sheet as Non-Current Assets and Liabilities Held for Sale

and profit after taxation from discontinuing operations resp€ctively, rather than as partof actual line items

under which they were being reported historically The details have been given in note 21 to the
unconsolidated financial statements.

CREDIT RATI G

The Bank has been assigned an Entity Rating of'AA+'(Double A Plus) for the long-term and'A1+'(A-One
Plus) for the short-term by PACRA, with Outlook assigned as'Stable'. The unsecured subordinated debt

(Term Finance Certificates) of the Bank has been awErded a credit rating of'AA'(Double A), with Outlook

assigned as 'Stable'.

Furthermore, JCR-VIS Credit Ratinq Company Limited (ICR-VIS) also assigned an entity rating ofiAA+'

fOouUfe a iLsl fot tf," long-term;nd 'A1+'(A-One Plus) for the short-term to the Bank, with Outlook

isiign"d u.,sdore,. ne unsaured lrer l capital(Term Finance certificate) of the bank has been awarded

a credit rating of'AAr (Double A Minus), with 'Sta ble' Outlook.
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Thc as5igneil rdlrnrs refiaci rnE Bnni(t diversified operations, healthy financiat risk profile, strong sponsors
and existing market presence. These ratings denote a very low expectation of credit risk, a strong capacity
for timely payment of financial com m itments in the long term and the highest capacity for timety repayment
in the short term, respectively.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Bank is in compliance with the significlnt requiremenb of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2017, A prescribed st'dtement by the management together with the Auditors,
Review Report thereon is annexed as part of the Annual Report.

Directors' Report - BAFL

The Directors are pleased to give tre follov,/ing statemenG rcquired under Chapter XUI - Reporting and
Disclosure of the aforementioned Regulahons:

1, The total number of directors are nine as per the followinq

i. Male:
ii. Female

Eight
One

2. The composition of the board is as follows:

Independent Directors
Other Non-executive Director
Erecutive Dircdors

Three

One

a) The flnancial statements, prepared by the management, present fairly the state of affairs of the

Bank the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity;

b) Proper books of accounts of the Bank have been maintained;

ci Appropriate accounting policies, as stated in the notes to the financial statements have be€n' 
consistently applied in preparation of flnancial statements and accounting estimates are based on

reasonable and prudent judgment;

ii.
ltL.

3. The Board from time-to-time establishes committees to discharge its responsibilities. For each
board committee, the Board adopts a formal Terms of Reference (ToRs) setting out the matters
relevant to the composition, roles, functions, responsibilities and administrahon. The following
committees have been constituted by the Board:

i. Board Audit Committee
ii. Board Strategy and Finance Committee
iii, Board Risk Management Committee
iv, Board Human Resource, Remuneration and Nomination Committe€
v, Board Information Technology Committee lnew committee formed in 2018]
vi. Board Compensation Commrttee

For committees' membe6 and ToRs, please refer page )o( to )o( of the Annual Report.

4. The Diredors'fee structure was approved by the members in annual general meeting held on

llarch 29, 2012, whereas payout is approved on post facto basis every year by the members, as

required by SBP Prudential Regulations. The new Code requires a formal policy which is in the

process of being formulated and shall be in place in due course, The required disclosure regarding

Directors'fee form part of note 41 of the unconsolidated financial statements

As a matter of best pradice, the Directors are pleased to give the following Statements:
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d) IntemationalFinancialReporting Standards, as applicnbleto banks in pakjstan, have been followed
in preparation of financial statements;

e) The system of intemal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitoredi

0 There are no signlficant doubts about the Bank's ability to continue as a 9oin9 concern;
g) There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance;
h) Summarized key operaUng and financial data of last six years has been presented as part of the

Annual Report;
i) The numberofBoard and Board Committee meetings held du.inq the year 2018and the attendance

by each director was as follows:

Sr.
Dlrectors Dk€ctors

Itleelings

Eoard
Aurlit
Commltt€
€ M.cdngs
(8ac)

Board
Str.te9y

(B5&FC)

Aorrd
Human

aBHR&XC)

aoard ii3k

Committe

(BRirc)

Eoard
lntormati

T€chnol09
v
Committe

(Brrc)

tion
Commltte

(ECC)

held duing the
5 5 5 2 I

H.H. Sheikh

1 6 7 5 5

5

1

l4r. Khalid l4an6
Sa€€d Al Otaiba

5 5 1

5
Georgios

6 5 3

6 Mr. Shehzad 3 l 3

7 Dr. 3

I Mr. Gyoqy 3 3 2

9 6 5 5 2

Hirua (Ex
) 7 I

Mr, Khaid

Qurashi

I 1

Directo6 elected and appointed during the year

The dire.tors .etired/rcsigned dunnq
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j) As.at December 315t 2016, the Bank is compliant in respect of the Director's training requirement
provided in the Code of Corporate Governance;

k) The pattern of shareholding is attached as part of this annual report;

l) There are no loans, Trcs, sukuk or any other debt instruments in which the Bank is in default or
likely to default; and

m) Trading pattem in the shares of the 8ank, by directors, executives, their spouses and minorchildren
have been disclosed as part of the Anrual Repot.

RISK IiIA AGEI{ENT

During the cou6e of the year, BankAlfalah continued to further strengthen its risk management framework.

This includes automation, refinement of credit approval process and implementatio. of centralized Loan

Originabon System for UAE Operations too. Bank has implemented IFRS 9 in its l..,AE, Afghanistan and

Bahrain operations,

Owing to its branch-led model. robust credit undeMriting criteria and strong collection framewort! the
Bank has the maintained lower infection ratio than industry average, while at the same time maintaining a

strong qrowth trajectory in advances. The Bank was also selected as Sample bank by the Regulator under

$e D-SI8 (Domestically Systematically Important Eank) and it stands complied with enhanced supervisory

requirements. In addibon, Bank also completed the quantitative & qualitative impact assessment of IFRS 9

for Pakistan Operations.

Capital Stru.ture of the Bank
The Bank remained a well-capitalized institution with a capital base well above the regulatory limits and

Baselcapital requirements. The Bankcontinues with a policy of sufficient profit retention to increase its risk

absorption capacity. Bankt total Gpital Adequacy Ratio is 14.950/0 against the requirement of 1190Vo

(includinq capital consewation buffer of 1.90yo). Quality of the capital is evident from Bank's Common

Equityner-1 (CETI) to total risk weighted assets ratio which comes to 1o.90vo against the requirement of

6.000/0. Bank has ample cushion in its capital base to.meet the Capital Conservation Buffer (CCB) of 2.5 %

of the total RWA. to be maintained in the form of Common Equity ller 1 by the year end 2019. Bankt

adequate capitalization also resulted in a leverage ratio of 5 64010 which is above the regulatory limit of

3.0olo.

lnformation Security
Information security is a key risk for the financial industry amid growing cyber security threats and events

across the globe. Information security mitigates risks to bank's technology assets bydeveloping IT security

baselines for Il solutions t|at support products and services Additionally, signiflcrnt developments with

respect to the cyber security action plan took place during the year including further strengtnening our

resilience and defence capabilities through monitoring of threats and vulnerabilities via 24/7 security

Operatons Centre.

Compliance Risk
Bank Alfalah has been committed to enhance its compliance ar€a across the oetwork including overs€as

operations. compliance and control Group of the bank comprises three divisions i.e. compliance, lnternal

control and Fraud Risk l4anagement Unit. Following the global and local regulatory focus on AIYU CFT and

sanctions, the Compliance and Control Group has a major participation in the meetings of Board Audit
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Committee. The commiftee is monitoring an approved Compliance Action plan, compliance affairs of local
and overseas operations and matters pertaining to regulatory concerns.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMEI{T

2018 has been a rewarding year for us at Bank Alfalah across many spectrums. We continued on our
joumey of delivering sustainable and solid flnancial results, During the year, Bank Alfalah won the'Best
SME Bank'award as wellas the'Best Customer Franchise' award, for the third year runninq, at the pakistan
Banking Awards. Thes€ awards are a testament to our continued commitment and dedication towards our
customers and stakeholders. The SME Award is partjcularly special as SI,"lEs repres€nt one of the most
underserved market segment in the country.

Looking ahead, Bank Alfalah is well positioned for sustainable groMh and building long-term shareholder
value. We will continue to invest in Digital Banking, in our technology infrastructure, in human capital and
in strengthening our compliance and controls environment. At the same time, we will continue to focus
on building a low cost deposit base, improving the return on capital on risk assets, optimizing returns from
the banking book and enforcing a strong cost discipline across the bank. Given the significant ris€ in
interest rdtes over the last year and the risk of credit headwinds, we will continue to follow prudent risk
management practices and manage the loan book optimally.

In line with our mission, we seek to be the prefened bank For our customers and will always look to put
our customers and thek needs first. We are also committed to providiflg the best workplace environment
for our employees by living our values and by enriching the employee experience. To this end, 2019 has
been declared as the 'Year of Happiness'at Bank Alfalah. It is ultimately through our employees that we
wili be able to achieve our mission.

Uncertainties that could affect the Bank's resouroe, reverues and operations

All forward looking statements are, by nature, subiect to risk and uncertainties, some beyond conkol.
Factors that may potentially affed the Bank's resource, revenues and operations are:

Decisions on Discount Rate / lYonetary policy;
Revisions to rate of returns on deposits;
Geo-Political risks and uncertainties across the geography that we operate in;
Law and Order situation;
Local Government rules and regulations;
Inflation, fuel and general commodity prices; and
Corporate taxation measures.

The bank! Risk Management Group performs stress testing against various pre{etermined scenarios to
analyse potential losses and to determine whether the bank has enough capital to withstand the impact of

adveEe economic developments. The results of such tests has showed that the bank has adequate cnpibl,

liquidity and profitability to bear such losses,

INTERI{AL CONTROLS

The Boaid mnsiders Sound Control Framework as a key to sustainable groMh and vehicle for Value

Creation. In accordance with Board Vision and in line with SBP & SECP guidelines, the Management has

been continuously striving for implementing a comprehensive fuvemance & control Framework to ensure
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efficiency and effectileness of operations, compliance with legal requirements and reliability of financial
reporting. Adequate systems, processes and controls have been put in place to identify and mitigate the
risk of failure to achieve the overall objectives of the Bank.

The Eank has a dedicated Intemal Control Division, which, through its regular onsite field visits & offsite
thematic reviews facilitates the managemeot in timely identificltion and resolution of the key control /
compliance sk exposures, which can affect bank adversely. The ICD helps management to ensure that
the Bankt Operations are carried out as p€r the defined procedures; transactions are recorded on timely
manner; financial and management reporting is accurate/ reliable and complete; and that the Bank is
compliant with the applicable laws, Regulations and Policies. Showing commitment to culture focusing on
controls improvement, in 2018, under the guidance of Board,ICD also introduced a Comprehensive Grading
Framewo.k for identification & quantification of different types of conbol risk exposures, which would help
management in developing strategies to mitigate those control gaps with focused & targeted
approach. Besides ICD, Compliance Division & Risk l.4anagement Division are also integral part of BAFL

Control Framewodf helping the management in improvjng controls.

Existing policies and procedures are reviewed on a regular basis and improved from time to time, when
required. The Eoard has constituted its sub committees for oversight of the overall Risk l"lanagement
frameworlt Finance and Strategy, which meet at regular intervals to ensure adequacy of governance.

Eoard also obtains regular independent opinion over control health of the bank through an independent &
well-fundioning Audit & Inspection Setup, which is reporting to Board through Bo6rd Audit Comhittee.
Remedaal Actions are advised and followed up for implementation against the control breaches by Board
Audit Committee as well.

The Board endorses the managemenfs evaluation on effectiveness ofthe overall internalcontrols, including
ICFR, as detailed in the Statement of Internal Cont.ols.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

At Bank Alfalah, we believe that our success and the success of our custome6 go hand-in-hand. We aim

to conduct business by creating shared values for all our stakeholders. Corporate Social Responsibility is

an instrument of positive change and continues to be one of the most iftportant aspects of our business.

We are firm in our commitment to op€rate within an ethical framework, while contributing to socio_

economic development. As we contrnue to build responsible business practices acrcss the banK we ensure

that we capture every opportunity deepening the impact of our Corporate Social Responsibility and
philanthropic footprint. During the yeari the Bank has paid charitable donation amounting to Rs. 36.594

million to different educational and charitable institutions, including Rs 8 650 million to Supreme Court

Diamer thasha And Nlohmand Dam Fund. The staff of the bank has also contributed their one day salary

toward the Dam Fund.

fu a bank we are foqJsed on energy conservation initiatives and providing sustainable finance we work to
improve the communities around us, especially within the health and education sectors Please refer the
Sustainabiiity section for more information
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EXTERNAL AUDIT

Based on the consent received from the Bank's existing auditors M/s EY Ford Rhodes & Co., Chartered
Accountants, to continuetoact as auditorsofthe Bank, if so appointed. The Audit Committee has suggested
their name to be appointed as external auditors of the Bank for the next year.

The firm of auditors have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the Quality
Control Review program of the tnstitute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, and that the firm and all
their partners are compliant with the Internationa{ Federation of Accountants' (IFAC) Guidelines on Code
of Ethics, as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, and meet the requirements for
appointrnent under all applicable laws,

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, we would once again like to thank the State Bank of Pakistan, the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan, the tlinistry of Finance and other regulatory authorities for their
continuous guidance and support. At the same time, we would like to express our gratitude to our
shareholders, our customers, business partners and the Bank's staff for their continued patronage,

Our values are to put our customers and tileir needs front and center, to achieve good results but to do so
in a way that treats all of our stakeholders - employees, customers, regulators and shareholders - in a falr
and transparent way. This we believe is the RIGHTWAY and will continue to govern our actions.

We exped the Pakistan economy to show reasonable growth in 2019, helped by recovering consumer
confidence, improving invest nent environmentand trade. We look forward to seeing 2019 as a prosperous
year for Pakistan and Bank Alfalah.

f-

/.
il ltb,t w^A"1 h"+an-.''

Nauman Ansari
President and chief Executive Officer

._ -sh Naqvi
rector

Bank Alfalah

21st February, 2019

Abu Dhabi
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The Board of Directors
Benk Alfa ah Limited (the Bank)
B.A. Euilding, .1. Ch!ndrigar Road
Karachi, Pakistan

Dear Slrs

DRAFT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HE YEA CEM B
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AC/AAR/324/t9
10 February 2019

we are pieased to enclose five copies of the draft financiar statements of the Bank for the above year,
together with our draft audit report thereon to the members initiared by us onry for identification
purposes. we understand that the encrosed financial statements have been endorsed by the chief
Executive oflicer and chiel Financiar officer of the Bank for consideration and approvar by the Board.

1. We shall be pleased to sign and issue our audit report after:

a) the Board has approved the financial statements and these have been signed by the Chief
Financial officer, chief Executive and three Directors of the Bank authorized in this beharf;

b) the Board has specificalty approved the items tisted in Annexure ,A, of this tetter;

c) we have received representation retter dury signed by the chief Executive and chief Financiar
officer of the Bank; and

d) we have received the dralt annuar report of the Bank containing financiar and non-financiar
information that will be published along with the financial statem;nts which is required to be
reviewed by us in terms of the requirements of lnternational Standard on Auditing 720 ,,Other
lnformation in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements,,.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE AUDITORS ANO MANAGEMENT IN RELAfION TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

u

U

U

tl

{,

The responsibilities of the. independent auditors in respect of statutory audit of Financialstatements are stipurated jn section 249 of the companies Act, z0rz, sectiin 3i ot tne aanking
Companies 0rdinance, 1962 and tnternationalstandards on Au;iting.

While the auditors are responsible for forming and expressing their opinion on the financial
:l1lT.:",:: the responsibitity for preparation inO presentation'oi sr.t ii""iii"t sratements is
lll:1,1I :nu,,r. rhe.Bank,s management. Fhe management,s responsibitities inctude the
:":1,-T1l:-"_"1:,f::ate Eccounting records and internat controts, the setection and appticationor dccounflng po[ctes, s6fequardino of the assets of the Bank and prevention and detection offrauds and irregutarities. The audit ;f the financiat statementi ooes Ioi r"ri"i" ii" tnunugu."ntof its responsibilities. Accordingty, our audit of financial st"t"r""ii.n"rfa i"i i" retied upon todisclose a, errors or irregutdrities which are not materiat in retation to iti iir"iii"f .t"t".unt.taken as whole.
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3, REVISED CONTENT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AS PER SECURITIES AND
EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN (SECP) REGULATIONS

ln January 2015, the lnternational Auditing and Assurance Standards Board (IAASB) issued
revised set of auditing standards dealing with the auditors reporting requirements. These new
reporting.equirements have been adopted by the SECP jn its regulatjons on auditors reporting
obligations issued in April 2018. While these changes have resulted in various enhancements in
the content of the auditor's report, the most significant change is the requirement to communicate
key audit matters as part of the auditor's report. Accordingly, our audit report on the financial
statements of the current year (as enclosed with this letter) has been prepared in line with the new
requirements and include the following key audit matters:

3.1 PROVISION AGAINST NON PERFORMING CREDIT EXPOSURE

The Bank's credit portfolios include loans and ddvances, and non,funded credit facilities. The credit
portfolio is spread across various domestic branches and overseas operations.

As per the Bank's accounting policy (refer note 4.5 to the financial statements), the Bank
determines provisions against non-perfoaming financing exposures in accordance with the
requirements of Prudential Regulatlons of State Bank of pakistan (SBp) in respect of potential
credit losses in the portfolio. Such regulations require specific provisioning against loan losses on
the basis of an age based criteria which should be supplemented by a subjective evaluation of
Bank's credit portfolio. The determination of loan loss provision against certain vulnerable
corporate loans, therefore, involve use of management judgment, on a case to case basis, taking
into account lactors such as the economic and business conditions, borrowers repayment
behaviors and realizability of collateral held by the Bank. ln view of the significance of this area in
terms of its impact on the financial statements and the level of involvement of management,'s
judgment, we identified adequacy and completeness of loan loss provision as a siqnificant area of
audit judgment and a key audit matter,

3.2 PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS UNDER BPRD CIRCULAR NO.O2 OF 2018

As referred to in note 4.1.1to the financi6l statements, State bank of pakistan (SBp) vide its BpRD
circular no.02 of 2018. (the circular) revised the statutory forms of the annual financial
statements of banks effective from the year ended 31 Oecember 2019.

The revised statutory financial reporting framework as appticable to the Bank, prescribes the
presentation format, nature and content of disclosures in reration to various elements ol the
financialstatements.
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The above changes and enhancements in the financial statements are considered important and a
key audit matter because or the vorume and significance of the changes in the financiar statements
resulting from the transition to the new reporting requirements.

SIGNIFICANT MATTERS

We would like to draw attention of the Board to the following matters:

AFGHANISTAN OPERATIONS

]l: :-"fl1_:j 
o_,1::,:i s in their meetins.hetd on 17 Ausust 2017 accorded its in-principarapprovat

:1"-_YT1f "!.tT .lnagement to exptore the possibitity to setj the Afghanistan Operations (theuperatons) ot the Bank to a potential buyer, subject to obtaining ;ll regulatory approvals,compriance with appricabre raws and regutations. Accordingty, in ," itniniiii.l-ui"lnents of thet ank ror the year ended 3l December 2017, the Operatjons were classified as Assets and liabalatiesheld for sate under tFRs 5.,Non-current Assets xeto tor sate ina oi.a""irr" jin*".ti"*,,
t1"
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Subsequently, on 25 February 2018, the Board of Director's in their meeting passed a resolution
for sale of the Bank's operations located in Afghanistan to the Azizi Bank (the Purchaser) and Mr.
Mirwais Aziz (the Contributor).

A business transfer agreement to this effect was signed on 14 May 2018 between Azizi Bank and
the Bank. However, the transfer of the Bssets and liabilities forming the business is conditional
upon approval from OA Alghanistan Bank and the Ministry of Finance which is still pending. We
have been informed that recently, the 0A Afghanistan Bank has raised certain queries, however,
the management and the purchaser are following up with the DA Afghanistan Bank for approval on
a regular bdsis,

IFRS 5 requires that on the date of classification, the sate should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year. However, events or circumstances may extend
the period to complete the sale beyond one year, Further, an extension of the period required to
complete a sale does not preclude an asset from being classified as held for sale if the delay is
caused by events or circumstances beyond the entity's control and there is sufficient evidence
that the entity remains committed to its plan to sell the asset.

We have been given to understand by the management, that due to circumstances beyond the
control ol the Bank, the sale has not been conclLlded, however, the Bank remain! committed to its
plan to sell the Operations. Accordingly, as disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the 0perations continue to be classified as held for sale in the financial
statements of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2018.

4.2 INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORIING STANDARD (IFRS) 9 . FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Local Op€rations

During the year, SBP issued letter No. BPRD/RPD/2018 - 7837 on ,tFRS 9i Readiness Assessment
and 0uantitative lmpact Assessment" dated 10 April 2018 which required the Bank to perform a
quantitative impact analysis of IFRS 9,,Financial lnstruments', as of 31 December 2017. This
assessment is required to be reviewed by the statutory auditors as well.

The aforesaid assessment have been recently submitted to the State Bank of pakistan in draft
form whi.h inter-alia among other matters highlighted major gaps due to absence of data which
would result in difficulties in the future implementation of IFRS 9.

We recommend that management should start a detailed implementation plan of IFRS 9 for the
Bank's financial instruments. Significant efforts will be required to implement the standard. An
analysis of existing information system and availability of data should be assessed to determine
whether changes in existing information system are reduired to gather such information and data
required to meet n€w ECL and disclosures requirements of IFRS 9.

Overseas Operatlons

u
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As disclosed in note4.1.3 to the unconsolidated financialstatements, during thecurrent year, the
Bdnk's Bahrain, Afghanistan and UAE operations have, in line with their respective locally
applicable regulatory frameworks, adopted IFRS 9 ,Financial lnstruments, as issued by the
lnternational Accounting Standards Board (ASB) in July 2014. ln order to ensure compljance with
the regulatory framework in these countries, the expected credit loss charge arising as a result of
adoption of IFRS t has been retained as a generar provision in these u;consoridated financiar
statements,
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As permitted by the transitionalprovision5 of IFRS 9, the Bank elected not to restate comparative
figures. Any adjustments to the carrylng amounts of financialassets and liabilities at the date of
transition were recognised in the opening retained earninqs of the current year.

The adoption of this standard by the overseas branches have resulted in additional net of tax
provisioning requirement of Rs, 81.596 million in respect of prior year which has been incorporated
in the openinq balance of retained earnings, while net of tax provision reversal of Rs. 21.264 million
has been booked jn profit and loss statement of overseas operations, in respect of current year.

OUTSTANDING CONFIRMATIONS

We have not received responses to our requests for information from:

. various correspondent banks regarding confirmations of outstanding balances at the year-end;
and

. Certain legal adviso.s of the Bank regarding information relating to litigations, existing or
anticipated, at the year-end or arising subsequent thereto involving the Bank.

We have provided a list of all such outstanding confirmations to the management tor follow up. We
have, however, performed alternative audit procedures in relation to the relevant audit areas and
hdve also been represented by the management that no signilicant Iiability is likely to arise from
in respect of the matters being handled by the legal advisors who have not responded to our
request for information tilldate.

6. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

We have been informed by the management that there were no contingencies and commitments
and transactions with the rerated parties during the year other than those discrosed in the
unconsolidated f inancial statements,

7. MANAGEMENT LETTER

This letter contains our communication to the Board on significant matteas rerating to the financiar
statements, hoM/ever, we also expect to provide you in the due course a separate management
letter containing our observations and recommendations on internal controls and related matters.

We place on record our appreciation of the co-operation and courtesy extended to us by the management
during the course oI our review.

I t/k,l

5

Yours faithfully
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BANK ALFALAH LIMIIED
AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(to be read with our tetter reference AClAAR /324/19 dated 10 February 2019)

BOARD OF DIREC'ORS' APPROVAL

Before issuing our review report, we require the folowing items to be considered and specificafiy
aPproved by the Board:

(Rt pees in
thous.nd)

Additions to operating fixed asseti - at cost

Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets (having cost of Rs.705,1O1thousand
and book value of Rs. 309,998 thousand)

Net deferred tax liabilities at year end

Provision for diminution in value of investment - net charge

Reversal of provision against non-performing loans amounting to Rs.
2,898,550 thousand net of provision of Rs. 3 ,277,21t thousand

Write offs during the year against loans

L,307,24A

2,O70,7 02

t,423,999

378,721

239,269

Taxation
Current
Prior
Deferred

7,2t9,414
(229,453)
(302,47 4)

24,760,O40

142,586,169

1,227,241

Net increase in investment in held-for-trading securities

Net decrease in investment in available,for-sale securities

Net decrease in investment in held-to-maturity securities

Reversal ot provision against other assets amounting to Rs. 10,34g
thousand net of provision of Rs, 421,760 thousand

Change in accountinq policy as disclosed in note 4.1to the unconsolidated
financialstatements.

Transactions with related parties as
unconsolidated f inancial statements

disclosed in note 45 to the

411,412



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the members of Bank Allalah Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Oplnlon

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financlal statements ol Bank Alfalah Limited (the Bank),
which comprise the unconsolidated statement of linancial position as at 31 December 2018, and the
unconsolidated profit and loss account, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the unconsolidat6d cash flows statement for
the year then ended, notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information in which are incorporated unaudited certified returns
received from the branches except for 60 branches which have been audited by us and we state that
we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

ln our opinion and to the best of our informatlon and according to the explanations qiven to us, the
unconsolidated statement of financial position, unconsolidated statement of profit and loss and the
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, unconsolidated statement of changes in equity
and unconsolidated cash flow statement together with the notes forming part thereof contorm with
the accountinq and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. and give the intormation required
by the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act,2O17(X|X of 2017), in the
manner so required and respectively give a true and falr view of the state ot the Bank's affairs as at
31 December 2018 and of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income or loss or the
comprehensive income, the changes in equjty and its cash flows for the year then ended,

Bnsls for Oplnlon

We conducted our audit ln accordance with lnternational Standards on Auditing (lSAs) as applicable
in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Bank in accordance with the lnternational Ethics Standards Eoard for Accountants,Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of pakistan
(the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Key Audlt Matt€rs

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professionaljudgment, were of mo5t significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forminq our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these malle(s. / -/, l?/-l
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Following are the key audit matters

alnst Non Perlormln Credlt Ex
The Bank's credit portlolios include loans
and advances, and non-funded credit
facilities. The credit portfolio is spread across
variou5 domestic branches and overseas
operations.

As per the Bank's accountinq policy (refer note
4.5 to the financial statements), the Bank
periodically assess the adequacy of its
provisions
against non-pertorming credit exposures in
accordance wlth the requirem€nts of Prudential
Regulations of State Bank ot Pakistan.
Such
regulations requlre specif ic provisioning against
loan losses on the basis of an age based criteria
which should be supplemented by a subjective
evaluation of Bank's credit portfolio. The
determination of loan loss provision against
certain vulnerable corporate loans, therefore,
involve use of management judqment, on a case
to case basis, taking into account factors such
as the economic and business conditions,
borrowers repayment behavlors and
realizability of collateral held by the Bank.

In view of the significance of this area in
terms ol its impact on the financial
statements and the level of involvement
of management's judgment, we identified
adequacy and completeness of loan
loss provislon as a significant area of audit
judgment and a key audit matter.

We applied a range of audlt procedures
including the tollowing:

_ We reviewed the Bank,s process
for identlfication and ctassification of
non- performlnq loans including the
quatity of underlying data and systems. As
part of such review we performed an analysis
of the changes within the different categories
of alassified non- performing accounts from last
yeartothe current reporting date. This analysis
was used to gather audit evidence regarding
downgradlng of impaired loans and
declassiflaation of accounts trom non-
performing to regular, as the case may be.

- We performed independent checks
forthe computations of provisions in line with
the requirements of the applicable
Prudential Regulations.

' ln addition, we selected a representative
sample of borrowers from the credit
portfolios across various branches jncludlnq
individually significant corporate loans and
performed tests and procedures such as
review ot credit documentation, repayment
history and past due statu5. financial condition
as depicted by the borrowers' flnancial
statements, nature of collateral held by the
bank and status of litigation, if any, with the
borrower;

- Based on the said credit reviews, we
identified and discussed with the management
the loan accounts where the credit risk appear to
have increased, We reviewed the adequacy of
provisions against such accounts on the basis ot
our independent objectlve evatuotion of the risk
mitigdtinq factors that exist ln such cases;

' We also assessed adequacy of disclosures
as included in note 9.4 and 9.5 tothefinancial
statementsregarding the non-performing
loans and provisions made for the same in
the financialstatements in accordance with the
.equirements of the applicable financial reporting
framework-
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' We assessed the procedures applied by
the management for identification of the changes
required in the financial statements due to the
application of the revised forms for the
preparation of such financjal statements.

- We also evaluated the sources of
lnformation used by the management for the
preparation of the financial statements
disclosures and the internal consistency of the
disclosures with other elements thereof-

- We considered the adequacy and
appropriateness of the additional disclosures and
changes in the presentation of the tinancial
statements based on the requirements of the
statutory forms.
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lnformatlon Other than the Flnanclal Statements and Audltors, Repolt Thereon

[lanagement is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financlal statements and our auditors,report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. lf, based on the \dork we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report jn this regard.

Responslbilttles ot Management and the Board of Dlrectors for the Flnanclal Statements

[,4anaqement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable ln pakistan, the requirements of
Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XtX of 2017) and for such internat
controlas mnnagement determines is necessary to enable the preparation of finaflcial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank,s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going;oncern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unress management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of directors is respon5ible for overseeing the Bank,s tinancial reporting process.

Audltor's Responslblll es for the Audlt ot the Flnanclal Slatements

our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor,s report that
incrudes our opinion. Reasonabre assurance is a high lever of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with rsAs as appricabre rn pakistan wifl arways detect a materiar
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arlse from fraud or error and are considered materialif, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these ftnancial statemelts.

. ;,., i)'
I
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As referred to in note 4.1.1 to the financial
statements, St6te bank ol Pakistan (SBP) vide
its BPRD circular no. 02 of 2018, (the circutar)
revised the statutory forms of the ann!al
financialstatements of banks effective from the
year ended 31 December 2018.

The revised statutory f inancial reportinq
framework as applicable to the Bank, prescribes
the presentation format, nature and content of
disclosures in relation to various elements of the
financialstatements.

The above changes and enhancements in the
financial statements are considered important
and a key audit matter because of the volume and
significance of the changes in the financial
statements resulting from the transition to the

ortin re uirements
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A As part ol an audit in accordance with.lSAs as applicable in pakistan, we exerclse professional judgment
f_l and maintain professionat skepticism throuqhoui the audit. We ;i;"; 

- -

' ldentify and assess the risks of materiar misstatement of the financrar statements, whether due tofraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to ttrose risis, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficientand appropriateto providea basisfor ouropinion.Therisk of not detecting
a material misstatement resurting from fraud is higher than for one resurrng trom error, as fraud
may involve colluslon, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internalcontrol.

' obtain an understanding of internar contror rerevant to the audit in order to design audit proc€dures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expiessing an opinion on theeffectiveness of the 8ank,s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropaiateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management,s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a materiar unceriainty exists rerated to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's abflity to conti;ue as a going concern. rf we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor,s report
to the related discrosures in the financiar statements or, if such discrosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. our concrusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor,s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to iease to continue as a going
concern.

' Evaluate the overart presentation, structure and content of the financiar statements, rncruding the
disclosures, and whether the financrar statements represent the underrying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timinq of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

we also provrde to the Board of Drrectors with a statement that we have compried with rerevant ethicar
requirements regardlng independence, and to communlcate with them ali relationshlps and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards,

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were ofmost signifacance in the audit of the financiar statements of the current period .nd are therefore the key
audit matters. we describe these matters in our auditor's report unress raw or reguration precrudes pubric
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, *" O-"t"rain" that a mattershould not.be communicated in our report because the advers" cons"quences of doing so wouldreasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communicaflon,

Report on Other Legaland Regulatory R6qulrements

1. Based on our audit. we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Bank as required by the Companies Act, 2017(xrx of 2017) and the returns referred above trom tne oranctres niire ueen touno aaeq,ate torthe purpose of our audit;

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profat or loss and other comprehensiveincome or the statement of comprehenslve income, statement oi itinq". in equity andstatement of cash flows (together with the notes thereon nar" gu"n iiu,nn up in conformitywith the Banking companies ordinance, 1952 and the companies lci, iorzrxtx or zorzr 
"naare in agreement with the books of account and regurns

Lclt)
I



tl

0

0

0

I
0

6

$

0

I
i
ffi

&

fl

BY

'c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were in
accordance with the objects and po\4ers of ths Bank and the transactions or the Bank which
have come to our notice have been within the powers of the Bank; and

d) zakat deductibte at source under the Zakat and ushr Ordinance, 1980 (xV,t of 1980), wasdedrcted by the Eank and deposited in the central zakat Fund estabrishec, under section 7 0fthat Ordinance.

2 We confirm that for the purpose of our audit we have covered more than sixty per cent of the totar
loans and advances of the Bank.

Other Matters:

The financiar statements of the Bank for the year ended 31 oecember 2017 were audited by anotherflrm of chartered accountants who expressed an unmodified opinion theaeon dated 25 February 2018.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors,report is Omer Chughtai.

(tIChaltered Accountants

Place: Karachi

Datel
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AATK ALFALAH LIMITED
UI{CONSOLIDATEO SYATEMET{T OF Ft]IANGIAL POSITIOI{

AS AT DECEMBER 3I, 2OIA

Not€ 2018 2017 2016
R€tated Restated

Rupees in'000)---------,----.
ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances wilh other banks

Lendings to financial institutjons

Fix6d assets

lntangible assets

Olherassets

LIABILITIES

82,407,700

3,874,955

62,172,2A7

277,660,403

501,635,452

18,272,215

1,28i,516

35,320,826

23,589,489

70,381,435

3,753,954

48,895,828

400,733,286

400,655,424

16,155,727

'I,472,270

29,958,291

26,A21,724

74,O71,3A4

9,373,123

30,149,029

389,092,637

378,720,349

16,476,271

'1,656,996

30,105,955

5

6

7

8

I
10

11

12

21

Bills payable

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts
Liabililies against assets subject to finance tease
Subordrnaled debt

Deferred tax liabihties

Olher liabilili6s

Lrabrlities drrectly associated wlh lhe assels held for sale

NET ASSETS

REPRESENTED BY

35,988,225

123,73A,24i
702,895,280

11,989,000

2,O70,702

33,454,124

20,435,396

19,09'1,201

178,311,035

634,740,O43

8.317,670

2,650,42A

26,410,605

20,a82,970

207,193,686

644,984,967

4,991,000

3,153,750

27.062.729

24,759,096

1,006,217,843 998,827,939 529,645,744

930,570,968 933,028,198 869,520,932

75,646,875 65,799.741 60J24 762

75, 875 65.799.741 60.124.762

13

14

15

'16

17

18

21

19Share capilal

Surplus / (deficit) on revatuation ofassets
Unaptroprialed profil

17,713,629

23,050,754

7,382,950

27,469,542

16,075,720
'18,156,669

7,245,24a

24,282,104

15,952,076
'15,895,652

10,969,713

17,301,321

20

u

U

l-l

L]

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 22

The annexod fioles 1 lo 50 and an nexu res I to lll form an integral part of lhese unconsolidated inancial

f , /n,ru*,. /h"u'- , Ar. *Wvtt --;'a fr-v

I

Pr6lcl6nt & Chief Executive Oflice, Chibf Ftnanciat Offrcor Eireclor Dlrector Oiaector
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l\,4a*-up/Retu.n/lnterest Earned
[{ark-up/Rslurn/lnterest Expensed
Net l\,4ark-up/ lnterest tncome

Profit 3elor6 Provisions

Provisions a6d write offs - nel
Efta ordinary / unusuatitems

BA X ALFALAH LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACGOU},|r

FOR THE YEAR EI{DED OECEMAER 3I, 2OIA

Not6

27

2A

29

30

31

32

33

2'l

2018 2017

Restaied

-----(Rupe$ in 000)-----

24

25
59,318,342

27,727,2a7

56,175,501

27,199,316

31,591,055 28,376,185

Fee and Commission lncome
oividend lncome
Foreign Exchange lncome
Income / (loss) fiom derivatives
Gain / (Loss) on securities
Other lncome
Total non-markup/interesl lncome

6,013,006

460,319

1,442,886

(58,S08)

1,1U,122
84,654

NON MARK-UP/INTEREST INCOME

Totallncome

NON MARK.UP/INTEREST EXPENSES

Operating expenses

Workars Welfare Fund

Olher charges

Tolal non,ma*up/interest expenses

23,966,756
392,089

6,rl:}0

24,671,927

258.A75

32,727

10,200,358 9.076.079

4,f,79.1,413 38,052.264

24,365,275 24,963,529

(

6,291,672

576,034

2,158,533

120,s421

992,88E

191,773

T

tf,

f:l
Ul

fl

U
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'17,426,13A

588,383

13,088,735

(616,430)

16,837,755

6,587,487

13,705,165

s,538,933

PROFIT SEFORE TAXATION FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Taxalion

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

OISCONTINUING OPERATIONS
Profit after lax for the year from discontinued operalions

Proflt tor the year

10.150,268 8,166,232

474,952 201,064

10,625,220 8,367,296

Rupees

34 5.99 414ss 

-
5.72 4.62

----

Basic EamingB pershare - Restated
Oiluted Ea.ning6 p6rsh.rc - Restated

Baaic Eamin$ persharBtrom con nujng operaflons- Regtated
Diluted Eeming3 persharo from continuing operatiorc. RBtated

The annexed noles 1 lo S0 and annexures I lo lll form an inlegral part of these unconroljdeled li

L, h* lu,at, fo *!La,Lt4^'-
Presidenl & ChiefExecutive Offcer C Finaocial Officer ,$irector Director

,?r;'v
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BANX ALFAITAH LIMITED
UI{COt{SOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCO'/IE

FOR ?HE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I, 2OI8

11 //,r,,*,, krta,' c4"*la-,

201a . -.2017
Restated

-----(Rupees in 000)-----

Oth6r comprehensiv6 Income

Items that may be recl8sified to profit end toss account in subs6quent pe ods
Effect oflranslalion of nei inveslment in foreign baanches
Movement in surplus / (deficit) on r6vatuation of investments - net of tax

Items thatwill not be reclasstfied to profit and loss account in subsequeat period6
Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit obligations - net of tax
Illovement in surplus on revatualion ofoperating iixed assets - nel oftax
Ivovemenl in surplus on revalualion of non-baoking assels - net oftax

Total comprehenslve income

10,625,220 8,367,296

382,854 (3,215,078)

2,915,647 304,346
13,823,721 5,456,564

menls

Director

2,974,642
(2,s9r,788)

492,747
(3,707,865)

il

m

m

!
B

m
trt

126,157

2,663,884

25,606

247,149

5',1,232

5,965

The annexed notes 1 to 50 and annexures tto tform an integrat part of these unconsotidaled

President & chief Execurive Oflicer dilef Financial Officer Director Dheclor
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BAI{K ALFALAH LIMTTED

U},ICO]{SOLIOATED CASH FLOW STATEME]{T
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEi'BER 3I,2OIA

201a 2017
Restated

-----(Rupees in 000)-----
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxalion frcm conlinuing operallons
Profil befors taxalion lrom discontinuing operations
Dividend ncorne

15,837,755
780,500

(575,034)

13,705,165
339,819

(460,319)
'17,042,221 13,584,665

Adluslments
Deprecialion
Amorlisation
Provisions and wite offs - net
iJnrealised loss / (qain) on revalualion of investments

classified as held for trading - nel
Gain on sale of operating ,ixed assets - nel
Charge for defined beneJit plan

1,819,620
446,135

(616,430)

7,351
(11,655)
250,1530

E

B

n

!
B

w

n

lncreaBe / (docrease) in operating llabilitles
Bills payable
Borrowings
Deposils
Other liabililies (excluding currenl taxalion)

15,105,255
(83,432,878)
57,910,313

999.738

(416,549)
26,942.423
36,952,995
4,U7,524

(lncreas6) / decr€ase in op€ratlng assets
Lefl dings to financial instilutions
Held for trading securities

Oth6r assels (excluding ad;ance taxation)

Contribution made lo ghluityfuna

Net cash generated trom / (used ln) opsratlng actlvitles

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net inveshents in available-for-sale securities
Nel investments in held-to-maturily securities
lnvestment in subsidiaries / aisociat€d companies
Disposal of investmenl in subsidia es / associated companies
Dividends received
lnveslments in operating rixed assets
Proceed trom sale prcceed6 ol fixed assets
Net cash (used h)/ genorated from lnveiting acllvltle3

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
lssuance / tedempllon) of sub-ordinated debt
lssue of share capital
Dividend paid
Net ce3h tlsed ifl financlng actlvltle3
Effecl oftranslation ofn6t investment in foreign branchos

lncrease / {d6caea3€) In cash and cash equlvalentr
Cash and cash equivalenta at beginning oftheyear
Effects ofexchange rate chenges on cash and cash equivslenls

CaBh and cash equlvatonE atend ofth6 yoar

(r8,366, t07)
124,767 ,391t

(100,850,303)
(3.510.739)

(3,797,453)
(7,376,396)

(22,609,s76)
114_228.O13\

2, ,553 1,895,174
19,929,774 15,479,839

(147,494,540) (48,011,438)

19,417,5721 68,126,397
(r36,982,338) 35 594 798

{r85,753)
(5,301.420)

{250,153)
(5,037,257)

(142,469,511) 30,307,388

i.23,774,461)
1,541,900
(769,230)

1,240,627
488,730

(1,850.956)
90,208

6,998,000
82,,189

(4.000.915)

(3,326,670)
191,722

(1.931)
3,079,574
2,974U2

(3,136,879)
492,787

143, ,480 122.993,182)

7 080 105 67 114

i
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1 to 50 and an nexures I to lll form an integral parl of lhese unconsotid d linencia
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99,526,939
105 7

93,421,211

___l!!E9!!!9_
88,751,097
93,421,211

v
?

Of,icer

488,400
588,383

42,406
(135,794)
185 753

1,227,241

587,158
11,307,248t

512,537

792

90,124,073
372,976

President & Chief Executive Officer

*.!b-
Dtector Dkector Direclor



1 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

2 BASIS OF PRESEI.ITATION

2.I.,I STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

2_,1.3

BANX ALFALAH LIIVITED
NOTES TO ANO FORMING PART OF THE UNCONSOLIDATEO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDEO DECEMgER 3I, 2018
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Bank Allalah Limited (the Bank) is a banking company incorporated in pakistan on June 21, 1992 as a pubtic timited
company. ll commenced ils benking operalions on November 1, 1SS2. The Bank,s .egislered oftice is located at B. A.
Building' l. I chund gar Road, Karachi and is tisted on the Pakistan stock Exchange. The Bank is engaged in banking
services as described in the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and is operating through 486 conventional bankina
branches including 24 sub bEnches (2017: 475 branches inctuding 22 sub branches), to overseas branches (2017: 1o
braoches), 152 lslamic banking branches inctuding 1 sub branch (2017: 152 branches) and j offshore banking unil (2017: I
unil).

2_1.2

These unconsolidaled llnancial slatements have been prepared in accordanco with the accounling and reporting standards
as applicEble in Pakislan. The accouniing and reporting slandards comp se of:

lnlemational Financial Reporling Standerds (IFRS) issued by the lnt6rnalional Accounting Standards Board (!ASB) as are
nolilied under Companies Act 2017.

lslamic Financial Accounting Slandards (IFAS) issued by the lnstilule of Chartered Accountants of pakistan (tCAp) as are
notified under the Companies Acl, 2017

Provisions of and directives issued under the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act, 20j7.
Dteclives issued by the stat6 Bank of Pakastan (s8p) and the securities and Exchange commission of pakislan (sEcp)

whenever the €quirements of lhe Eanking companies ordinance, '1962, companies Acl, 2017 or the directives issued by
lhe sBP and the sEcP differ with the requirements of lFRs or |FAS, requirements of lhe Banking companiss ordinanc;,
1962, lhe Companies Act, 2017 and the said directives shatt prevait.

The SBP has deferred lho applicability of lnternalional Accounting Standard (lAS) 39.'Financiat lnstruments: Recognition
and Measurcmeni'and lnlernalionalAccounting slandard (lAs) 40,'tnvestment property'for banking companies through
BSD Circular Lelter No. 10 dated August 26, 2002 tillfurlher inslruclions. Fudher, the SECP has defenod the appticabilily of
lnternational Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 7, 'Financial Inskumenls: Disclosures'on banks through its notificaiion
s R.o 411(l)2008 dat6d April 28, 2008. However, inv€stmenls have been classired and valu6c, in accordance with lhe
requiremenls prescribed by the Slale Bank ol Pakistan lhrough vadous circutars. The State Bank of pakistao through BpRO
Circular No. 04 of 2015 dated February 25, 2015 has defened applicability of lslamic Financiat Accounting Stand_ard-3 for
Profit and Loss sharing on D6poEits (IFAS-3) issued by the tcAp and notified by the s Ecp, vid€ iheir sRo No. s71 of 201 3
daled June 12, 2013 for lnstitutions offering tslamic Financiat seruices ( Fs). Accordingly, lhe requiromenls of these
staodards have nol been considered in the preparalion of lhese unconsolidated linancial stat;ments.

These unconsolidated financiel statemenls represent separale linancial stalements of Bank Alfalah Limited in which
investmenl in subsidiaries and associates are accounted for on the basis of direct equity interesl 6ther lhan on the basis of
reporled resulls.

Key financial ,igures ofihe lslamic Banking branches ar€ disclosed in Annexure ll to the unconsolidaled tinancial

standards, interpr€tations of and amendments to publl3h€d approved accounting standards thatare oIfective in the

There arc certain new and amended standards, interpretations end amendmenls lhat ar6 mandatory for the Bank,s
accounting periods beginning on or affer January l, 2o1g but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any
significanl effect on th€ Eank's operaliohs and lherefore nol delailed in these unconsolidated financjal statemenls,

u,,|r'
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standards, interpretations ora.'d amendmenE to pubfiBhed approved accounting 3tandards thatare notyet

The following slandards, amendmenls and interprelations of approved accounting slandards will be effeclive to. accountingperiods beginning on or afterJanuary 01,20j9:

Standard, lnterprelation or Amendment

IFRS 3 - Definition of a Busaness (Amendments)

IFRS I - Financiat tnstruments: Ctassirication and l\,leasurement

IFRS I - P€payment Features wilh Negaliv6 Compensation -
(Amendments)

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statemenls and IAS 28 tnvestment
in Associates and Joinl Venlures - Sale or Conlribulion ofAssets
belween an lnvestor and its Associale orJoinl Venlure (Amendmenl)

IFRS 15 - Revenue from Conlracts w h Customers

IFRS 16 - Leases

IFRIC 23- Uncertainly over tncomeTax Treatments

IAS 1/ IAS I - Derinition of l\,4ateriat- Amendments to tAS 1 and tAS 8

IAS 19 - Plan Amendment, Curtaitment or Settement (Amendm6nls)

IAS 28 - Long-term lnterests in Associates and Joint Ventures -
(Amendmenls)

Standard

IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferrat Accounts

IFRS '17 - lnsurance Contracts

The above slandards, amendmenrs and interprelations ar6 not expecred to have any matenar irnpact on tha Bank,s
linanciar statemenrs in the period o, iniriarapprication, otherthan rFAs 9 and rFRs 16. with ;gard to |FRS 9, the Bank
consjders that as the Prudential Regulations and other sBP directives currentty provido the accounting framewo* forthe measurement and varuetion ot investments and provision against non perrorming roans ano aovances, the
implemenration of rFRs I may requke changes in the reguratory r;gime. Therefore, th6-Bank expects thar the sBp
would issue suitabre guidance and instrucrion on ihe apprication of iFRs 9 for th6 bankinE sector of pakistan. with
regard ro lFRs 16, the Bank is curenfly evaruating Ih6 impact of apprication of rFRS 16 on it;nancier;ratemenG.

Ther6 are cerrain new and am.nded standards and inteaprelarions rhat are mandarory for the Bank,6 accounlingperiods-beginning on or after January 1, 2018 but ar6 consider€d not lo be relevant or do riot have any significant effect
on the Eank's operations and are therefore nol detailed in lhese financial stalements,

ln addilion ro th6 above srandards and amendmenrs, improvemenrs to various accounring slandards have arso beenissued by the |ASB in December 20lT such improvemenrs are generaly effective for acc;nting periods beginning on
:::l:,"0-il::i:f.l919.rhe Bank expecrs.rhat such improverienrs to'the sranaaras wirinoina,e any impact on rhet anxs nnanctat statements in lhe period of tnitial application

Furrher, forrowing new standards have been issued by rAsB which are y6t to be norifed by rh6 sEcp tor lhe purpos. 0fapplicability in Pakistan.

Effective dat€ (annuat
periods bsginnhg on or

after)

January O1 , 2020

July 01, 2018

January 01, 2019

Nol yet linalized

July 01, 2018

January 01, 2019

January 01, 2019

January 01 , 2020

January 01, 2019

T

ffi

ffi

n

January 01, 2019

IASB Ettective date (annual

frorlodsbeginnlng on or after)

January 01, 2016

Janoary 01 , 2021
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3.2

4

Critlcal accountingestlmates and judgments

Th6 preparalion of these unconsolidaled financial statemenls in conformity wilh approved accounting standards as ._-applicable in Pekistan requires management lo make judgements, estimatea and as;;mptions that aff;d the rcported
amounls of assets and liabilities aod income and expenses as well as in lhe disctosure of conting€nt tiabitities. it atso
requires managemenl to exercise judgemenl in applicalion of its accounting policies. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on hislorical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
clrcumstances. Thes€ eslimales and assumplions are rcviewed on an ongolng basis. Revisions to accounting estimales are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised, il lhe revision affects onty that period, or in the pe od of revision
and in futurc periods ifth€ revision aff6cts both current and fulure periods.

significant accounling eslimales and areas wher6 judgements were made by the managemenr in the applicalion of
accounting policies are as follows:

i) classrficarion and provisioning against investments tnotes 4 4 and e)
ii) classification and provisioning against non-performing toans and advances (notes 4.5 and 9)
iii) incomBlaxes (notes 4.13 and 33)
iv) accounting for deined benerit plan and compensated absences (noies 4_10 and 38)v) deprecialion of operating fixed assets (notes 4.6 and 10)
vi) amortisalion ofintangibles (notes 4.6.3 and j1)
vii) revaluarion ofixed assets and 6on banking assers acquired in salisfaction of craim (note 4.6.2,4.6.s, 10 and 12.1)
viii) impakment ofassets (note 4.4.5)
ix) employee stock oplion sch€me (nole 40)
x) fair valus measurem6nl oflinanciat instruments (note 42)
xi) other provisions and contangent tiabitities (notes 22 and 32)

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

Accounting convention

These unconsolidated financial slaternents have been prepared under the historjcal cost convenlion oxcept that certain ixed
assels and non banking assels acquired in salisfaction ot claims are statod at revalued amounls; held for kading, available
for sal6 investments ahd de vative financial instruments are measured al fair value and derned benelil obligatio; which are
carrjed at present valoe.

Funciionel and Pre3entation Curency

These unconsolidated financial slatemenls are presented in pakistani Rupees, which iE the Bank,s functional and
Presentalion curency.

The amounts are rcunded off to the neares housand rupees excepl as stated otheMise.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POL'CIES

The principal accounting policies applied in lhe preparation ot these Lrnconsolidated financial sktements are consistenl wilh
those of previous financialyear except as disclosed below in nole 4.1.
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4.1 Change3 ln accounting poticieB

4.1.1 Change in reportinq format

The SBP vide BPRD Ckcular No 2 d.t.d January 25,2018 specifed the new reporting formal tor the financial stalements ofbanking companies, The new tormat has revised the disclosure requirements oithe B-ank for lh6 yearend6d December 31,
2018 which hBs resulled in certain addilional disclosures and recta;sifications of tne items in tnese unconsolidated financialItalemenls,

4.'1.2 Surplu! / Ooficit on Revsluation of Fixecl A6setg

The-companies ordinance, 1984 (the repeared ordinance) was repeared rhrough the enacrmenl or the companjes Act,20'17 on May 30,2017. However, as direcled by the secunii;s and Exchange Corimission or pa*istan vide ctcular number23 dated ocrober 4, 2017. the ,rnanciar rep-orting raquirements oI t e comianie" ea,-zorz *er" onry ,ade appricabre rorreporting periods slarting from January 1, 2018.

The repealed ordinance specified lhe accounting trealment for the surplus on revaluation on fix6d asseis, wherein, a deflcilarising on revalualion of a parlicular properly-was to ue aa;r:steo againsith6 totat oaiance in tne surptus accounl or, if nosurplus €xhred, was to be charged to the prorit and roa" 
"""ornt "J"n 

i-p"iniJnioiln" 
""s"t. 

go*"u"r, the compan,esAct, 2017 removed lhe speciic provisions_attowing lhe above trealment inl iin"". 
" 

o"n"it 
"rising 

on @valuation of apadicular propertv is now to be accounled for in ac;ordance with tAS 16, wh;tt ietuires tna sucl oelcil i6 to be taken totl.e prollt and loss account as an rmpatmenl. .i,\ l_tl
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consequehtly the Bank has changed its policy for accounting for a dellcit arising on revatualron of fixed assels and --accordingly, any surplus/deficil arising on rovalualion of owned proporty and non-uaniing assets acqurred in salisfaction ofclaims is accounled for al individualassets level,

The effect ofthis change in accounting f,olicy, which is appiied with retrospeclive effect, is as folows:

Oecember 3'1,

2016

(Rupees in'000)
lmpact over statem6nt oftinancial position

Decrcase in unappropriated profil
lncrease in surplus on revaluation ofassels _ nel ollax

30,137
30,137

lmpacl over proft and loss account, slatefient ofcomprehensive income and statement ofcaEh flows is immateial_

4.1.3 Adoption ot IFRS 9 ,,Financlat tnstrument,

During lhe curenl year, the Bank's Bahrain, afgha-ni1an and L,AE operations have, in tine with thek respective loca yapplicable regulalory frameworks, adopted lFRa g 'Financiat r""tfl."i""iJ- 
". i""*o by the tnternationat AccountinoStandards Board (,ASB) in Juty 20.14. tn order to en.rr" 

"orpri"ni" 
*,r, ri" ;di".i; f;;;; l; i;;"::J#: il:expected. credit-'oss charge arising as a result of adoption of tFRs 9 has tu"n-i"ian"a as a generat prorision in trreseunconsolidated financial slalemenls.

As permitted by the lransjtional provisions of lFRs 9, the Bank etected not to restate comparative figures. Any adjushents tolh6 canying amounb of inancialassels and liabililies at ttre date oftransiiion wei_eiel-ognisec in the opening €tainedearnings and other rcserves ofth6 current period.

The-adoption ofthis standard by the overseas branches have resutted in addiiionalnet oflar provasioning requkement ot Rs.8'1 596 million ii respect ot prior vearwhich has been ircorporareo in ttre openlni u"]"n"" ot r"r"in"a 
"arnings, 

whire nel oftax provision reversalofRs. 63.820 million has been uooted in prort ano tos!1i'"t""ilit otor"r."". op"rations, in respect ofcurenl period,

Had lFRs 9 not been adopted by lhe Jlerseas branches. unappropriated profit, investments, advances, olher asseis anddefened rax rjabiriries as ar December 31,.2018 wourd have bee;'highe;-;; i". ii.iii,n,,r,on, n". rs.z64 milion, Rs. o s68mittion, Rs.4.89j miltion and Rs.6.947 milion, respectivety.

Measurement of Redoemabte participating Certificates - IFRS 9

During lhe current year, the adoption of IFRS 9 at Bahrain operations of the Bank has resu[ed in inveslmenls inRedeemabre parricipating cerriicates herd abroad, u"ing ."nurio;rl ;"".;rJ-"i.rri v"tu" rhrough prorir and LossAccouht". However, based on the clarific€tion received from t" s't tu- a"ii_oi'p"xisten (sap) vide their teter No.BPRD/RPD2018'16203 daled July 26 2018, such investments have blen re-porleolno measrreo rrnaer ,Avajlable for sale,inveslmenls rn these unconsolidal6d finanCial statemenls,

4,2 Cash and cash equlvalents

cash and cash equivalents comDrrse ofcash in hand, balances with treasury banks, batances wlh other banks in currenl anddeposit accounts' narionar pdze bonds, any ovedr",rn no.tro 
"""ornt. "nj 

i"ri r"njiig. t"ring ,"trriry of rhree monrhs or

4.3 Lehdin$ to/ borrowings frofi financiat insfltution!

The Bank enters into tGnsaclions o' repurchase agreements (repo) and agreements 10 resel (rev6rse repo) at cont.acredrates ror a specified period o ime. These are recorded as underi

. Sale under repurchase agre€ments

Securilres sold subject lo a reourchase,,".r,*,"'""itii 
"*,;;#;ffi6:_:.T!ll:ffi:,ffi";T[:,il':ff"""["i1:J."""f.,#Uy;?,:ffi::,:;repurchase price is accrued on a rime proporrion basi" 

"ru, 
t p"ii"a? tt 

" 
.#JJ li'o ,.u"ora"a 

"" "n "rp"n"".Purchase under G3ale agaoements

secunries purchased under aqre.ment ro mserr (reverse repo) are nor recognised rn rhese unconsoridated financialsrarements as rnvestments and rhe amount exrend€d to lhe counre, pa(y is incl;;;; i;;;;. rhe diter€nce berween .nepurchase and conrracred resare price is accrued on a ,ir" p,"p;i,".;;;";';;";';;,oJi,"l,"y ,n" 
""r,", ""d 

recorded asrncome l-rf
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lnveslment in subsidiary is cafiied at cosl less accumulated

Gains or losses on disposal of investments duriflg lhe year are laken lo lhe profit and loss accounl.tl \,
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4.4

4.4.1 Classificatlon

The Bank classifies ils investmenls as follows:

Held for trading

These are investments, which are either acquired for generalrng prolits from sho(-lerm flucluattons in markel prlces, inlerest
rate movements, dealers'margin or aro securilies included in a porifolio in which a paflem ofshortierm profi aking exists.

H6ld lo maturlty

Thes6 are inveslm€nts with ixed or determinable payments and lixed maturitaes and the Bank has the positive intent and
ability to hold lhem till maturity-

Th€se are inveslments, olher than lhose in subsidiaries and associates, which do not tal under the .hetd for lrading, and
'held lo malurily' calegories.

Associales ars all entilies overwhich the Baok has significant influence bul not conlrcl. lnvestment in associates is carried
al cost less accomulaled impairmenl losses, ifany.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiary is an entily over which the Bank has controt
impakment losses, if any.
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4.4,2 Regularwaycontractg

All purchases and sales of investmenls lhat require delivery within the time frame established by regutation or market
convenlion arc recognased at trade dale, which is the dale at which lhe Bank commils to purchase or sellthe inveslments,

4.4.3 lnitial recognition and mea3ur6ment

lnveslments aro initially recognised at tair value, Fransaction costs associaled with investments other than held for trading
securities ars included in cost oI inveslmenls, Transaction cosls on held for trading secudlies are expensed jn th6 prolit an;
loss account.

4.4.4 Subsequentmoasurcment

ln accoadancs wilh lhe requirements of Slate Bank of Pakistan, quoted secu.ities other than those classifed as ,held lo
malurily'. investment in associales and subsadiaries are subsequently remeasurcd lo markel value. Surplus and dellcil
arising on revaluation of secudlies classified as 'available for sale' is taien to e separale account shown in lhe stalement of
linancial position below equity. Surplus / (deficil) arjsing on revalualion of inveslments classified as'held for kading, is taken
to the profil and loss account. lnvestments classiied as,held lo malurity, are carried at amortised cost.

L,nquolod equily securities, excluding investment in subsidiaries and associales are valued al lower of cost and the break-
up value Brcak'up value of equity securities is calculaled wilh reference to the nei assets ofihe invesle€ company as per
lhe latest available audited linancial statemenls. lnveslmenl in sobsidiaries and associales are cafiiod al cost. less
accumulaled impatrment los6es. rf any.

4.4.5 lmpairment

lmpairmenl loss in respecl of equity securilies classilied as available for salo, subsidiarie6 and aasociates and held to
malunty is aecognised bas6d on management's assessment of objective evidence of impairment as a result ofone or more
events thal may have en impact on the estimaled tuture cash flows of lhe investments. A signircanl or prolonged declin6 in
lair value of an equily investment below its cost is also considered an objective evidenae of impai;menl. provision for
diminution in the value of debl secu ties is made as per lhe Prudentiat Regul;tons issued by the State BanI of pakistan. tn
case of impaihent of available for sale secu ties, the cumulative loss thaa has been recognised direcfly io surplus / (deticit)
on revalualion of securjties is translerred from equity and recognised in the profit and loss accoonl. Foi investmenti
classiiied as held lo maludty and investmenl in subsidia es and a;sociates, the;mpahment toss is recognised in the profil
and loss account.
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Loan3 ahd advances

Loans-and advances including nel inveslmenl in finance lease are slated net of provrsion again non-perlorming advances.Specific and general provisions against loans and advanc€s in eakisran operations ,ij rn"0" in accordance wilh therequirements ofthe Prudential Regulations issued by the stats Bank of Pakistan from time io time. The net prcvision made /reversed during the year is charged to p.oril and.loss account and accumutated provisi;n is netled-ofl against advances.Provisions perraining to ove*eas roans and advances are made in accoraance wltr tre requircments of reguraroryaurhoriries of rhe respective countries, Advances are wdflen offwhen rhere ar. no r""ti"ti" pio"p""t" or.""or"ry.

lslamic Financing end Retated A3set!

The. Bank provides rsramic rinancing and rerared assets main, through 
^,,rurabaha, 

rjarah, Diminishing Musharakah,llusharakah, Running Musharakah, salam, rstisna, Tijara and Exporr rirn"""" rri"i-sEp lslamic Expoi Refinance
::.1:I""^]l]",t-y:!i::" "nd 

sares €risins under rhese ar,"ngem"nrs are not renecieJ in irreiJnnan"i"r stare.ents as such
:::^T-1::1"1:9 ,: l!: :mount 

offacrtity acrua[y utihsed and the appropriate porrion of profit rhereon rhe rncory,e on suchnlancrngs rs recognised in accordance wirh rhe principres of rsramic shariarr The Ba;k derermines specific and generarprovisions againsl lslamc finanqng and related asseis on a prudent u".i" i" 
"""oi"n""'*it the requirements of thePrudentat Regutations issued by the SBp The..net provision mad6 /,"r"""d dr;;;i;;;;;;,s charsed to profit and Jossaccounl and accumulated provision is netted'off against lstamic tinancing and ."t"r""a 

"""!i". 
t"r"ri" nnancing and retatedaEsels are w tten off when lhere are no reelislic prospecls of recovery.

Flnenco Lea3€ Receivables

Leases where the Bank transfers subslanlially allthe risks and rewards incidentallo the ownership ofan assel are classifiedas finance leases- A rec6ivabla is re.o,tnis6i on commencement ot tease tei; 
"iin 

-".ornt 

"qu"r 
to the presont vatue ofthe mrnimum.lease paymenls, including guaranteed .esidualvatue, if any. unearneJniance income js recognised over theterm of lhe leas€, so as to produce a constanl periodic refum 

"" ffri, oufsLnaing'nel inveslmenl in lease. The Bankdetermines speciric provisions against investment in nn"n"" t""." on 
" 

prrJ"nii]siJ in accoroance *im rhe requhementsor the Prudenriar Regurarions issued bv lhe sBp. Tre net provision madJ/ilrlo"Jiirring t" v"r. i. 
"harged 

to profr andloss account and accumulaled provision is netted of{ against n6t i"u".tr"ni in ni"n;" teas6. The assets are written offwhen lhere are no realislic prospects otrecovery.

4.5.1 tjarah Assets {|FAS 2)

ljalah assels are slalec, at cost less deplecialton and are disclosed as parl of 'lstamic financing and related ass6ts,. Therental received/ receivable oo ljarah under lFAs 2 are recorded as income / revenui. ine eant charg"s dep.eciation fromthe dare of recognitbn of rjalah of respective assets ro Mustajir. rjarah ass;ts a;" aJp-r""r"r"o or", t 
"-p"rbi;i F; ,";;the slrarghl line method. lmpakment ol ljarah renlats are oelermineo in accoroan"" iriir, r," prru"nt,"t negulations of sBp.The provision for impairment of tjarah Rentals is shown as part of,lslari" nn"n"ing 

";l 
r"r"f"o 

""."t",.
4.6

4.6.1

Flxed a33€ts and dep16ciation

Capital work in progresg

Capital work-in-progress is slatod at cosl less accumulaled ,mpairment losses, if any. All expend,lure connected withspecific assets incun€d dufing insrariarion and consrruction perioi are ca.rl7;;d;;'; ild. rrhese ar6 rransfened tospecilic assels as and when assets become avajlable for use):

Property and Equipment (owned and teased)

Property and equipment are shown at iislorical, cost less accumulared depreciarion and accumuraled impairment losses, ifany, exc.pt rand and buirdings which are ca,ied at revarued amouni tesslc"r.ri"iJ o.pii"ti"" .nd impairme.t rosses.if any. Histoicat cost inctudes exponditures that are airecrty attr uuute to itre ;;il;;#;; ir"."
D-eprecjaton is charged by applying the straight_line molhod using the rate6 specilied in note 10.2 to these unconsolidatedrrnanciar sraremenrs. The depreoarion charoe for rhe yea, is catcitatea aRerilir"s i;ri 

"i;;r", ""o,ar 
varue, if any. Theresrduat vatues. usetut rives and deoreciarion nerhod are reviewed and 

"dGi;;: 
ii ;;;;;i"", al each .eportrg date.Deprecralion on addirions is charged from the dare on which rhe assers are avair;bre i; ;!; and ceases on rhe dare onwhich they are drsposed off.

f:l:1":-:lg l:r., "pairs 
are charged to income as and when incurred_ Subsequenl cosls ar6 inctuded in th6 asset,sca'yrng amounr or are recognised as a seoareie asser. as appropnare. -ri *r,"i-,t,i p.o"tr" thar furure economicbenefits assoctated w(h the item wrrtfow to the Banf ano rfre cosiol ifre item 

"1" 
U" _"""rrji .*rV.

Land and 
,,buirdings 

are revarued by professionaly quarified varuers every rhree years ro ensure rhat rhe ner carrying amounrdoes nol differ matena y from thek fair vetue. L\4 fy'
I

4.6,2
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4.6.5

4.5.3

4.6.4

4.7

4-8

A revaluataon surplus is recorded in OC! and credit6d lo the surplus on revatuation of tixed assel in eqlity However. to the
extent thal it reverses a revaluation delicil of lhe same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, the increase is
recognised in proft and loss. A rcvaluation deficil is rccognised in the statement oi profit or toss, except to the extent thal it
offsets an existang surplus on lhe same asset recognised in the asset revalualtn surplus. A tEnsfer fiom the asset
revalualion surplus lo retained earnings is made.Ior lhe differenc6 belween depreciation based on the rcvalued carrying
amounl oI the asset and depreciation based on lhe assel's original cost- Additionaly, accumutated deprcciation as aith;
revaluation.date is eliminaled against the gross cafiying amount of lhe assel and the;ei amounl is restated to lhe revalued
amount ol lhe asset.

An asset's carrying amounl is written down immedialely to its recoverable amount if the assst,s carrying amount is greater
lhan Its estimated recoverabl6 amounl,

Gains and losses on disposal of properly and equipmenl are taken to the profit and loss account except that the relaied
surplus / delicit on revaluation of operating fixed assets (net of dBterred taxationl ts trinsfeneo oirec y to unapprop atedprofil

lnlangible assets

lntangible assets having a ,inite useful life ars slat€d at cost less accumulated amortjsation and accumulated impairmentlosses, if any. such inlangible assels are amortis6d using the straight-lino mettroa ovei'itrerr estimated usetut tives. Theuseful lives and amorrjsation merhod are reviewed and adjustea, if-appropriaie 
"i""ar, 

i"poni"g dar6. rntangibre assetshaving an indelinite useful life are slaled al acquisition cost, tess impaiimeni to.", ii-1. int"igior" ,""ets ar€ assess.d forimpairment, ifany, as described under note 4.14.

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured al cost less accumutated impakment losses, if any. Goodwilt is lested for impairment annually orwhenever there is an indication of impai.menr, as p6r rhe requiremenr oi rns g6, i-p"i*"nr ot Assets. An impairmenrcharge in respect ofgoodwl is recognized through the profil and loss account_

Non-benking assets acquired in 3atisfacllon of claim

Non_banking assets acquired in satisfaclion of claims are statod at revalued amounts less accumutated deprecialionthereon. The varuation of properries acquired under rhis head is conducred reg;Ldy, ;;;" ; **. rh"r their ner carryingvalue does nol materially differ flom lheir fair value. lny surplus arising on iev"iririon oi",i"r, prop"rri"s is lransferred to
1""..^r]t':^":]|jrlr-"]:l of non-bankrng assets in other compreh6ns,;e incom". *r,ir" iny J"n"it 

",i.ing 
on revatual,on is

:l:ls.:o.ro lrotll."nd.lg"s accounl direc y. tn addtion, a[ dir6ct costs. inctuding tegat fee; and transfer costs tinted withrrans*rflng rhe r re oi rh6 property ro bank is accounted as an expense in rhe profit a;d bss account.

Non-curent assel! held forsala and dlsconllnued opeations

The Bank classifies a non_current asset (or disposalgroup) as held for sale ifit represents a sepaEle major tine ofbusinessora geographical area ofoperations or is a subsjdiary acquired exctusivelywith a view to res;;; and iis canying amount wi1be recovered principatty through a sale tEnsaction raiher ihan through co;tinuin; r";. - --- '

A non_current asset (or disposal group) held for sale ls carried at the lower of iis carrying amounl and lhe fair value lesscosts to sell rmparrmenr ross6s ar6 recoonised rhrough rh€ profl and ross ac"ornr io, lniiniria o, 
"rtsequonr 

wrire downorlhe non-curenr ass6t (or drsposar sro;p) to rak v"il" i";J";"i;; ;; ;;;."qri",i"l""'i" ,"n 
"",r" 

tess costs to selare recognised ro the extenr lhey do nor exceed the cumurarive rmpatment rosses 
'prerio'usty 

recoroea. a non-cuffent asselis not depreciated white ctassifed as hetd for sate orwtite pan otaaisposatj.rp j"""ii,J!" 
f,"fa fol.""f".

Resullently. all assets and liabilities of assels held for sal6 are presented as separate line ilems on stalement of financialposition. The post tax resulls ofsuch operations are presenled separately jn lhe piont ana toss account.

Eorrowinga / DeposiE and thstrcost

a) Borrowings /deposils are recorded al the proceeds received,

b) Bonowing cosrs are recoqnised as an exoense in rhe period in which these are ihcurr.d using efrecrive mark-up /inleresl rale method lo lhe exlent Ihat thev are not directiy att butabte lo ah; 
""fulirio,ioio, "ons."rion 

of quatifying
assers. Bofiowing costs thar are direcfly attribulabre to lh; acquisition, consrruJ]on oi proalraion or a quatifying assei(one lhat lakes a subslanlial period of time to get ready lor use or sate) are capit"li"J 

"! 
p"n ottn" 

"o"t 
ofthat asset.

v\14
t
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4.8.1 Deposits - lslamic Banking

Deposits are generated on the basis of two modes i.e_ Oard and lvtodaraba.

Deposits taken on Oard basis are classified as 'Currenl Accounl' and Deposils g6neBled on lvodaraba basis are classili€d
as 'Savings Accounl' and 'Fixed Deposit Accounts,.

No profit or loss is passed on lo cufiont account depositors.

Profils realised in investmenl pools are distribut€d in pre-agreed proit sharing ratio.

Rab'ull\,'laal (cuslomer) share is distributed among deposilors according to weightages assigned at tho inception ot profit
calculation period.

Mudanb (Bank) can drstribute rts share ofprotit to Rab-ut-t\,taat upto a spe;ified percentage of its profit.

Proits are distribuled from lhe pool so lhe deposilors (remunerative) only bear the risk ot assets in the poot du.ing lhe profit
calculation period.

Asset pools are created al the Bank's discrellon and lhs Bank can add, amend, transfer an asset to any othar poot in the
interesls of lhe deposit holders,

ln case ol losr in a pool dufng the proft calculation period, the loss is dislributed among the depositorc (emunerative)
according to their latio of lnvestments.

4.9 Subordinated loang

Subordinaled loans are initially recorded al the amounl of proceeds receaved. Mark-up accrued on subordinaled loans is
recognised separalely as part ot other liabilities and is charged to the prolit and loss account over the period on an accrual

4,10 Statr retirement/ EmployGe benefits

a) Defined bonefit plan

The Bank operates an approved funded gratuity sch6me, administered by the lrustees, covering eligjble employees whose
period of employm-'nt with Bank is five years or more. Conlributions to the fund ar6 made on the basis of actua at
recommendalions. Proiected unit Credit Melhod is used for the acluarial valualion. Aclua al gains and losses are
recognised immedialely in other comprohensive income.

b) Oefined contribution ptan

The Eank operates an approved provident fund scheme for all its regular permanenl employees, adminislered by the
Trustees- Equal monthly conlribulions are made both by lhe Bank and its employees to the fund at lhe rate ofg.33% of the
basic salary in accordance with lhe lemts oflhe scheme.

c) Compensatedabsencss

The Bank recognises the liabililyfor compensaled absonces in respect ofemployees in th6 period in which lhese are eamed
up to the barance sheer date, The prcvision has been r€cognised on the basis oi actuarial rocommendations.

d) Employe6 Stock Option Schem€

The Bank has granted share oprions ro irs emproyees under the Bank's Emproye. stock options scheme (Esos) , as
approved by the shareholders and sEcP. Under th6 scheme, th6 employees c;n subscribo lo new ordinary shares for
which options have been granted to them undor lhe scheme upto the peri;d of 2019. A6 per the schemB lhe enti{ements
and excercise price are subject to adjuslments because of issuance of;ghl shaes and bonus issues.

The grant dale fair value of equity sellled share basodraymenls to emptoyees, determined as option discount as allowed by
Public Companies (Emptoyee Stock OFtion Schem€) Ruies 2001, is recognizea as e;proyee compensation expense on a
straight ,ine basis over the vesting period wilh a consequent credil to 

-equity 
as emptoyee stock option compensation

reserve' The deferred employee stock oPtion cost is shown as a deduction irom employee slock opljon compensalion
reserve. Option d;scount means lhe excess of market price o, the share at lhe date of grant Of an option under a Scheme
over erercise p ce ofthe option.

When an uovested oplion lapses by virtue oJ an employee not conforming to the vesling condilaons after recognjtion of an
employee compensation expense jn the profil and loss account, such emiloy€e compensation expense is r;rsed in theproiil end loss accounl equal to lhe amortized portion with a coresponding ;ffect to lmptoyee stock option compensalion
reserve equalto the un amortized porlion,

Wh€n a vesled option lapses on expiry oflhe exercise period, employee compensation expense aheady recogoized in the
profit or loss is reversed with a cofiesponding reduction to employeesiock oplton compensalion reserve.

r.4 y
t
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4.11

4.11.1

4.11.2

4. t1.3

4.11.4

4.11.5

4.12

4.12.1

4.12.2

When lhe options are exercised, employee stock oplion compensation reseNe retaling lo these options is lransferrcd lo
share capilal and share premium. An amounl equrvalent to lhe face value of retaled shares is transferred to share capital.
Afly amount overand above lhe share capilalis transfsrred to share premium.

Forelgn cufiencies

Functional and prcsentation currency

Items included in lh€ unconsolidaled financial statemenls are measured using the currency ol th6 primary economic
environmenl in which the Bank operate!.

Transaction3 and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are translaled into Pakislani rupees at the exchange rat6s prevaiting on the transaction
date, Foroign exchange gains and losses resulting from the seltlement of such transaclions and from th; translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are rccognised in lhe profia and

FoMard conlracts relating to foreign currency deposils are valued at foMard rates applicable lo the respective maturilles of
th€ relevant foreign exchange contract. Tho foMard cover received / paid on foMard purchase conlracts relating to foreign
currency deposils are realased / charged dtectlyto profit and loss account.

Foreign opelations

Assets and liabililies of tor6ign operations are tran6lated into rupees at lh6 exchange rale prevailing at the reporting date.
The resulls offoreign operalions arc translated at average rate ofexchange for the y;ar.

Translatlon galns and loss63

Taanslation gains and losses arising on revalualions of net investment in foreign opBrations are taken to Exchange
Translallon Reserve in lhe statemonl of comprehensiv6 income, These are recognised in lhe profit and loss account ;n
disposal.

Commitments

CommitmenlsJor oulslanding foMard foreign exchange contracls are disclosed at conlracted rates. Contingent liabilities /
commllmenls for letters of credit end letters ofguarantoe denominated in foreign currencies ar6 expressed in rupee terms al
the exchange €les ruling on the reporting date,

Revenue recognillon

Revenue is recognjsed to the extenl that Ih5 economic benefits associated with a transaction will flow to the Bank and the
revenue can be reliably measured,

Advancea and lnvestment3

lncome on performiflg advances and debl securjties is recognizod on a lime proporlion basis as per the lerms of the
contract, Where debt secu lies are purchased at a premium or discount, such premium / discount is amo.tised lhrough the
prcfit and loss accounl over the remaining malurity ofthe d6bt security using the effective yietd method.

Income recoverable on classiied advances and inveslments is recognized on a receipl basis, lncome on rescheduled /
reslructured advances and investments is recognized as pemitted by SBP regulations or by the regulalory aulhorilies ofthe
countries where the Bank operates.

Mu.abaha income is recognised on defened income basis,

Lease financlng

lncome from lease inancing is accouoted for using lhe financing method. Under this method, the unearned lease income
(defined as the sum ol tolal lease rentals and estimated residual value less the cost of the teased assets) is deferred and
taken to income over the tem of lhe leaso so as lo produc6 a c6nstanl p6riodic rale of relum on the outstanding net
investment in lhE lease. Gains or losses on temination of lease contracls ar6 recognised as income when these are
realised. Unrealised lease income and cther fees on classilied lees€s are recognised on a receipt basis.

ljarah income is recognised on an accrual basis as and when lhe rentals becomes due.

4.12.3 Non Markup / lnten*t lncome

Fee, commission and brokerage incomo are accounled for on receipt basis,

Dividend income is recognised atthe tinre when the Eank's right to receive the dividend has been established

Olher income is recognised on accrual basis, ,W +t
I

I
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4.13 Taxation

4.13.1 Current

4.13.2 Deterred

1.14

lncome tax expense comprises current and deferred lax. lncome lax expense is recognised in the prolit and loss accounl
dxcepl to th€ e(ent that it relates to ilems recognised directly in olher comprehensivs income in which case it is .ecognised
in slalemefll of comprehensiv6 income.

Provision for current laxation is based on laxable income at lhe cur€nl rates ot taxalion after taking into consideEtion
available lax credit and rebate, if any, The charge lor currenl lax also includes adjustmenls, where considored necessary
relaling to prior years, which arises from assessmenls / developmenls du ng lhe year.

Defered tax is recognised using the balanco sheet liabilily method on all temporary differencos arising betw€Bn the carrying
amounls of assets and liabiliti€s for ,inancial repo(ng purposes and amounts used for the taxaiion puDoses Theamountoi
deferred tax provided is based on the expecled mannor of realisation or settlement of the carrying amounls oI assels and
liabilities using the tax rates enacled or substanlively enacted al the reporting data. A deferred tax asset is recognised only
lo tho extenl lhat it is probable lhal fulure taxable profits will be available and the credits can be utilised. Deferred tax asset
is reduced to the extent lhal il js no longer probable thal the retated tax benefits wi be reatised.

Deterred tar liability is not recognised in respecl of laxable lemporary diff6ren6es associated with exchange translation
reservos of foreign branches, wher€ th€ timing oI thE reversal of lh6 temporary differences can be conlrollod and it is
probable thal the temporary differences witt not reverse in the foeseeable future.

lmpairment

The ca.rying amount ofassels is reviewed at eech reporting date lo determine whelher lhere is any indicalion of impaiment
ol any asset or group of assels, lf any such indication exisls, lhe recoverable amounl of such assels is estimaled and
impaimenl losses are recognised immedialely in lhe unconsolidated financial statements. The resulting impairment loss is
taken lo the profit and loss accounl excepl tor impakment loss on revaluod assets, which is adjusled against relaled
revaluation suplus to the extent that the impairment loss does nol exceed lhe surplus on revaluation oflhat asset,

4,15 Provislon for claims under guarantee3

Provision for guarantee claims and other off balance sheet obligations is recognised when intimated and reasonabte
certainly exists for the Eank to seltlo the obligation. Expecled recove es are €cognised by debiting the customer,s account.
Chargeto lhe proftt and loss accounl is stated net-of expected rccoveries,

4.16 OtherProvisions

Olher provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present, legal or construclive, obligation as a resull of past eveols, il
is probable that an oulflow of resources will be requked lo settle the obligation and a reliable estimale olthe amount can be
made, Provisions are reviewed ar each reporring date and are adjusted to reflect rhe cur€nt best eslimate.

4.17 ContingentLiabilities

contingent liabililies are not recognised in the stalement of linanciat position as they are possible obtigations where it hasyel to be conlirmed whether a liability, which will ullimately result in an outiow ;f economic benefits, wilt arise. tf the
probabjlity ofan outflow of economic resources under contingenl liabilily is considered remote, it is not disclosod.

4.18 Off-sotting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are off-set and lhe nel amounl reporled in the unconsotidaled llnancial stalemenls
only when there is a legally enforceable right to sel-off the recognised amount and th6 Bank inlends either to setl|e on a nel
basis, or to realise the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. lncome aod expense ilems of such assets and
liabilities are also otf-sel and lhe nel amounl is reported in the financial statements,

4.19 Derivative ftnancial instrumonta

oerivalive Jinancial instrumenls are iniljally recognised at fak value on the date at which the deivalive contract is entered
inlo and subsequenlly remeasured at fair value using appropriate valualion lechniques. All derivalive ,inancial inslruments
are caffied as assets wher6 fair value is positive and as liabilities where fair value is negativg. Any changes in the fair value
o, derivative ,inancial instruments are laken lo the prolil and toss account . L/

./'l r
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4,20 Acceptancss

Acceptances comprise underlakings by the Bank to pay bills of exchange drawn on custom6rc. The Bank expects most
acceplances lo be simultaneously setlled wilh the reimbursemenl from the cuslomers. Acceplances ar6 accounted for as on
balance sheet lransactions.

4.21 Dlvldond and appropriation to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves afi€r lhe reporting date, excspt appropriations which are r€quired und6r the.taw, arc
recognised in lhe Bank's unconsolidated financiat statements in th6 year in whtch these are approved.

4.22 Earnlngs per3hare

The Bank p.6senls basic and dilut6d earnings per share (EPS) for its sharehotderc. Basic EpS is catcutated by dividing theprofit or loss attributable lo ordinary 
.shareholdeE of the Bank by the weighled average number of ordinary strires

outstanding during lhe year. Diluled EPS is delermin€d by adjusting th6 prolit;r bss all butable to ordinary sha;eholders
and lhe weighled average number of ordinary shares outslanding 6r the elfects of all ditutive potentiat ord;ary shares, if

4.23 Segment reporttng

operating segments a.e .eported in a manner consisl€nt with the internat reporting structure of the Bank. segmentedpertormance is repo(ed to the senior management of the Eank on monthly basis ior the purpose of skaregic ;ecision
making and performance management.

4.23.1 Busine33segments

Retallbanktng

This includes loans, deposits, trading aclivily, weallh management and other banking transactions with retait, individuat
customers, commercial and small and middle sized customers of the Bank. product suit€ offered lo individual
customers includes credit cads, aulo loans, housing inance and personal loans,

Corporate banking

This comprises of loans, deposils, proiect linancing, trade linancing, investmenl banking and other banking activities
with Bank's corporale and public sector cuslomers.

Tr6asury

This segment includes liquidity managemenl aclivilies canied out through bonowing, tending, money markel, capital
market and merchanl banking operalons. The inveSlmenls of the EanLprimarily towards govemmenl securities and
risk menagement activities via use of foMard conlracls & derivatives are r6ported ir6re.

Dlgttat benking

This segmenl includes branchless banking accounts, deposils and lending products, digitat channels (inctuding ATtvts,jnrernet bankiflg, cal centre and arta app), corporate, G2p & .MME portf;rio (jncruding E.BI, Brsp, payrol sjutions),
digital payments and digitat products.

lslamic banking

This sogment pertains to ful scale tstamic Banking operatjons oflhe Bank.

lnt€mallonal operations

This segmeot includes amounls related lo Bank's overseas operations, namely, commerctal banking activities ,nEangladesh, Atghanislan, United Arab Emirates and wnotesate Uankrng aciives in tie xingOom ot Aalrain.

Oth6rs

This inctudes the head office retated activilies, and allolher activities not tagged to lhe segments above.

4.23.2 ceoqraphicats.gments

The Bank operates in three geographical regions being:
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Note

5.1

5.2

5.3

5-4

2018 2017
----'(Rupees ln 000)---..-.

5 CASH AND BALANCES wlTH TREASURY BANKS

ln hand

11,801,703

s,7,t1,022

10,464,270

4,031,567

Wath Stat6 Bank ofPakistan in

Local currency curent accouni

Foreign currency cunent accounl

Foreign curency deposit account

31,122,141

4,413,423

10,931,812

24,767,491

6,998,393

1f,s12,725 14,495,837

46,467,376 38,693.837

3.478,144 1,959.112

14,931,225 15,208,850

18,230 23,799

82,407,700 70,381,435

With olher central banks in

Foreign currency currenl account

Foreign currency deposit account

2,733,265

744,479

1,403,720

555,392

5.6

56

Wilh Nalional Bank ol Pakistan in tocalcu(ency currenl accounl

Pdze bonds

5.3

5.2

5.1

5.5

5_6

This includes cash in transit amounting to Rs. 77.743 million (2017: Rs. 7.001 million).

This includ6s cesh in transit amounting lo Rs. 478.410 mitlion (2017i Rs. 4.230 milion).

This includes statulory liquidity reseNes meintained with th6 SBP under Section 22 of the Bankinq Companies Ordinance,
1962.

As per BSD Circular No. I dated Decemb6r 3, 2007, cash reserue 0f 5% is required to be maintained with the stale Bank
ofPakisian on deposits held underlhe N€w Foreign Cunency Accounts Scheme (FE-2S d€posits).

Special cash reserve of 15% is rcquired to be maintained wilh the State Bank of Pakistan on FE-25 deposits as specified in
BSD Circular No. 14 dated June 21,2008. Proft rates on these deposils are tixed by SBp on a monlhty basas. These
deposils carry ma*up rates ranging Lom 0.56% to 1.35% per annum (2017: 0. O6ok 10 O.37ok\.

These represent deposils wilh olher centralbanks to meetlheir minimum cash r6serves and capital requirements pertaining
to lhe overseas opeGrions of rhe 8ank. The deposit accounrs carry markup o.62yo ro 1.71ya e617t o.3i* to t.ot,/"1.

/1h
tr
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6.1

6.2

7.1.1

1.1.2

7.1.3

Outside Pakistan

ln currenl accounl

ln deposit accounl

t8 BANX ALFAL.IH LIMITEO

2018 2017

-----(Rupees in 000)-----

432,345 51S,902

tl

0

tl

0

0

0

E

t3

6 BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS

ln Pakastan in cu(enl accounl

Note

6.1

6.2

2,184,134

1,25A,476

1,301,341

1,932,711

3,U2,610 3,234,a52

____!.9I1f9!_ ___U!lg!l_
This includes amounl held in Aulomaled lnvestmenl Plans- The Bank is enlitled to earn inleresl Lom the corespondent
banks at ageed upon rates when the balance exceeds a specified amounl.

This includes pracem.nt of funds gen6rared rhrough foreign currency deposirs scheme (FE-25) and non-contracruar
deposits al interest €tes ranging from 1 .OO% to 3.OO% per an;um (201 7:- j .00% to 8.40% per annrjmy.

7 LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Call/ clean money lendings
Repurchas6 agreement lendings(RevEB6 Repo)
Bai I\,4uaijal receivable with other tinancial inslitutions

Lessiexpected credit loss - overseas branihes
Lending to Financial lnstitulions - net of-prgvision

1_1.1

7 _1.2 & 7.3

7.l.3

15,166,288

37,214,313

9,8't1,504

20,255,936

11,848,536

16 791 356

48,895,828

62.1f2.2A7 48,895,828

52,r92. t05 48,895,828

62,192,105

(19,818)

!
I
I
l:l
14

EI

U

rhese represent rendings to rinanciar'instirutions at inlerest rales ranging from o.5o% ro 9.90% per annum (20r7: 1.5% to
9.75% per annum) having melurities irpto Jun6 20j9 (2017: March 2OiS):

These represenl shorl lerm lending lo financial iostilutions against inveslmenl securilies. These carry martup rates aanging
from 3.00% to 10.45% per annum (2017: 5.8% ro 6.2% per a;num) with maturities uptoianu-ary zOtS 12017: Jone 2O1Al.

These rcpresent Bai Muaijal agreements enlered inlo with stale Bank of pakistan (sBp) / other commercaat banks_ Therares.of rerurn rang6 from 9.90% to 10.05% per annum (201715.71% lo 5-806/o p"r 
"nnrri "nJ 

tn"." 
"r" 

due ro malur. byIt4arch 2019 (2017: March 2018).

Partlculars of lending - grGs

ln foreign cuftencies
55,400,871

6,791,234
43,346,538

5,549,290

U

L]

L]

I
I
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7.3 S.currttos h.td as cotr.terat .gatrst L.ndlnE to ltn.nctat In!(tu on,

B.nk

2lJ1A

Pakisl6n tn!$lme.t Bonds

E INVESTMEXTS

8,1 lnv..tm.n6 bytyp.:

2011

.______-__..___.(Rup.$ 
In'000)-.----.-_.-.------__...-

24,75f,061 - 18,757,067 5,593,265 5,593,265
8 1.353 6

3f 11

(42,1061 11,524,a6f 22AA7,2a3

r36,5tt,9t1 t572,095) {3,&7) i45,30!,Ll 329,170.160 (657174) 3S01332 332414,363

{635,635) (392,156)

({r,911}

({J,253) (.3,25t)

31 2f,

H.ld-io.t .dho !.curtu..
F.d.6lGovoBme Securl6s

Ma.ket TGasury Bi[s
Pakislan tnvestmenl Bonds

Fully paid up ordihary shar* / untt

Ove rs6a s gon& . Sov€EiOn

Awll.bl6foE.t. r4udrb.
FodeEr cov.hhont Secu I ri.i

Pakistan tnv4rT6nt Bond3

Govomm.it ol PakisrEn Sukuk3
Govommeit otpakbhn EuE Bond.

iurrypatd up oidin.ry shEEs. Lkt.d
Fu ly paid up odinary rhaGc, Un BtBd
PEleenc€ Shaca . Lisr6d
P€reBnc. ShaEr , Untbr.d

Non Govohment Oebt S*udi€s
Tem Fin.n@ C.nirietat

Ovec6.r Bond. - Sov€eiqn
Ov€6€as aon& - OtheE
R edo.ma b € Pa nicipEtin o c6ni6cate3

Held.lo{.tldry locurtfl e.
F.d6El Govomme.l S@untio3

Pakiltan inv€!rmed aond!
Gov€mno orPakishn Eurc aonds
Otl6r F6d€r.t Govemh€nt Seudri6,

Non Gov.hme D.btSeurti63
Tem Flnan€ Cenfcate3

lv.Bear 8..dr . Sov€,eion
Ov66€.s Sonds - Orhe6

t5,723,033

103,336

1,367,353

2,352.923

(22,3A3)

(5r,66O
(1

{96,510)

(10,902)

146.,2111

o20,26a)
(1

,12,25!

l12,Or1
323.930

{49,426)

lz23,Bf1

15,605,3ri

3,061,160

5,002,602

0,923,5!a

2,362,923

3626,230

1

(s

(25,000)

(32,6s0)

Ar.ocr.t.. B I j
Sub.ldl.rl..

G€n€€t p@v .ion and exp.cied @dd t@9

26,2a0,a90

4.122,21a

524,246

2,539,965
tsu,26al
fti.!3rl

:l

26,230,0t0

1,'122,416

2,544,566

690,721

(s24,266)

1,3r6,3:(, 1,316,3a3

337,512

t]

il

t_

L

I

,02.699

(13,261)

(r3,17at

122,1221

6,151

143,322

(r1436)

279,175,21a

\+1
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Particulars ofAss€t3 and Liabilltle3 of Sub3tdiaries and Associate3

SUBSIOIARIES

Alfalah Securitie3 (Prlvate) Limtted

Percenlage ot holding: 97.91o/a (2017t 97.91%)
Counlry of incorporalion: Pakislan

Daie ofun-audited financiatstatemenlsi Oecember 31,2018 (December 31, 2Ot7)

Liabililies

(Loss) / prcfit for th6 year
Tolal comprehensive income

Alfalah cHP lnvesim€nt Managemont Limited

Percenlage ofholding: 40.22% 1201714O_22a )
Counlry ol incorporaiion: Pakistan

Dale of un-audited linanciat statements: December 3j,2018 (December 31,2017)

Liabililies

Tolal comprehensive income

2018 2017

----'(Rup6es in 000)"----

ASSOCIATES

Alfalah Insuranc6 Limited

1,054,233
206,295
469,443
't 54,899
.r65,080

947,545
254,687
539,105
164,739
158 466

3,'t87,385
2,fl5,633

112,924
70,653
17,335

3,150,483
2,096,066

187,990
123,040
69,232

567,2r9
455,395
'r30,807

(99,662)
(99,662)

929j24
697,447
'192,868

19,537
19,537

14,994,221
9,607,747
1,184,593

469,955
469 955

Percentage of holding:3ook (20.17 3Oo )
Country ot incorporalion: Pakistan
Date of un-audited linanciat statements: December 3j,2O1g (December 31,2017)

Liabililies

Profit afrer laxation forthe year
Total comprehensive income

Sapphlre Wind Power Company Limtted

Percenlage of hotding: 30o/6 \20j7:3Oa l
Counlry of incorporation: Pakistan

Dale of un-audiled financiat statementst December 31,2018 (December 31,2017)

Liabilities
Revenue for the six monlhs period
Profit for the six monlhs period - afrer lax
Tolal comprehensive income

TrlconBoston Consulting Corporation (privat6) Limited

Percentage of hotding: 9.25% (2017: 9.25o )
Counlry of incorporalion I Pakistan

Dale of uh-audiled tinanciat statemenls: December 3j,2OjS (December 31,2017)

Liabilities

Prolit / (Loss) forlhe six months peiod - after lax
Tolal comprehonsive income / (toss)

,15,886,719

'10,038,327

1,570,653
837,9t7
837,917L

L]
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L

til

45,805,961
38,350,514
2,085,328

365,622
355,622

24,253,943
16.107,746

161
(35,196)
(ss,196)
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8.4 Quality ofAvallabl6 forSals Securities

' Details regarding qualily ofAvailable for Sale (AFS) securities are as foltows

Federal Gdvemment Securltles. Government guarantsed
l\,lark€l Treasury Bills
Pakislan lnveslment Bonds
Gov€rnment of Pakistan Sukuks
Government of Pakistan Euro Bonds

Listed Companieg

Ferlilizer

Unlisted Compani63

114,893,t51 162,885i001
26,490,800 108,088,932
15,728,083 34,284,664
2,440,076 2,2A1,177-lE5;5E6;iji- _36i;5307r

123,842
'|,752,247

17,909
812,564
167,O71
444,315

2018 2017
Cost

----(Rupees in 000)----

15,000
835,627
290,839

Ordlnary Share3
Automobile Parts & Accessodes
Cement
Chemicals
Oommercial Banks
Engineering
Fertilizer

lnvestmenl Banks
Oil and G.s Exploration Companies
Oiland Gas l\,,lalk6ling Companies
Pharmaceulicals
Power Generalion & Distribution
Roal Estale lnveslment Trusl

.t69,58.1

't,224,060
17,909

,1,596,590

333,633
308,635

92,708
't5,000

1,754,619
534,549
202,734
749,175
372,093

855,961
457 843

7,371,290 5,773,258

108,835 108,835

___J,480725_ 5,882,093

2018 2017
Break up valu6

as at
Cost Breskup valu€ Co6t Breakup value

Rup6e3 ln'000)----------------

Ordlnary Sharea
AGP Pharma Limited "
AlHamara Avenue (Private) Limiled
Pakistan Export Finance Guarantee

Agency Limited
Pakistan Mobile Communication Limited
Pakislan I\ro(gage Refinanc€ Company Limlled
Society for worldwide lnterbank Financial

Telecommunicaiion

June 30, 2010 50,000 47,600
256,212

50,000
212,544
47,600

Dec 31. 2017 25,000 27,744

107 055 111

" Represenl securities listed during lhe year and hence reclassified lo 'listed companies'

,1,095 11,754 4,095 11,754
382,055 413,476 35

25,000 27,700

5,725
22,235

300,000

286
53,150

300,586

5,725
22,235
12,240

286
33.752
12.299

June 30, 2010
Dec 31, 2017
Dec 31,2017

Dec 31. 2016

Prel6rencs Shares
Trust lnveslmenl Bank Limilod

,17

60 37 507 345 935
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Non Government Debt Sscurltles

Listed

Calegaisecl based on long tem rating by Credit Rating Agency

BAiIK ALFALA!{ LIMITED

I
Il

ll

2018 2017
Cost

----{Rupees in 000)-..--

- BBB+, BBB, BBB.
. BB+, BB, BB.
- B+, a, B-
- CCC and below

. BBB+. BBB,888.

. BB+, BB,88.
- B+, B, B,
- CCC and below
' unrated

- BBB+, BBB, BBB,
- BB+, BB, BB-
- B+, B, 8-
- CCC and below
- Unrated

99,860

550,000
99,980

100,000
ss,880

!
0

E

m

I

Unllsted

Calegoised based on long tem rating by Crettit Rating Agency:

,t 745 2,185
651,765 301.925

4,444,{40 2,600,000

't,183,003

____!.9:2t13
2,158,931
4,758,931

Fo.eign Securitl6s

Gov6mment Securitias

2014 2017

I
tl

B

U

U

U

rl

tl

t-

----------------(Rupe€ tn,0OO
Co3t Rating

552,040 B+

552.040

Cost Rating

Abu Dhabi Govemment lnt Bond 2027
$audi lntemalional Bond 2026
Kingdom ol Bahrain Sukuk

685,183 AA
672,170 At

Non Govomment Debt S€curitiee

LJnlisted

1.357.353

2018 2017
--.-(Rupees ln 000)----

Categoisad based on long tein nting by Crcdit Raling Agency

8,040,3't4
1,106,S03

2,362,923 1,133,659
9,759,890

977,192
5,396,168
1,209,742
1,043,129

ttl-
1r,510,140



T T EaiiamlmIEFEimiiEo

I1

tl

I
I

I
I
E

E

il

I
I
u

B

I

8.5 ParticulaB relatlng to Held to Maturity securi es are as folows

Fed6ral Govemment Securities - covernment Euaranteed

[,,larket Treasury Bills

Pakistan lnvestment Bonds

Pakistan Euro Boods

Other Fedelal Governmenl Securilies 4,122,215

30.645.216 33.301 968

2018 2017
Co3t

----{Rupe$ in 000)----

- 1,470,741

25,280,990 31,637,988

243,011 193,239

1,041,670

566,667

190,230

1.4't 5 662l

1,O41,670

1,133,333

254,918

2,192.155

4,622,076

Non Govemment Debt Securitie3

unlisted

Categoised based on long t6m nting by Credit Ratjng Agency

- Unrated

3,214.231

Foreign Securitl63

Government Socurities

Bangladesh covernment Bonds

Slate of Qatar

Non Government O€bt Securifie3

Unllstsd

2018 2017
Cost Rallng Co3t Rating

Rupees in'000)--------

4,945,043

547 126

____1492,169

2018 20a7
----.--€ost.------

----(Rupe$ in 000)----

690 721 548 143

690,721 548 '143

f,497,232

688,715

Unrated L,nrated

____gJ!!EZ_

- BBB+, BBB, BBB-

8slThe market value of securities classified as heldlo-maludty as at oecember 31, 2o1E amounted to Rs. 40,750 miljon(December 31,2017 : Rs.43,844 milion) 
-Ly kI't]

ll

tl

t
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EAII'K ALFAIAH'LIXIITE9

20t8 2017 2018 2o11 2017

Loans ca3h cEdils run.mg l5.an.es, etc
Is am c i.3nciig and @lated assets
gils drscou.red and purchased

91
9.2

402,335,420

85,660,962t

333 594,696

55,284,996

17,234,834 15,904,954

1,393,959 1,595,173

9.5

419,670,254

07,0!4,923
349499650

56 S3o 169

Prcv sion agarsl edvances

111
499,570,3S4 399,603,091 13,322,271 17,578,841 51A3r3,165

1673,3141

(15,813,399) (15,683,771) (15,333,399)

1373.314t

(15683771)

1673,314) (842 737) (15,383,399) (15,683,7?1) (16,756,713) (16 526 508)

393 760 351 501

2ll,335 3,475,619 925.43s

Advances - net of provis o.

liclLd* Nel lnveslmentin Financs lease 3. d sctosed bele

20l3

1,a03,651

594,353

2,030,833

998,435 13,3,17 r,606,135 370194
2,089,1s3

911,824
3,0849s4

1 32211A

70316

M nihlm l@se paymenls

Financial charges,or turure p€nods
1,99a,00t 3,029,268 54,682 5,061,95a 1295679 3,000,977

t254.$5r

PEsenl value ol m nimuh

9.3 Pa.rlcol.rl or 6dv.nc.! (cro$)

2.710.2A3 la.6t2 4.602.2!ta 715 4,090,945

' '" j*,1::"lTl:!:,:l-:l"unr orris_82 e5 m'rron 12017 tu. 25 11 mLrion) beino Emproye€ L@n raci ies alow€d ro ciribank, N.A pakdans emproyees
::5iT:-11:1 l*:i -:l bv rh6 Ban[ or we,e sE.red_ariesh, und€r a speirc .mnsemenl qecLned berwen lh€ sank and ciub.nk. N A, pakisian: rh;saE aGnoemenr rs slbrecr ro cer€ n Eraralions .3 sp&ifod vd6 sBp Ler* BpRo/BRo/cir2o1z21o89 daled sepremb€r rl,2o17

rhe said arangmenl coveB onlv exist ng emplovees ol cilbank, N.a, Pak sra., and the EraxalioB al@en by ih€ sBp ar€ o. conti.u.tba3 s, bur slbjeclto re! ew by SBft BtO and OSED depa.rmenrs These oans ery maaup al lrr" or"" ."g,g l o; i oO"Z lo zO aOX pOt z, S.lo* i. i,O ari%i ,ir$
'ralu.lesuo 

ro Deemo 2038t2ot7 oe.emod ]122,

g,2 rhese €proseds;nancrng and eEi€d assers praced u.der shanah pemrssibre modes and presenled in nol6annexu6l

2018 2017

---{R!pe6 itr 000)--

493,634,332 392,296138
2r,758,633 24,633 794

Advances rcrldg Rs. 18,622 dirLion (2017: Rs. 17,579 m rion){h ch hav6 ben praced onder.o.-peiom n! stalos as d.ra ed berow:

.-__{Ruer. r.

,101932

6

L]

u

L]

L

I

Olher Assets Espeialry Me.uo.ed 1U,121
3,0r,658

552,920

3,330
762,674
235,663

84,960 4 979
1 359 006 33a 542
r,854,513 1,245152

Not past dle bur mpared

713 977
15,519,1t3 17,

8 719

15

tr"'

42,tAl
104,384
34t,743

3.536
46.637

3,ta,0:13 303,018 258,339
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9.s I rntulaE of provr3lon agaln3i advanc63
-2--

15,663,77r

EAI'I( ALFALAtrIIIUITEr,

hpactol adopuon of IFRS I
16 366 993 175 961 11 ',142 964

376.385 2,336 376,121 (510357) 65171 {445186)

96 (239,269) (239,269) (17s,036) (175 036)

15,883,399 873,314 16,756,7,11 15,683771 842,737 16,526,s06

-{Rup.B 
ln 0OO)--

95 239,269 175.086

239,259 175 046

130,555 113 7al

108.703

23S,269 175,066

aL,ta7 16,526,506

25,297

3,007,907 269,364 3,277,271

i2,696,550t

2 234,902

t2.741.249\

156,384

(91213)

2 387,246

12.432.472)

Amovnls wilten olf
Amounls ch&sed ofi- aqricullu.e financinq

(179,305) (r79,305)

(59_964)

(72056) o2.056)

l]03 030)

9,5,1 P.rtlcula6 olprovialon ag.ln3t.dv.ncea

i5.333.399 373.3i4 16

soErflc G...d rdr smlnc G.n...r Tour
RrP... h '000'l-----

14,r07,026

i.176.373

698,705 15,,105,731 14,800991 701,035 15,502,026

9.5,3 GeneBlprcvision lncludes prcvision againsl consume. loans beino mainlaned al an 3mounl equallo 1% or rhe tully securcd perbming portto io and 4% or
lhe u.secued penom.9 podolo ProvisonaqalnslSEpontdoisbeinOmainiainedalanamou.t6quallol%aq.instlns4uedpe.fomlngSEpodorioas
reqlied by tfe Prude.lial Resulat ons ssued by lhe Slate Bank otPakislan. Generalprcvis on also includes povision held ar ove.seas bEnches to meer lh6
reqlkem€nts ol regllalory aulhontus ol lhe .esp€cli!€ counine. in which overs.5s banch6 opeEl$.

9-5.2 The addllionalprcnt a.isi.g tom availing the 6@d sa 4 valu. (FSV) bo.6ft - nel oltax.l D@mber 31,2018 which is not avarrabrdlo.dstnbution as e rher
iash or3lockdividend ro sha.eholde.v bonus ro enrploye3 anounted toRs.30106mirion (2017: & 29.899 m llion)

9.5.4 Exposuresmolnins lo Rs. Nil(2017: Rs 3.421 billDn) r6lalinO to cenain non pedomino taciliti.s ol Porer Holdlng (PnvaG) Limited, whchisgua€nteed by
lhe Govemneniol Pak slan had not been classined as non-perlom n9 puEuanl lo a eLdation qiven by SBP in lhis respel

9.5.5 Alhough lhe Bank has made provision againsl its non-pedormino porllolio as pe.lhe cai€qory ol claesifi€lion ol ihe l@n, lhe Bank holds entorce.bl€
@lraleral in the evsl oI re@very lhrcuoh liligalio.. These seudliB @mpnse ol chaE€ againd vanous la.gb6 sssEls ol lho boro*€. including land,
buidi.g and machinery, slock in lEd€ elc

S6 'PARTICULARS 
OF WRITE OFF3

9.6.1 Againsi Provisions

Di.etly chargsd to Prcfl E Lass sccount

9.6.2 Wnte Ofs ol Rs. 500,000 and abov€

wnl6 o(3 .l Bde Rs. 500 000

9,7 OEIAILS OF LOAN WRITE OFf OF R!.5OO,OOO/. ANO ABOVE

ln lems of sub-ser on (3) ot s6lion 33A ol the Bank nE companies o.di.ance, 1962 ih€ slalefrent in respecl of wnten-olf l@ns or any olher linanclal re iel
oIrupe$ file hundred thousand n above allwed io a pe6on(5) during th6 ye..ended D6ember31 2018 5 qiven Ln Annoxur€-|.

vr



10.1 Crpltlwork.rn-pogE..

1O FIXEDASSETS

10.2.,1

Rab or d.pDdaM (p6r6.r&.)

3d' d doFe:ls lp.@nrats)

'27 gAf,K AfFIEAFITMITED
Not

-..--.lRuP{. rn 000)_.__

175,339 79.639
13,096,373 16,076,033
14,272.215 1A 155 7 27

lis,3ro 14,316
55,670 43,363
1,075 12,963
2.15a

175_33910.2 Proporly and Equlpm€nt

.,rt.,ts 2,9!r,$0 r,r6,ra ,{,10d r,1ro,r22

Th6 proped'8 of rhe Bank h.v€ b66n eErud bv ind.rnd{t potBsronat vatueR as at o@mber 31,2ol8. The eva ualion Ms eried oul by tt/vs. Ak&ni&Jav€d as'arE. rwr H.Eerre, s€Mer (pivai!) L, ,iad 6nd ,\ir .Hanid Murhrar & c" it;""6 ii,;i6;" ;'" ;;;ii p.r","ion"r 
"..*."n, 

or p,.""nrnaddvaiLs! in'cF,6!uried 'l an incras. 
'n 

s-"rJ3 bv R. r le. n.,iM anda oerioror Ri B6i;;i;-r;;";j;; *Dr3 ra. been ran!,€red ro.resliry a.d rfederor Far be. cheEed io rt. r@ft a.d tosa@u.L

Had ttu6 b*n no €vtluaion,lhe q.ryinq emount ot tle @val!6d alsek at DMhber 31,201s @utd have ben Rs.5,4.43.968 dilion (2017 Rs. 5 742 ooo

{il&m6tnJrpr@on$*lcv.ir.ddu6qb.'1,

@fl'do$a@ul.nd

3.007930ii71321

+nuts.th'60|

I u ldinge on lease hotd t.nd

lncudedin@stolpopenyandoqulpmentarofullydep€clteditemsstitinu*having@EIofRs.9,773.91milion(2o17tu.B.64.t77mltioi)

(

10,2,3 Carying amount ofidleand hetd lors6 p6penie3

Sale o( l5xed asseh lo retaled panies !e disc 6ed in AnnexuG l to lh*e u.coisotidaied tnanciat !tal.m..r!
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Note

11.1

12-1 1

38.7

12_2

12.3

1t,851,352

538,855

2,397,5fi

6t5,5r7
2,7G8

4,519,604

64,224

37,631

923,633

311,104

527,067

206,651

'13,319,265

221,880

11,306,280

442,647

2,104,O45

1,067,133

u7.2A6
13,892

1,978,s36

14,174

67,522
729,546

2018 201't
--{Rup€es ln 000)----11 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Capital work"in,progress /Advance payment to supptierc

,1.'l At January 1

Cost
Accumulated amortisalion and impairment
Nel book value

't80,901 129 689
t0 6't 5 1 342 581

_J;!!E!6 '|,472,270

3,448,109

(2,105,528)
2,918,660
(1,659,513)

_J41991_ 1,259,147

120

1,102,6r5 1,342,5A1

Year onded Docsmber 31
Opening net book vatue
Addilions - directly purchased
Amortisalion charge
Exchange rate adjustments
Other adjustments

Closing net book value

1,342,581

249,669
(488,400)

1,170

12,4osl

1,259,147
529,449

(446,135)

At Oecember3t
Cost

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Net book value

Rale ofamo(isation (percentage) -

3,76.1,048
(2,658.433

3,448,109
(2,105,5281

1,102,815 1.342.561

20% 20a/.

11.2

useful Jile 
S y6ars 5 vears

i;liffi9;;:il" '"*.ibre 
assers are ruly amortized irems stil in use havins cost or Rs. 1,34e.4s3 milion (20i7: Rs.

12 OTHER ASSETS

lncome/ I\,,lark-up accrued in localcurency -nel ofprcvision 
_

lncome/ I\rark-up accrued in foreign;uraency - nel ofprovision
Advances, deposils, advance renl and olher prepaymenls
Advance lexation (payments less provisions)
Non-banking assets acquired in satisfacljon ofclaims
Dividond .eceivable

Mark lo market gajn on forward foreign exchange conlracts
Mark to markel gain on derivatives
slalionery and stamps on hand
Defined benefil plan

Branch adjuslment accounl

Receivable against fraud and forgeries

Others

Less: Provision held againsl olheressels
Other Assels (Net oI Provision)
Surplus on revaluation ofnon-banking assets acquhed in

satisfaction of claims

362,932

145,583

14,701,434

376,810
35,551,062 29,977,620

{389 ,765) 47 54

35,151,296 29,830,366

159,530 127,925

,yw
12_1_1

35,320,826 29,958,291



J-' EArlI(7ILFi(IITE|MITED

Not6 20ta 2017
---(Rupoe3 ln 000)----

12.1 Ma*el value ofNon-banking assets acquired in satisfaction ol claims - prcperties only 748,865 782,636

29- '

The prope es of lhe Bank have been revalued by independent professional valuers as at December 31, 2018. The
revaluation was carried out by M/s Akbani & Javed Associates and M/s. Hatuester Se ices (Privale) Limited on lhe basis of
professional assesmenl ofpresent marketvalues which resulted in an increase in surplus by Rs. 33.421 million.

12.1.1 Non-b.nking as8eta acqulred in satlsfaction ofclalmg

opening Balance

Additions

Revalualaon

Disposals

Depreciation

lmpairment

Closing Balance

775,211

33,421

124,7731

(8,8r0)

471,365

2U,191

78,906

(3,893)

(5,358)

'l 2.1 .2 Gain/LGB on Disposal of Non-ba nking assels acquired in salisfaction of clalms

Gain/Loss

Disposal Prcceeds

less

- Cosl

- lmpairment / Oepreciation

24,775

l.24,775\

775,047 775,211

24,f75 4,241

(3,893)

(3 893)

24,775 4,UA

12.2 This represents fraud and forgery amount receivable from the insurance company and other sources. Provision has been
crealed againsl non-recoverable amounl.

12.3 Provision held against other assets

12.4 Movement in provislon held agaln3t olher as3etg

13 BILLS PAYABLE

Advances, deposits, advanca rent & other prepayments

Non banking assels acquired in satisfaction olclaims

623,878

389,766 147,254

371,411

17,955

104,524

42,730

Opening balance

lmpact ol adoption of IFRS 9 - overseas branches

Balance as al01 on adoption of IFRS I
Charge for the year

Exchange and other adjustments

Clessified as held for sale

Closing balance

153,049

421,760

(1o,3,rS)

(1r14,945)

(29,7s0)

(37,723)

(1,229)

\5,O47)

(432,625J

389 766 147,254

623,878147,254

5,795

35,825,039

163,186

20,792,OO2

90,968

ln Pakistao

Outside Pakislan

1{
35.988.225 20 482_970
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14 BORROWINGS

Borrowings from Slale Bank of pakistan

Under erpod €linance scheme

Long-Term Finance Facitily

Financing Facility for Storage ofAgricutture produce (FFSAP)

Repurchase agreemenl borrowings

Repurchase agreement borrowings

Bai [,4uajial
14.5

146
11,'163,509

22,268,a94

17,237,602

37,650,637

tl

ll

n

0

tl

0

E

H

u

u

I
&

0

CI

Note

14-1

'14.2

14.3

14.4

14_7

14_g

14_9

14.10

EAIIK ALFALAH LIIIIITED

2O1a 2017
----{Rup6B ln 000).----

73,759,544 135.791,242

107,201,947 190,669,481

26,344,557

11,199,254

263,033

35,962,700

20,568,840

7,173,372

56,536

107,9a2,494

Call borowings

Overdrawn noslrc accounts

Irading liabilities

Others

14,951,967

947,547

10,332,574

970,114

5,221,517

636,780

'16,536,234 16,524.205

123,73A,241 207,193,686

14_1

14.2

I /t.3

11.1

14.5

14.6

14.4

14.9

11-7

This laciliry is secured agarnst . demand prcmissory nore execured in ravour of lhe stat6 Bank of pakisran. The mark-uprate on this facitity ranges from 1 O0% lo 3.75% p€r annum (2017: 1.OO% to 3.OO* p.r rn"r,l p.y"U".n a quarterty basis.

This faciriry rs secured against a d.mand promissory note execured in favour of the srare Bank of pakistan_ The mark-uprate on lhis facitity ranges from 2 0oo/o to 5.oo% per annum (2017i 2.OO% to 5.OO"Z" p"r rnnrij p"V"lf" on a quarterty basis.

Tlis facililv is secured lqainst a demand promissory oote execLrted in favour of the slate Bank ot pakistan. The mark-uprate on this facitity is 6.000/0 p6r a num lZO17:2.5O% to 1O.OO% per annum);"V"ti" 
"i" 

qr"i*ry U*1".

Thrs represenrs repurchase aqreemenr borrowng from sBp-at-rhe rare rangrng from 5.78% 10 10.16% per annum (2017:5 80%to 5.820lo perannum) having maturities uptoJanuary 2Ot9 (20j7 t"",i"jZOrar.- 
-'

This represenrs repurchase agreemenr borrowing rrom other banks at rhe ,,re of 2.780/0 to 10.250lo per annum (20,17:1-55ok%to5.B2%petannum)havjngmatudtiesuilo,lanuaryzo]€poitiiiUrr"-ryzoiAl.'"'

This represenrs borrowings from rinanciar instirurions-at mark-up rates ranging irom 6.10% to g.7oo/o pet ann,,fi l2o17l5 73% to 5 83%) having maturit€s upto l\,{arch 2019 (2017: October 20tS).

This represents bofiowings from financiar institurions at mark-up rates ranging from 0.50% t o ,ro2syo pet ennum (2017:0.60% to 5.75%) having maturities upto June 2019 (2017: fi,larch 2018).

This represents book overdrawn balances appearing under cerlain noslro accounis which aae due for sefllement and lhebalance exist onty due to timing differences. These do not carry any ma*-up rat€s,

This represenls liabilily in respect of short selling oI Pakistan lnveslmenl Bonds held as colaterel againsl repurchaseagreement lendings,

t]

IJ

L]

t
L

'1410 This-includes borrowing trorn Pakistan lvlongage Refinance company Limited (p[.4Rc) to extend housing finance facitilies tolhe Bank's customers on the agreed terms and coodirions. rnis uorrowing carriis ma_ri-up rare ot a years pKRV tess sobps.

This arso incrudes borrowing from Karandaaz pakisran Lirnited_ in rieu of Rrsk pan.ipation Agreemenr ro supporr Bank,svenlure inro SI\,,|E segments The participarion carries a spread of315 bps ov;;,h"ii;,j;'r;tfu; {
lr
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20t8 2017
----(Rup€os h 000)---

14.1'l PartlculaB of borrowings with respect to Currencieg

ln local eurrency

ln foreign curencies

't01,980,729

21,757,512

186,366,566

20 227,120

15 DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

123,738,211 207,193,686

5/11,265,298 104,603,106 653,868,70,a 5.11,034,010 6S,209,325 610,243,335

17,027,992 1,998,58r a9,026,!76 33,390,959 I 350,673

263,826,090

182,2Aa,76a

103,14,a2a

t0,007,520

41,0f7,261

24,222,301

42,383,783

1,920.061

284,903,35!

21!,501,065

145,524,707

11.927.531

236,U3.622

190,26.{019

110,563 893

4,162,476

21.553,885

26,277,335

20,446,144

257,597,507

216.541,354

131,010,037

5,094,437

2,134,977

30,625,5t4

'14,220,573

a7.924

533,400

5a,ao9

1.aot,95t

9.814

2,647,377

30,573,925

1,141,240

20,319,241

8,043,869

3 330 609

165,696

34,698

1150,279

1312,936

20,353,939

9,194,148

3.380.609

2014 2017

596,293,290 106.601,990 702,89a,280 574,424,969 70,559,998 644,984,967

15.1 Composition ot deposits

- lndividuals

' Govemment (Federal and Provincial)

- Public Sector Entities

- Eanking Companies

- Non-Banking Financial lnslitutions

- Privale Sector

2018 2017

--(Rup.63 
ltr 000)----

347,90t,a28 342,142,573

a5,a16,762 32,444 245

46,52a,3t1 24,402,279

s28.326 1,994 835

aa,a98,250 32,716,797

21a,018,203 206,S12,198

644 984,967702,895,280

15.2 This includes deposits eligible to be covered under insurance ar;angements amounting to Rs 400,654.623 million (201 7: Nil)

0."4J1tll
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2018 2017

--.(Rup€* ln 000)----16 SUBORDINATED DEBT

16.1 Term Finance Certlflcat8 V - Quoted, lJnsecured 4,989,000 4,S91,000

7,000,000

Maturity date
Rating

Rs.5,000,000,000
February 2013
Febtuary 2021
"AAr'(DoubleA Mjnus) by Pakistan Credil Rating
Company Limiled i"PACRA").
Unsecured
Subordinated to all other ind€btedness of the Bank
including deposils but superior to equity and ADT-1
instruments.
Payabls 6emi-annually in anears.
Th6 inslrument will b€ struclured to redeem s6m!
annually in such a way thal0.30% olthe prjncipatwitl be
redeemed in lhe lirst 90 monlhs and remaining principat
of99.70% at maturity in lhe 96th month.
Base Rate + 1.25 percent
Base Rat6 is defined as th6 simple aveage ofthe ask
rate ol the six monlhs KIBOR prevailing on on6 business
day priorto each redemption date, for the redemption
amount payable on the beginning ofeach semi-annual
period for lhe ma*up due at the end of that period.

Mark'up will only be paid from the Bank'6 currenl year,s
earning and itth6 Bank is in compliance of regutatory
MCR and CAR requkemenls set by SBp trom lime to
time.
There is no calloption avaitabte to the Bank.

Rs.7,000,000,000
March 2018
Perpetual
"AA-" (double A minus) byJCR-VIS Credjt Rating
Company Limiled.
Unseculed
Subordinated lo all olher indebtedness of the Bank
including deposits but superiorto equity.
Payable semi'annually in arrears.
Perpetual
For the pedod at end ofwhich the Bank is in compliance
with Minimum Capital Requkement (lt4cR) and Capital
Adequacy Ratio (CAR) requjrements of SBp, mark-up
rat6 will be Ease Rate + L507o with no slep up feature.
(Base Rat6 is delined as lhe six months KTBOR (Ask
side) prevailing on one (1) business dey prior to previous
prolit payment dale
Mark{p will only be paid from th6 Bank's cufient yea/s
earning and il the Eank is in compliance of regulatory
MCR and CAR requtemenls set by SBP from time to
ln lonfomily with SBP Basel lll Guidetines, the TFCS
shall, if directed by the SBP, be permanentty conve(ed
into ordinary shares upon; (i) lhe CET 1 Trigger Event ;
(ii) the point of non-viability Trigger Event ; or (iii) faiture
by lhe Bank to comply wilh the Lock-ln.Ctause. The SBP
will have full discretion in dec,6rjn9 th6 poinl of non-
viability Trigger Event.
The Bank may, at its sole discrelion, exerciso call option
any lime afrer fve years from the lssue oate, subject to
pdor approvalof SBP.

Securily
Ranking

Profil payment freque,lcy
Redemption

16.2 Term Finance Ce(tftcat* - Addttonat Tier-t - euoted, Unsocured

Calloption

Loss absorbency clause

l\,4alurity dat6
Raling

Secu ty
Ranking

Profit payment f requency
Redemplion

Call Option

1r __J1E!9p99_
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17 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Deduclible Temporary Differences on

- Provision againsl inveslments
- Provision against advances
- Provrsion agatnst otf balence sheet obligalions
- Gain on rcvaluation of HFT investmenls
- Provision against other assets

2018
Rocognl$d in Rscognisod in AtOec.mb6r3t

P&LA/C OCt 2018

BANK ALFAIAH LIMITEO

2018

Rupees in 000)------.------

(539,782) (129,648) 127,1 (696,624)

3,693, 1172,8261 (753,380) 2,767,326

,o17

Deductible Temporary Differences on
- Provision against investments
- Provision against advances
- Provision against off balance sheel obligations
- Provision against other assels
- Prpvision againsl lending lo financialinstitutions
- ljarah deprecialion taxed
- Unrealised loss on revalualion of HFT investmenls

Taxable Temporary Oifferences on
- Surplus on rcvaluation of fixed assets
- Surplus on revaluation of investmonts
- Accelerated tax depreciation
- Exchange translation reserve

828,306
1,4t1,085
1,454,141

(2,807)

(170,019)

503,68s
(1,413,967)

670
't56.232

1,329,164
12,8821

1,284,792
156,232

Taxable Temporary Difteiences on
- Sulplus on r€valuation of fixed assets
- Surplus on revaluation ofinvestments
- Accelerated tax depreciation

?017
R.cosnrlod tn nacosnisi--n riEei-ml-i

P&L A/C OCt 2017
Rup€e. in 000)-------.---

12,978, 2,434,971 (539,782)

5 1 74.s10 (2,010,059) 3,693,532

01 153 7

Note
t8 OTHER LIABILITIES

Mark-up/ Retum/ lnleresl payable in local currency
Ma*-up/ Return/ lnlerest payable in foreign curency
Unearned commission and income on bills discounled and guarantees

Cu(ent laxalion

Dividends peyable
Mark lo markel loss on forward foreign exchange conlracts
Ma* to martel loss on derivatives
granch adjuslment accounl
Provision foa Compensated absences
Payable againsl redemplion of cuslomer loyalty / reward points
Cha ty fund balanco
Provision against off-balance sheet obligalions
Securily deposits against leases, lockers and others
Workeis Welfare Fund
Payable lo vendors and suppliers
lndirect Taxes Payable
Others

)-,.1 l{

2018 201f
--{Rup€.s ln 000)----

2,107,388
610,51t
220,5A4

3,9s4,08t
926,956

13,319,265
44,229

970,502
1,t 69

1,388,950
202,139
230,353

3,350,008

10,701,434
60,729

968,982

tJ

t]

I
t_

I

498,010
274,O76

20
78,450

6,808,459
970,920
601,657
449,732

1,578,1t5

220,523
393,496
200,433

833
65,463

6,210,193
578,831
504,868
326,769

1,658,126

1244,4871

12.573\

1174,2181
(1r8,s04)

32,a44
(148,434)

20,621
(5,720)

(r6,690)
112.2691

127,194)

114,a42

068,568)
(265,938)

(223,866)

ls,720)
(r6,690)

571

e,2e4329)
(392,066)

(13,078)

38
(309,218)

2,O90,111
273.562

13,078
(2,611)
u.731

1174,218)
(118,504)

(2.573)
(244.447\

840,539
3,399,87s
1,388,669

(18,198)

92.70a

5,965
(1,988,788)

127.236\

828,306
1,411,085
1.454.'141

18.1

121 27 062 729
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18.1 Provi3ion agalnst oft-balance sheet oblgations

Opening balance
Exchange adjustment and other ad,uslments

Charge for lhe year

Closing balance

I9 SHARE CAPITAL

19.1 Authorlz€dCapttat

2014 2017
-----{Number of share3)------

2.300.000,000 _2!99!99!99_ ordinai shares or Rs. 10 6ach

lg.2 lssued, 3ubscribed and paid up Capital

2018 2017
------(Number ot share3)-----

Ordlnarv shares
Fully paid in cash
lssued as bonus shares

BANK ALFALAH LIM]TED

Il

tl

n
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U

2018 2017
-.-(Rupees ln 000)----

65,463
13,759

69,708
(2,9O7)

7 (1,

The provision againsl off balance sheet obligations include general provision of Rs- 66.50 mi ion (2017: Rs.53.50 malion)
held in Eangladesh book as requked under th€ local reguhlion and specific provision of Rs. i1.g5 milion hetd againsi
detaulted Lelter ofcuarantees. The bank is making efforls ior recovery ofihe defaulted amount.

74,450 65.463

2O1A 2017
---(Rup€* in 000)-----

23,000,000 23.000.000

2018 2017
----.(Rupees ln 000)----

888,650,908 883,165,724
88s 711 966 724,406.250

1,774,362,a74 1,607,571,974

1 .774,362.87 4 '| ,607 ,571 ,97 4

20 suRpLUs4DEFtCtT) ON REVALUATTON OF ASSETS

Sulplus / (d€licit) on revatuation ot
- Available for sale securities

- Non-banking assels acquired in satisfaction o, claims '
- Surplus on revaluation of lnvestment held for sal6 jn Afghanislan

oetefied tax on surplus / (deficit) on revatuation or:
- Available for sale securities

- Non-banking assets acquired in salistaction ofclaims
- Surplus on revaluation of lnv*tment held for sate in Afghanislan

Du ng the year the Eank has issued S,48S,1O4 ordinary shares having face vatue of Rs. 1O/- each to its emptoyees on
exercise of options vesred under the Emproyees srock oprion scheme (ESos) (nole 39). Th6 paid-up capirar ;f the Bank
before issuance of shares ro emproye6s was Rs. 16,075,719,740 (divided inro t,ooz,57t,gia srares ot as. 1o each) and afler
issuance of shares to rhe emproyees has increased ro Rs. 16,'130,571,580 (divided inro 1,6i3,057,r58 

"h",";;i 
i". ro

each). subsequenl lo this, the Bank issued 161,305,716 number of shares as a 10% bonus issue. The sharc capital after
such issue increased to Rs. 17,743,628,740 (representing 1,774,362,874 shares of Rs. 1O 6ach).

Not€

8.886,509 8,831,657
8,857,'120 7,244 ,063

17,743,629 16,075,720

17.743.629 16.075.720

8,650,300 9,525,153

Restaled
2018 2017

---'(Rupo* in 000)---

(8,407)
8,508,874

,59,530
303

3,901,382
5,365,558

127,925
130.288

8.1
20_1

20.2

20.1
202L]

U

L]

N

(2,943)
1,298,531

30,653
61

1,365,484
819,099
24,654
45.601

1;326,302

48,952

2,254.838

14,933

33,994
766 I 2'13

37,875

D€rivalives

1/
7,382,950 7,285.248
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Rest.ted
2014 2017

----(Rupees in 000)----
20.1 Surplu3 on revaluation ol fixed a3sets

Surplus on revaluation of fixed assels as al January 1

Effect ofchange in accounting policy for surptus /
(deficit) on operaling frxed assels - note 4 1.2

Surplus on revalualion of fxed assets as al January 1 - restated
Recognised during the year
Realised on disposalduring the year- net of defered tax
Thnsferred to unapproprialed proiit in respect ofincremental

depreciation charged during the year - net of deferred lax
Related deferred tax liability on incrementat

deprecialion charged durang the year
Surplus on revalualion of fixed assets as at Oecember 3j

Less: r6laled deferred lax liabitity oni
Revalualjon as al January 1

Eftecl olchange an accounting poticy for surptus /
(deficil) on operaling fixed assets - note 4.1.2

Revaluation as at January 1 - Reslaled
- revalualion recognised during the year
- surplus realised on disposal during lhe year
- incremenlal depreciation charged during the year

20,2 Surplu3 on revalu.tion of non-bantligts3et3 acqutred in 3afisfaction of ctaims

Surplus on revaluation as at January l
Recognised dunng the year
Transfeffed lo unapproprialed paofit in respect ofincremental

deprecialion chargod during th6 y€ar - net of defefied tax
Related defefied tax liability on incremental

deprccialion charged during the year
Surplus on revalualion as at December 31

Lessi relaled defened lax liability onl
- revaluation as atJanuary 1

- revaluation aecognised during th6 year
- incremenlel deprecialion charged during the year

2,I ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

21.1

5,3a5.558 5,385,843

45,583
5,365,558
3,193,653

132,7151

{17.618

819,099
497,050

('17.618)

8,508,874 5

819,099 826,917

1,298,531 819,099

_l:1!.911_ 4 546 il59

127,925
33,421

(1,180)

(636t

50,890
78,906

(1,427)

(444)

24,654
6,635
{636t

13,623
11,475

(444)

159.530 '127,925

30,653 24 654

128,877 103.271

lJ

ll

u

t_

During 2017 lhe Board of Directors of the Bank accorded its in-principle approval and authorised the managemenl of the
Bank to explor€ the possibilaty to sell the Afghanislan Oporations of the Bank to a potential buyer, subject t; obhining a
regulatory approvals, compliance with appticable taws and regulatjons in the maller.

ouring the cunent yea., lhe Bank signed a Eusiness Tiansfer Agreement with a potenliat buyer for th6 sate of th6
Afghanislan operations and subsequently an applicalion for apprcval of the transaction was made to the DA Afghanistan
Bank (DAB), lhe Cenlral Bank in Afghanistan- The DAB has raised some queries on the application which the Bank and the
potenlial buyers are in lhe process of responding.

Resultanlly, all assets and liabililies and income and expenses tor the Bank's Atghanistan Operations are being presented as
separale line items on lhe balance sheel as Non-Cufienl Assets and Liabilities H6ld for Sale and prcfit;fler tax fiom
diEcontinuing operations respectively, ralher than as pert of actual line ilems under which lhey were being reporledhislorically. I t k." \1

17,754

5,431,426

{15,744)

(32,370)

17 754

842,363

(5.510)
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2r,2 The financial position and results ofassets classified as held for sale are as folows

- 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Assels held for sale

Cash and balances with lreasury banks
Balances wilh other banks
Lendings lo financial inslitulions
lnvestmenls ' nel

Olher assets

LlabilitiB dhectly a$ociatecl wiih the asseb hetd for sate

E i{-KTfmmE tEfiiTFo

2O1a 2017
----(Rup6€B in 000)----

Note

21.2.1

7,554,A52
1,025,996
5,288,982

11,592,895
1,108,663

11,918

4,764,918
3,431,895

10,470,354
4,596,965

224,O90
9,370

9'l,897
23,589,489 26,821.724

198 414

Eills payable
Deposits and other account6
0efened lax liabililies
Olher liabilities

8,575
24,491J7A

45,601
213,742

___?1J!9.999_

4,549
20,2a7,651

223
112-973

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Mark-up/Return/lnterest Eamed
I\,4ark-up/Relurn/lnlerest Expens6d
Net l\,,lark-up/ lnlerest lncome

Non mark-up/inleresl income

Totallncome

Non mark-up/jnte.est expens6s

Operating expenses
Other charges
Tolal non-markup,lnlerest expenses

Profit Before Provisions
Provisions and write offs - nel

Prolil before taxalion from discontinuiog opeGlions

Taxation

Profit afler lraxalion from discontinuing operalions

323,774
t,263

458,803
1.923

543,751 893,837

325,037 460,726

_-4t3!!96

335,008

353,937
18_929

743,588

588,819

Fee and Commission lncom6
Foreign Exchange lncome
lncome / (loss) from derivataves
Gain / (Loss) on securiljes
Olher lncomo
Tolal non-markup,4nlerest lncome

153,492
18,947

132,593
(14)

188,04S
14,653
48,637
(42,586)

208,753 305,018

21A,724
(561,776)

433,111
93,292

ij

ll

U

!
L

780,s00

305,549

339,819

474,952 20'1,0ut1
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21.2.1 This includes reversal of provision amounting to Rs.4438S8 million (USD 3.949 million), previously held against amount
blocked in the Bank's Nostro account following selllemeot of dispute, and r8leaso offunds in favour of the Bank.

-Guarantees

-Commitmenls

-Other contingenl liabilities

22.'l

22_2

22.3.1

s7,086,398

437,945,961

13,222,064

64,176,351

349,133,S04

9,787.372

2018 2017

---lRupe$ in 000).---.

508,255,423
-_423,09!-,627._

57,086,398 64,176,351

Not6

22 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

22.1 Guaaanteesi

22.2 Commitrnents:

Financialguaranlees

Performance guaf antees

Other guarantees

731,536

32,153,833

24,20i,O29

176,943

34,549,521

2S,4,19,Ag7

Oocumentary credits and shorl{erm trad6-16lat6d lransactions

- Letlers ot credil

Commilmenls rn respecl of.

- lotuard foreign erchange conlracts

- foMard government securitaes transaciions

- loNvard lending

- operating leases

Commilments for acquisition of:

- opehling rixed assels

- inlangible assets

22_2_1

2223

22.2.4

22_2.5
904

\l-

68,026,025

224,265,364

76,821,957

12,051,09'l

34,773,2G0

18,897,381

604,674

507,209

73.773,817

92,108,750

129,O52,456

8,865,7s6

30,207,372

15.7A2,823

9S,373

219,605

23 952
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22.2.1 Commitmenk ln respect of forward toreign exchangs contracts

BANK ALFALAH LIM]TEO

2018 2017

----(Rup€B ln 000)----

140,128,603

88,136,761

60,285,544

31,823,206
Sale

Sale

Sale

Purchase

Sele

228,265,354 92,108,750

22.2,2 Commitmsnt3 in r6sp€ct of forward govsrnmenl Fecurlti€s transactions

22.2,3 Commitments in respect of derivativeg

22.2.3.1 lnt€rest Rate Swaps

39,519,422

303,S35

10,650,708

29,428,567

693

75,82i,957 128,052,456

116,034,680

'12 o17,7?6

8,865,756

'10,650,708 8,865,756
22.2.3.2 Futweg

1,400.383

'1,400,383

22.2.4 Commitmenb in respect of fo.ward tendtng

fJndrawn fonnal slandby tacilities, credjt lines and olher commitmenls to lend

Commitmenls in respect of inveslments
22.2.4.1 22,628,329

7,575,O43

34,773,260 30,207,372

22.2.4.1 These represent commilments that are hrevocable because they cannol be withdlawn at the discretion oflhe Bank withoutlhe risk of incurring signilicant penalty or €xpeos6.

22.2.5 Othercommitments

Donalions - 23.952

22.3 Oth6rcontlngen tabiti o3

Claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debts 13,222.064 9.7A7 372
22_3_1

tj

U

t

these mainly represents counter claims filed by lhe bofiowers for reslriciing lhe Bank from disposal ot asseis (such ashypolhecated / modgaged / ptedged assels kepl as secu ty), damage to re;utation ana cases titeO Oy Ex. emptoyees oflhe.Bank for damages sustained by them consequent to lhe termi;aton f;om the Bank,s emptoyment. Based on tegatadvice 
"and 

/ or hternel assessmenl, management is conlident that the matters wilt be de;i;ed in Bank.s favour and theposslDlllty ol eny oulcome againsl tho Bank rs remolo and accordingly no provision has been made in these financial
statements.

22.4 Contingency for tax payabte

22.4.1 There were no tax related contingencies other than as disctosed in note 33.2 rlr
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23.1 ProductAnaly3ls
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De valives are a lype of linancial contracl, lhe value ofwhich is determined by referenc€ lo one or more und€rlying assels or
indices. The maior calegorios of such contracts include fulurcs, swaps and options. Derivalives also include slruclured
financial products thal have one or more characleristics offorwards, futures, swaps and oplions.

20't8

------------- tr"i6-

Rup€o! ln 000)--------

market No. of Notional market gain /
gain / los3 coniract3 Pdnclpal toss

Hedging

Wlth Fl. othor than banks
H€dging

Hedging

22 10,650,708 88,4E7

88 1,400,383 l.21,4t21

22 10.650.708 88,487 88 1.400.383 121.117\

2017

/ Io3B contracb

llrl rto

23. 6,855,756 13,241

23 .756

23.2 iilatuity AnalFis

88 1,400,383

3.540.979

1 1.624,684

1,388,619

1,596,912

1,110,E95
5 to 10 years 4 1.388.619

....-- (Rup€$ In 000)___

Not

21,132 t21.112t
't6,651 16,651

13,82t 13,421
17,246 17.246
20_544 20.544

12,412 12,432

7.719 7,749

21,432 88,487 67,055

?017

Hedging

Hedging

2018

110 12,051,091

11 4 504 277
1 10n 172

2.153.135

1.1M 172

_(RuPe!s tn 000)____

5 168 17.166 11,998
1 033 5.689 4 656

0 866 9.866
13275 929 112.346\

23 8,865,756

l]

t.i

l"l

ll
Total

23.3 Risk management related to derivatives is dis ctssed in no? a7.7 ]\l-{

19 476 33 650
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59,318,342

102 555 68 390

_____ -Jn_,287_ _____3lJ_99n16

2018 2017
-.---(Rupees in 000)----

1,335,569
190,589
907,652
217,4aO
241,326

1,437,A2A
372,561
23,330
77,770

391,316
c5,497

159,845
99,435

384,736
246,517

126,932 150,635

______939!fr?-

1,035,294 1,141,473
(7,351)(42,406)

________99?,9!!_ __--:-J3"4.!22_

135,794
24,775

11,668
4,348

29,743

24 MARK,UP/RETURN/INIERESTEARNED

On
a)
b)
c)
d)

25 MARK.UP/RETURN/INTERESTEXPENSED

Loans and advances

Lendings to financial instlutions
Balances with banks
On securities purchased und6r resals agreemenls

37,196,298
19,005,495

1,332,129
85,237

1,697,583

28,273 923
25,297 579

2 057,213

494.747

_____.qqrc,!gl

On
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)

0

25 FEE & COMMISSION INCOME

27 GA|N 
' 

(LOSS) ON SECURTTTES

Branch banking customer fees
Consumer finance related fees
Card related iees (debit and credil cards)

lnvestmenl banking f ees
Commission on trade
Commission on guarantees
Commission on cash management
Commission on remittances lncluding home remittances
Corrmissior on bancassurance
Card acquiring busin€ss
Wealth Management Fee
Commission on EOBI
Commission on BISP
ADC
Others

Oeposits
Borrowings
Securities sold under repurchase agreem€nts
Sub odineted debl and ADT-I instrumenl
Costofforeign currency swaps againstforeign cufiency deposits / borrowlngs

19,694,356
1,302,924
4,355,705

949,221
1,2A2,525

15,422,067
1,027 470
8,802,388

626,498
852,503

'1,462,816

224,22A
048,104
148,340
195,49'l

1,242,6a1
370,779

20,948
165,419
394,931
296,297

67,005
114,130
282p20
330,550

!
m

n
AJ

fl

Realised
L,nrealised - held for kading.

27.1 RealiEed galn/(loss) on

27.1
8.1

Federal Governmenl Secu tie6
Shares
Non Govemment oebt Securilies
Fo.ergn Securities

u

U

tr

t]

28 OTHER INCOME

31 20]t

1 026

1,213,4U
1242,2211

2,811
1 001

637,871
512,477

(9,876)

Gain on sale of fixed assets-net
Garn on sale of non baoking assets - net
lncome from short sellof securities
Protlt from sale of leased assets

yt
'12_'12

t9t 773
38,855

___-_93,6!9-
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291

2018 2017

---{Rups€3 ln 000)----
29 OPERATING EXPENSES

29.1 Total compensatlon sxpen36

Total comp€nsatlon expenss

Proper, srpgn36

Utilities cost
Security (including guards)
Repair and rnainl6nance (ncluding janllorial charges)
Depreciauon
Others

9,653,606 10,044.344

lnfomatlon iechnology €xponses
Sofrware mainlenanc6
Hardware malnt€nance
Deplecration

Network charges
Others

876,760
200,168
380,42
488,2t00
329,082

662,726
227,341
425,284
446,135
38S 332

2,O4f ,627

876,260
594,283
774,795
460,809

153,981
6,990

275,736
1,278,434

511,432
71, t80

877,354
59,634

238,107
257, t 98
458,603
610,126

36,594
39.'fl9

142,102
206,725
2A7,5A2
860,609
369,228
s2,465

113 5

2,017,O41

886 779
635,419
535,044
459,340

4,761,774 4 533 623

2,274,652 2,150,818

olher opelatlng expenEes
Oirectors' fees and allowances
Fees and allowances to Shariah Boad
Legal and professional charges
Ouisourced services cosls
Travelling and conveyance
NIFT clearing charces
Depreciation
Tmining and development
Postage and courier charces
Communication
Slalionery and printing
Ma*eting, advertisement and publicity
Donations
Audllors Remuneration
Brokerage and Commission
Enlertainmenl
Repairs and maintenance
lnsurance
Cash Handling Charges
CNIC Verifrcation
Others

29.3
29_4

38.8
39

7,2f6,724 7,943, 42

____-4.99949_ 24 67',l,927

Fee6 and Allowances etc
IVanagerial Remuneration
i) Fixed
1i) Variable

a)Cash Bonus / Awards elc.
b) Bonus and Awards in Shares etc.

Charce for defined benetit plao

Contribution to defrned contibrltion Plan
I\,!edical

Conveyance
Staff compensated absences
Othels
Sub-totrl
Sign-on Bonus
Severance Allowance
Grand Total

29_',1.1

7,609,980

1,202,259
13,036

185,753
321,11O
r2,996

1A\747
tM,5l4
43 't3

7,384,019

1,171,339
26 693

250,153
320,47A

9,934
177,OO8

(814E)
758

126,018
6,720

1244,104
1,302,518

437,670
aa,423

s29 241
'158,623

176,327
194,790
441,190
745,1',13

9,948
30,490

166,306
180,688
u7.877
615,845
413,743
91,477

2U 431

t"\tu

9,591,563
37,S50

29.1.2 24,193

------9f!1!9!-

9.341,232
5,638

694-474
10.o44,344
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29,1.1 The Bank operat€s a short term employee benefit scheme whlch includes cash awards/ perfomance bonus lor all eligible
employees. Under this scheme, the bonus for all executives, including the CEO is determined on the basis ol ernployees'
evaluation and Bank's pertormance during the year. The aggregate amounl determifled for the eligible employees in respect of
the above scheme relating to the Key l\,4anagemenl Personnel ol the Bank and lor Other Executiv6s amounted to Rs 239 49
miLlion (20'l7i Rs. 260.190 million)and Rs.482.278 million (2O17 Rs.369.285 m llion) respectively.

29.1.2' This includes exgratia paymenl made to lhe outgoing CEO in 2017.

29.2 Total cost tor the year included in Other Operating Expenses rela|ng to outsourced aclivites is Rs 636.858 rnlllion (2017 Rs
653.673 million) pertaining to the paymentto companies incorporated in Pakistan. This includes payments olherthan outsourced
seNices cosls, which are drsclosed ebove.

29.3 Donatlons Not6

Child Ald Associalion
Family Educational Services Foundation
l8A Karachi
Manabik Shahajya Sangstha
Supreme Courl Diamer Bhasha And Mohmand Oam Fund

Karachi Lions PediaAic Nephrology Project (NICH)
Shabab Murshid Development Foundation - Bangladesh
The Aga Khan University Hospital MedicalCollege Foundation

1,700
3,250

22,O00
994

8,650

2014 2017

---lRupeesln 000)----

_________!9E91_

6,300
1,000

648
2 000
I 948

29.3.1 None of the Di€ctors, sponsor shareholders, Key management personnel or their spouses have any direct interesl in lhe
Donees

29.4 Audltors'remuneratlon

Fee for other slatutory certifications
Fee for audil offorcign branches
Special certirications and sundry advisory serv ces
Out-of-pocket expenses

14,553
6,588
7,969
8,009
2,000

12,690
6,372
7,966
1652

810

30 WORKERS WELFARE FUND

Penalties imposed by Slale Bank ofPakistan

PROVISIONS & WRITE OFFS. NET

Provisions against lending to financial institulions
Provisions fordiminutior in value olinvestments
Provisions against loans & advances
Provision against olher asset3
Provision against off-balanc6 she€t obligalions
Recovery of written otf / charged off bad debts

Through Finance Act 2008, the Fede€l Government introduced amendmenls to ths Worters' Wetfarc Fund (WWF) Ordinance,
1971 whereby the delinition of industrial ostablishment was exlendod. The amendments were challenged and conflicting
judgmentswere rendered byvarious cou(s. Appeels againstthese orders were filed in the Suprerne Court.

The Supreme Court of Pakistan vide its order dated November 10, 2016 held that the amendments made in lh6 taw introduced
by the Federal Government for the levy of Wodsrs Welfare Fund were not lawful The Federal Board of Revenu€ filed review
petitions againstlhe abovejudgment. These petitions are currentty pending with the Supreme Court ofpakistan.

A legal advrce was obtained by the Pakistan Banking Assbciation which highlights that consequent to fiting ot th6se rcview
peUtlons, a risk has arisen and ihe iudgment is nol conclusive lrntil lhe rcview petition s decided, Accordingly, th6 amount
cheeed for Workers Wollare Fund slnce 2008 ha6 not been revemed.

OTHER CHARGES

6,430

30 490

32 727

7 77
t.l

{-]

tr

I

8.3.1
s5
'12_4

'18 1

16,344
30,674

378,721
411,412

17721
{27,996)

(44s 186)

137 723)
(1 338)

588,383

7,219,414
1229,4s31

4,908,758
(1,883,206)

TAXATION

Current

Defened

ryk

1302,4741 2,513 381

______!,6!I,19L _-_-__!E!8,93!_
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33.'l Relationshlp botwesn tar exponso anct.ccoun ng profit

Accounting Profit before taxation

Tax al the applicabte rate ol35a/o \2017:35o/a)

- permanentdifferences
- taxcharge pertaining to overseas branches
- adlustment ol prior years
- Supertax

Tax expense for the year

BAI{K ALFALAH LIMITED

20t8 2017
----(Rupees in 000)----

__1e.c3]J€_ _-13J95J.05_
5,893,2,t4 4,796 808

7,010
33,5.t2

42,444
110,039
517,925

737,015
16.736 71 317

---__9,q!zJ!L _______!.0!9,933_

33.2 a)

b)

The income tax ass€ssments of the Bank hav6 been flnalized upto and including tax year 2018. Matters of disagreemenl
exist between lhe Benk and tax aulhorities for various assessment years and are pendlng wilh the commissioner of
lnland Revenue (Appears), Apperrate Tribunal lnland Revenue (AT|R), High court ot si;dh and supreme courl of
Pakistan. These isEues mainly rerate to addition of ma up in suspense lo income, laxability of profit on government
securities, bad debts written otfand disallowances relating to prolil and loss expenses.

ln respect of tax yeals 200a,2014,2017 and 201q the tex authorities have Eised cerrajo issues incruding defaurt in
payment ot wwF, arrocation of expenses to dividend and capitar gains, dividend income from muruar fund; nor being
taken lnder income from business, disallowance of Leasehold improvements and provision againstother assets resultina
in addrionaldemand of Rs.789.862 mlrion (December 31 2oi 7 : Rs.1,033.519 mi[ion). As a;surt of appear fired befor;
commissioner Appears against these issues, rerief has been provided for tax amounl or Rs.116_35r miriion appear effecr
orders are pending Bank has fired appears on these issues which ar6 pendrng before commissioner Appeers. The
management is con,ldent thal these matters wil be decided ]n favour of the Bani and consequenlty has not made any
provision in respect oflhese amounts.

ThB Bank has received an orderflom a plovincialtax author,ty wherern tax authority hes dtsalowed certain 6x6mptions of
sales tax on banking services and demanded sates tax and penatty amounring to is.77.592 milion (December 3.i, 2017 ]
Rs 77.592 million) (exctuding defautt surcharge) for the pefiod from Juty 201-1 lo June 2014. 8ank.s appeat against this
oder is currently pending before commissioner Appears The Bank has not made any provrsrcn agarnsl rhis order and rhe
management is ofthe view that the mafler wi b6 setfled rn Bank,s favour throuqtr appeitate Drocejs.

Restated
2018 2017
---{Rupe€ ln 000)---BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Profit for the year

Weighied average number ofordinary shares

Basic eamings p€r share

35 DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Profit for the year

Weighted averago number ofordinary shares (adjusted
lorthe effects ofattditutive potential ordinary shares)

Dlllted earnings per share

35.1 Reconclllauon ot ba3tc and dtluted eamlng perahar6

10.625.220 8,367,296

--(Numb6r 
ot sha.e3 tn,000)-.---

1,773,672 1.766.588

Rupees

5,99 4.74

-'--(Rup€e8 ln 000)---
10,a23.220 8.367.236

--{Number of share! ln '000)----

1.775.732 772 196

Rup€eB

5_98 472

--{Number otBhares ln '000)----
l.]

u

ll

t]

Weighled average number ofordinary shares
Plusr Employee slock option scheme
Dilutive potential ordihary share6

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and Balance wth Treasury Banks
Balancewith otherbanks
Callmoney lendings
OverdrEwn nostrc accounts

1,773,672
2,060

1,766,588
5 608

Note

1,775,732 1.772.196

2014 2017
---{Rupe€ in 000)-----

5 a2,407,700
6 3,874,955
7 15,166,288
14 1947,s471

100,50t.396

70,381,435
3,753,954

20,255,936
$74,114)

_____%,41,x:_

36

\+-
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Banks own slaff slrensth at lhe end of the year

4,221 .t98 8,,t19 7,503
a2 11't 66

195
85

7,698
15'1

ln addiiion to the aborc, 2,106 (2017: 3,776) employses ot outsourclng servicss companies werc asslgned to lhe Bank as ai the end
oflhe year to perfom seNices olherlhan guarding 6nd janitorial servi.es.

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

37.1

38

3E.1 Gon€rald$cription

34.2

38.3

38.4 Reconcili.tion of(rec€ivablo r.om) / payabl€ to definod bon.fitptan!

----------------{Numbor or 6mP
Domodlc Ov.6.r6 Total Dome.tic Ov€8.a3

_______-!,1-!5_

High

37 STAFFSTRENGTH

38_6

7 506

(923,633)

20lE 2017

---(Rupao. in 000)----

1,474,598 I 657,387
(2,398,231) (2,386,933)

Presenl valu6 of obligalions
Fair value of plan assels
(Receivable) / payable

Movomont in deflnad benelit obttgauons

Ob galons al the beginning ofihe ye.r

Bsnefits paid bt the Aank
Re-measuem3nl loss / (gain)
Obligalions at th6 end of lhe y6ar

Movemsnt in fair value of ptan assati

Fair value at lhe beginning ofthe y6ar
lnlerest income on plan assets
Conl bution by ths Bank - nel

Re-measurementsi Net return on ptan assets
over inlerest iicomo gain / (toss)

F6irvalLre ai rhe 6nd of the y€ar

Ths Bank operates an approved lunded gBluity scheme which cover 6ll €gular pamanent employ8€s. Th€ liabiliiy of the Bank n

Gspecl of lhe plan is detemined based on actuarial valualion carried oul using the Pqected Unit Credit l\,lethod ActuariBl vallation
ol lhe delined benefii plan is carried oul every year and the lalest valuation was canied oul as at Dec€mber 31, 2018. The significanl
assumptions ale delailod below

Numbor ol Employ€er und€rlh6 schom€

Th8 number of employees covered underthe following de,ined benelil plan arei

2018 2017

-------lNumb.r)----"-.

Princlpal actuadal.s!!Ir!ptior3

The disclosures made below are based on the infomation included in the aclua al vallation €porl of th€ Bank as of Oecsmbff 31 ,

2418

2014 2017

'----{Per annum)------

Valuation Discount rale (p a)
Salary increase rate (p.a)-Shodlelm {3 y6ars)
S6lary ilcrsas€ rata (p.a) - Long term
Expecled rat€ of return on plan assets (p.a)
Nomal l6lil8rnent ag€
Durstion

sLlc Adjusred sLlc
20ot - 2005 2001 - 2045
13.25% 9.50%
8.25% 5.750/d

11.25% 9.00%
13.25% 9.s00l.
60YeaB 60Years

09 Yea6 6 month. 10 Yeals

38.5
38.6

38.5

t"l

{]

I

1,657,387
270,272
149,967

(304,84r)

__!4{99_

1,920,065
306,923
167,766

(304,133)

1433 234)

_l-€!1,987_

(s3,00s)

2,386,933
234.186
1E5.753

(304,841)

2,269,382
224,536
250,1s3

(304,133)

Lll.
38.8.2 fl04,1001

_-?,9993!L 2,386 933
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38.7

38.9

38.10

Movemont in (6celveble) / PayadL
under define.l benoflt Plan

Opening balance
Chargs /(reve€al) for the year
Contrlbution bylhe Bank - n6l
Rs-measurem€nt loss / (gain) rccognised in OCI

Benelits paid by ihe Bank
Closing balance

Charge to. dolinod bon€fit plans

Co3t r6cognllod in proflt end lo3r

201E 2017

---.(Rupe* in ooo)----
(729,546) (349,317)
185,753 250,153
(r85,753) (250,153)

3882 (194,067) (380 229)

(923,633) t729 5461

38.8

38.8.1

Net interesl on defined benefit assel / liability

38.E.2 Re{nea.ursment3 racognllrd ln ocldu.ing tho yotr

270,272
(84,519)

306,923
(56,770)

-----l!!i!3
250 153

Loss / (gain) on obligalion
- Demog€phicassumptions
' Financialassumptions
- Experi€nceadjuslrnent
Relum of, plan assats ov€rinlercst income
Toral re-measuremsnts recognised in ocl
ComponenE of plan arsst

Cash and cash €quivalents - nei
Govommenl Secu ties
Ordinary sh.rcsrTFCs

{992)
(310,891) (149,752)

13,695 (283,482)
104,100

__-__l:.9tI!It _____..1!99!?9I

254,914
659,789

1,'172,369

372,963

375,000
1.650,268 295

____2t!0$a
seruilivity analwi3

Sensitivity analysiE has been pe.fomsd by varying one assumplion kssping all other assumptions constant and calculaling tha
impact on the pressnt valu€ of the delined benetit obligatons lnder the va/ious employ€€ bsn€lit schemes. The increase /
(decrease) in the present valus of defin€d benefit obligalions as a l€sull ot change in sach assumplion should be sLrmma sed ls
summarized as bolow:

2018

Bsn€fit Chango
Obliqation

---(R'rpa€. in 000)---

1% increase in discounl rct€
1% d8creas€ in disco'rnt rate
1 % incrcass in oxpecled Eteofsalary incrcase
1 % decrcas€ in exp€cled rale ofsalary increase
100,6 inc.ease in withd€wal l.ate

10o/6 decreaso in withdrawal rate
1 year lvlortality age ser back
I year l\Iortality ag6 sel folwad

'r,332,323
1,612,385
1,622,E18
1,321,665
1,468,848
1,454,266
1,460,734
1,462,760

38.11

38.12

3E.13

Expacted conrrlburioB ro b6 paid to th€ tund3 h tno nrxt flnanclal y6ar

Expoctod charss / (rovsBal)for ths noxtfinanclal ys

Malurity profile

The undiscounied expecled payments matunly is tabulatod below:"

Particula6

142,273
1137,787)
(44,22O'l
152,932

5,750
20,332
13,864
't 1,838

2018
(Rup6es. in

'000)

106,243

106,243

(R!. in '000)

148,556
108,648
,t 15,755
105,011
121,440
746,583

7,610,572

Yeat 2

rq h/
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38,14 Fundlng Pollcy

ThB bank's policy for fund iig lh€ slaff rclkemenl behefil schem6s, s given in note 4.9 (a)

3E.15 Risk tusociatsd with Definsd Ben.fitPlin.

3!t OEFINEO CONTRIBUTIOiI PLAN

40 EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEME

.Delails of share options gGnted under the sch€m€ logelherwith the status as at Dec€mber 31,20.18 ars as toflows:

ksetVolatility
Theriska ses dueto the inclusion ofthe skyass€ls in the pension/glaiuity fu nd podfollo, iiflalion and iilercst late volaul ty

Chang6 in Bond yi.ld!
The ask ads*when bond yield is low€rihan ihe expected €turn on the plan asssts (durarion based PtB disco! nr .at€)

Itrflation Rbk.
Th€ risk a s8s il pension/gratrily benefils ar€ llnk€d to inrlation and the inflallon is hlgher or higher than expected, which rcsLrlrs in
higher llabilities

Llfo .ry.ctancy / Withdrawal RlBt:
Th€ risk ot actual withdrawals varying with the acluaial Fssomplions can impose a risk to the benefit obrigation. The mo1/ement of
lhe liability can so eilhBrway.

The isk ads€s when the actuallifetihe of relirees ls longerlhan exp€clation. This risk is msasured at ihe ptan levetover the €ntire

Sal.ry lncrsa.€ Rl.k:
The most common type ol rcllrem€nt ben€tit is one whe€ the benefit is linked w h tinat satary. The dsk arisas when ihe aciuat
increases arc higherlhan €xpectation and impacts lhe tiabitity accordingly.

The Bank operales an approved provident fund scheme lor att irs.pennanent emptoyees lo which both ihe Bank and amptoyees
contdbuio @ 8.33% ofbasicsalary in oquat monthty contibutions.

During the year, the Bank contribured Rs. 309.371 miltion (2017 Rs. 307.1 35 m tion) in Gsp€ct of thts fund.

The Bank has gBnt€d share options to cetuin crilic€l employees, (the 'employess') under rhe Emptoyes Stock Options Scheme
(ESOS) as apprcved by the shaEholde6 and Sscuilies and Exchange Commission ot Pakistan (SECP) vid€ its lelt€r no.
SMD/CIWESOS/022013 datsd December 27, 2013.

Under the Scheme, lhe Bank has glanled options to these emptoy€€s (as setected by the Boad Compensalion Commilree,
specilically lomulaled as rcquked und€r the Public Companies (Emptoyees Stock Option Sch€me) Rute!, 2()Ol) to subsc be for
fresh odjnary shares of the Bank (being issuanc€ of funhe. capital without issus ol rights) ln the years 2014 2015 and 2016. No
fiesh glanls w€€ mad6 aft€r the year 20'16. However, du6 to a bonus i$ue of 10% in October 2o.lg, alt emptoy€€s having
exercisabb oplions oulsianding werc entitled lo addiiionalShares wod(ed out in accordancewith lhe provisions ofthe scheme. The
rcvissd opllon enlitlementand the revised option price hava besn disctosed betow.

Under lis scheme, the options entills lhe selected employees lo p!.chas6 shares at 4oolo discount (the Option Discount), ol ihe
mad(el price prevaiilng at lh€ dals of lhe g€nl. As per lhe Schem€, lh€ enlitl€menrs and €r6rcise price arc subject to adjustmsnls
because of issue ot ight shares and bonls shar€6. Th€ oplions c5rry n6ilher dght lo divid6nds nor voting ghls tiit shEres are issued
to employees on exercise ofoptions.

R

l]

u

L]

U

t_

Oplion no longer in issue

Options available for exercise
Exercise pice p6r shars
Adjusled erercis6 p€r share for finaltanche of year 2016
Option discounl per share

Grant€d ln
tlre Glanlad ln lho Gr.ntod in th6

y€ar2016 ysar 2015 ys.t 2014
------{tn.000)----------

'12,614

3,294
2,407
2,42A

11,331
1 732

13,737
4,199
3113
3,056
2.405
14.95
13.59
9.96

15.15

10 10

'16 32

10 88
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41 COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS ANO EXECUTIVES

Chlef Executive Olrectors

2018

153,981 126,01A

3,533 4,607

2014 2017 2017 2018 2017

[,,lanagerial remuneration

Posl employmenl benerits

Renl and house maintenance

ulililies

99,467

5,887

107,186

7,676
1,951,45'l

93,366

st4,037

119,597

3,320,026
378,720

990,317

249,635

108,887 119,469 153,98t 126,01A 2,678,451 4,938,698

Number of persons 1 2 9 6 541 1973

41.1 The Chief Executive and cerlain Executives have been provided with the tree use of cars and household equipment as per
Bank's policy.

41.2 All erecutives, including the CEO ars entilled lo certain short term employee beneits which arc disclosed in note 29.'1.1 lo
thes€ linancialslatemenls. ln addilion, the Bank also granled share options to certain key employees of the Bank in the year
2014, 2015 and 2016, which shallvest till lho yoar 2019 - ref€r not6 39 and Annexure on Employee Stock Option Scheme.

41.3 The count for Executives has been reduced from 1,973 in 2017 to 541 in 2018 due to a change in derinition of the
Executives, Earliea, any employee having an annual basic salary of Rs. 0,5 million or above was defined as an Executive.
This lhreshold has now been increased to Rs 1 2 million.

42 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The fah value of quoted secuaities olh6r lhan lhose classifed as held lo maturity, is based on quoted market price. Quoted
securilies classiried as held to malurily ar6 canied al cost, The fair value of unquoted equily securities, other than
invesiments in associates and subsidiaries, is deiermined oo the basis of the break-up value of these investmenls as per
lheir lat€st available audited financial slalements. Tho fair value of unquoled debt securilies, lixed lerm loans, other assels,
other liabilities, ixed term deposits and borrowings cannot be calculated with surfcienl roliability due lo the absence of a
curent and active ma*el forthese esaets and liabilities and r€liable data regarding market rates for similar jnslruments.

ln th6 opinion oflhe management,lhe fair value of lhe remainang ,inancial assets and liabililies are not signilicanlly differ€nt
from their carrying values since lhese are eilher short-lerm in nalur6 or, in lhe cas6 of cuslomer loans and deposils, are
frequently repdced.

42.1 Falrvalue ot financial a3sets

The Bank measures fak values using the following fair valuo hierarchy that reiects th6 signiiicancs of lhe inpuls used in
making lhe measurementsi

Level 1i Fair value measurdmenls using quoled prices (unadjusled) in active markets for idenlicalassets or liabilities.

Level 2: Fair value measuremenls using inputs olher than quoled prices iflcluded wilhin Level 1 thai are observable for the
assets or liability, eitherdirectly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from p ce6).

Level 3l Fair value measuremenlr using input for th6 asset or liabilily that are nol based on obs6rvable ma*ei data (i.e.
unobservable rnpuls). u (
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Ttre t.bte berow a.atys* fiianoat insrrumenG measued at rhe end olih6 eponlng penod by lhe levelin tho hir vaLue hie@rchv into which lhe iakvalue
reasureme'scalesonsed.

Frn.ncl. r ....4 . n...urd .r l.k v.ru.

Fodd.r Gd.dn6nl So@ liet

No+Govmmod o.br s€ont.!

on.b.r.n...h.dnn..cl.l lnrrrum.nB. m€$uEd ir.kv.lu.
FoMad purcn ss or lo.elon .xdaio.
Fo ard sal. oI toi. gn.rchai9.

FN*d Nrcna!. Oov.mmo.l s@rili.. hnFclloru
Foffid $r€ 9ov6m6l r.tudu4 traNscton.

Fcd.Bl Govmh6il s.ontut

Non-Gov.mmdt06brs.@n[.t

Fo .rd purcnae or lorglgn .rchss.
Fotu.rd ..r. ot roroion ox.nang€

FN.rd .o6mdtE f( l.ndlns
Fw&d aorFn.ntc ror bordins

I

l

l

l
3

0

I
I
I
@

B

n

o.riv.tiEr pu$.r.. '- 14114

c.aaii c.leqoi.r ot flx.d .$.l! (lad *d brirdingo .id nM Mnking &s.l! a.quiEn in *ti$acho. ot caid. are ef,i.d .t r.v.u.d .mou.G (Lv.l 3 m..$Bm.nu
t.rmirEd by prct..siffil v.tum b.!.d m th.ll a5s6!fr t.1lh. rofr.t v.ru.! .! di.clo..d i ml.. 10 .nd 12. Tt€ valualid aG @dd.d by in. v.lu.lion .xp.n6

.rFinr6d b, rhe &nk rhicn d aEo on th. p.ml ol staL B.nk or P.ki3L..

The aank s pot cy is to reeonize rE.sfeB inio a.d oul ol the difbrc.t lair wlu6 hiearchy levels al the dal€ lh€ evenl or change in circumstances thal

@u6ed th. rBnsrer @un€d. TheG @6 rc t6nsie6 beb{een l€vel! 1 and 2 dldng Ih€ cu@nl per od

v.lua{on t .hnlquo. us.d in d.r€m lnatlo. ol f.lr vdu..:

Fi.an.i.t in6truln.nt ln levol 1

Financialinsrruments lncllded n leveL 1 comp.iseDtinvestments in odlnary shaGs oi listed @mpaniB

Fin.n.irl ln.Irrm.nt3 In l.v.l 2

t]

U

u

t_

FmanciaL inslrume.E incrLd6d i. level 2 comptug oI Meder T€aBory Bllls, Palislan lnvBlmenr Bonds, GoP sukuks, oveBea3 Govomme.l sukuks

overseas and Euo Bonds, Tem Finane c€n fet6s, 3nd orhe. rhan Govomrenl slkuk, toNa.d loroign erch.nle @nt6cB, and nlorest rale swaps.

Flnrnclll lnslrumont! h ler.l 3

Curenlly, no inancial n3hments ae c assilied in l.vel3

The fa I vatue ot unquoled detn seu tes, fix€d r6m loans, orher ,ss€ls, other labiliri*, ixed l€m deposils and bororing3 cannot be calculated wilh

sutrcient €tabtly due lo lhe absencs of a curBnt and acu!6 maftei tor th6so assets and llabiiliB and r6liabl6 dala rcgardlng fialkel Eles tor similar

v'1"'r1.. 
'bnrueh 

.nd ln6nt B.d
Foead ,oreign erchanse co.l€cts rhe,aluatioi haB be€" del.mmsd by inieaolaling lhe Fx rovtlualion €les annolnced

by srar€ Bank oi Pakist5n.

rh€ l6iMlu6it nteei Ele 3wap. and tutu€s is delemined u3i.g pnc6s a.d cud€s

Ma el Treasury Bills(MTB) / Pakisi.n lnv.stmed oo.ds(PlB), Th€ Jtirvalue ol MTBS and PiBs aB d. v€d lsins PKRV €les GIS ae €valued usinq
PXISRV ar6. FloaUng rare PlBs aE rgvalued usi.g PKFRV rates

OveBas GdemmenlSukuks Ov.66as and Elro Bonds Th. rak v.lu6 ol Ove66as Govommenl Sukuk. and Ove6€$ Bonds ae valled o. the

basrs ol Dnc6 .va,lebre o. Boomb6o.
Debl seu t es (rFCs) and Slkuk olher tM. Govemme.l 1 WApDA SuIJls debl ssunris (@mprc,ng l€,n irance cedricales

bonds and any olher s€cuniy issud by a company or a body @DoEte lor lhe puQ6e ol
Gislng tund3 in lh6 lom oI rcdeemable @pilal aE vaiued on lhe basis of lh€ rales
announc€d bylho Mlllsrlunds Associauon of Pakislan (MUFAP)in a@odance wilh ihe
melhodolosy presc ben by the Seudlies and Exchanoe Conmrssion olPaklslan

Th€ tat value oI investmenls in listed eqlity seu.ilies a.e valued o.lhe basis olcloslng
qlold merket pn6 av.irabrs at th6 Pakisran st@k €xchange

OpeEIinO lixed assels and no. bankinq ass.ts acquired i. satisl: Th. valuat o. erpe.ls used a ma*et based appMch lo adve at lhe la r value ot lhe
6anks poperlies. The ma et sppoach used pric4 and other Elevant nlomatio.
gensBled by ma*el transaciions mvolvlng identical or compa€bl€ or s milar properlios
The.6 values aE adjlsred to eflecr rhe cuBt@ndirion olrhe prcpedies. Th. efbcl oi
changes in th€ unobseoable inpus lrs€d in lhe valualions can nol bs delermined with
certainly a@odingly a quallaliv6 discl6uE ol sensilivily has nol been p€senled in lhese

\(
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45 CAPITAL AOEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUIOIry REQUIREMENTS
2018 2017

----(Rup6$ in 000)----

Minimum Capital R€quirement (MCR)

Paid-up capilal(net of losses) 17,743,629 16,075.720

Capilal Adequacy Ratto (CAR):
. Eligible Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) Cepitat

Eligible Additionat Tier 1 (ADT j) Capitat

Tolal Eligible Tier I Capitat

Eligible Tier 2 Capitat

Total Eligibl€ Capirat (Tier 1 + Ti6r 2)

59,809,?69

7,000,000

53,661,948

Risk Weighted Assets (RWAS)

Credit Risk

l',,larkel Risk

Operalional Risk

Totat

485,93t,845

2,633,875

80,228,838

426,690,882

3,607,588

60,929,350

82,049,506 65,779,204

548,794,358 491,227,a20

10.90% 10.92%

ffi
ffi

6.00% 6.00%

ffi
ffi:

66,809,769

15,239,737

53,661,948

12,1'17,256

630,592,999

472,759,179

555,280,073

405,154,261

Common Equity Tier.t CapitatAdequacy ratio
Tier 1 Capilal Adequacy Ratio

Total Capatal Adequacy Ratio

ln line with Baset lll Cepilal Adequacy guidelines, following capital requirements are appticable to tho Bank

Common Equity Tier 1 CapitatAdequacy ralio
Tier 1 CapitalAdequacy Ratio

Total Capital Adequacy Ratio

For capilal adequacy calculation. Bank has adopted standardized Approech lor credit 8 Markel Risk retaled exposurcs andAllernate Standardazed Approach (ASA) for op€rationat risk_

Lev€rage Ratio (LR):

EligibleTier"l Capital

Tolal Exposures

LeveEge Ratio

66,809,769

t,185,19t,511

53,661,948

1,320,360,473

5.64% 4.06%

252,703,051

162,363,26,i

234,488,065

165,803,247

Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR):

Tolal High Quality Liqujd Assels

Total Net Cash Oumow

Liquidity Coverage Ratjo

Nel Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR):

Tolal Avaiteble Stable Fundihg

Total Required Stabte Funding
Net Slable Funding Ratio

t]

L

I
L

1560/, ula/a

1330/, 1374/a

46.t The fulldisclosures on the Capitat Adequacy, Leverage Ratio I Lrquidity Requrements as per SBp instructions has beenpleced on lhe websrte. Th6 t;nk to the fu, disctosur. is aviatabte al htips./w,rw. U"n r,"tt"i"t ."o'n,mn"n"i"t-r"pon.l.

.L1V
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The variety of busness aclivilies lnde.taken bv the Eank requrc stfective identifcalton, measuroment, montto ng, tnlegration andmanaeemenr or dinercnr rinanciar and non-lina;ciar sks rh .;rc corshiy ;v"l;"s 
';J ii;ii;J lii,.", 

"n"nn" 
,n ,"",on"" ,iconcureni iniemarand €xiernar dsveropm€nrs. rhe Bo.d R,sk laanaseftenr c;mmire€ iBir.,rci," "pi".i.o *o *h"riz6d by ihe Boardo'Drcdols (Boor lo ass,sr i^ desisn egLrar evatuarron and n,eyLpirar,-g o .e /si mj_g"i,l,"r-ri,i,i"*"" 

",u," 
san<. Tha Board t^asrJnhe' aJi.o,:u ed m.rae€meni co-mft€es ,.e. cerr.ar rlra*g.."r c".,i,rr"" rcrvicj ;;;a;;i;;i;;;;;"..,,,". (ccc). -o supetu s€nsr manasemehi actvn63 srhin rhe,r especrNe scopes br,,rc n"" runr,ei J;ri!il il;;r-;iilel such as Ass6is & Lrabiti,escommfle€ (ALco) rnvesrmonr comm e€ hromarion rechnorosy sraen"E ao'm,r,ilree in$; ;il;il?rora complance comnitee(ICCC) and Prcc€ss lmprcv.me.t Comminee (ptc).

The sk man'gemenl ll.mowork end€avours to b6. comprehensive and evotving gutdeti.e to caler to ch.nging business dynamics. The

- Clea ydeti.ed isk managehent poticies and plocedules.

_ well constituted organizational strucluro, ln ths lom of a selarale flsk m.nagement department which ens!.8 thal tndividualsrespo.sible for nsk aoDrovst.re,ndependent trom risk takinE Jniis ie BLsiness Unlts

- Mecnanism forongoino rcvtewotpoticies and procedures and riskerDosuEs.

The Pimary objeciivo ot lhis archileciure is io inculcat€ rsk manag€ment into rhe organization row3 ro ensu. rhar nsks a," a@lratetyidenr''red 8 assess€d p,op€4v documenr€d. .Doroved -"."a.q*i",v."",llo i.;;;;;;;:;;;."""" ,ons rem eam rss anolo prolecl rho i.ieEsis ofhe Bank s oeoos(ors and shsE^otd.^

The sank's isk m.naqemenl lramewodr has 6 w.tr-delFed organizaiionatstructlr€ for etf€ctivo man.gsme ot credtt Risk, Malkoi Risk,L'ouidily REk operat,onat R,s'(, tT securry Rbk crea,r nisr syirons ara envt;;;;i;il;i;ii:,""''

I
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L

t

cred 'isk E lhe dsniifcarion ol oroDabrrv fl-at m',.tsrpary!i[ causs a f.ano.t toss to rhe Bank due lo rl3 rnabiity or unwlhgnass ron€er s cont,aciuar obriearion rh,s c,edir'isk a1s6s na.nry r.om boih dtrec|endin; jji,ri,!" 
"; ""li"J-""",,"g"nr abir,r.e3. c,ed,r nskmanagomenl processes encomo.ss identiricari.n msessmenl, measrrremsnt, moniro-,.i"g 

"nJ -ni.rorii*,s .xposure roc€dir risk. TheBanrscredil r.k manasemenl phrrosophv,s based on Ba*t *""rrr*i"""i iitbsy i"a*.,t" 
""-"ii"i',"*o uy,he aoard. The Bank iscomr tred ro r"6 approp'iare revero, o-e d,roen@,o e.sJre u"ar seo'r risrrs r.ave oJln ;;;;il;"G;;lj,ry dr,","sod ro rne approuns

;:j::*:i;:'r:::fj1,""51, 
quatried 

'rs;e'su'ins rhar rhe credir conmirhori ,s ep,,"'p'i"i"-rv 
"il,i,i."c 

p.*d {F ,ne wiin na.ker

The Bank has bu/t and maintarred a sou.d roen nodotio in tems o. w€tHenned c.odit potrcy approved oy BOD. trs c.ed ev.tusr;asvsrem @mpnses of rel{esEnsd cred aooraisar. s.ncr onrrg and reviow procedu.s fo, rr,. pr'p"!i oi 
".pnr"i.i"g 

otuderca d rendrngacriviti6s and o.surins ihe h,sh quariry o. ass€r Doiror,o. r".,ui,, r. n,"" ",i"i.lJ,",;; #"#i;;;.;"","",.,rd ro crosery.risn rs

lil:::l;:tl:*:[::: 
"i::loDivision 

h's separa,e mirs 
'o'o,p"'a" 

u.*l"e, i;;.i.-uliti",, L,.'"ii"ra srae o,"r"e. 
"6,",ii"ii]

Th€ Brnk manag€s iB porlfolio ol loa. asseG wirh a view to timrt concantr.tions h tenns ol isk quatity, mdustry, matuiiy and targeexposure. lnbmat ratinc based poifotio anarysis is atsocono"a"o -.s,i*o"i*ir,i" o"#"rii ,.r"r JJ.'",gn, ,. ,"intain€d by c€dir &
For Oorostrc oDerarrcns, Bank determh€s tho amd.tJor Sp€cifE a cenerat pousions ars hetd as per the prLd€nnat Rogutatons ssuedbv fo sr're Eank or pakEian (sBp). provisiors ar overssas bGnches arc h;E ro mea t'" ,"qri-i""i" 

", "grr"io/y 
surhor.ries or rhsrespeclN€ counlries in which overseas branchas operate3.

A sophisncaled rnromalcrodil Eling svsrsm E in praco whrch is capabrsot quanrdyi.g cou^ierparry a l.ansacircn risk rn accordance wrhth€ best pracl'|ces' rhe nsk rarinq svsrem rakee inro consd€rai.or qJarirsriv€ anl ;ua.r ar"il"LJ* 
", 

,n" counr€r-orny. i,nsacrrornruclu/e 8' secuniv and oonerates hrsmar ,arinds er obr'eor ana rai'r'rv revers ie'i"i,iii ,li,ii"lr'"i#. .",.,"ped in r,ne w h sBp.seuider,n€s aiso provides exp€cred LGo , Loss c;an Dera,iir. rr,i. m" 0"6, ,.pl."ir; ;6;;,,,1ilii ,", ,rr.m,c Bankiq a.d Rerair& Mddre v'rrcr seomenrs Funhemore rh,r rkr.m has 
"i i","g,.'uo ,"* o,:e;"iii;;;,j;,;;;; i"i:"".,,y o"he used n corporar€Bankirs. rsraic Bankinq and Rerair seom€.rj rh. sysrem ,s ;eur.dy €vi€;"d-io, ;;;;ilil ; ;:, sBp.s su:der.res for rrre,na.cred Rar'ne and R,sk uanacemenr. runhemore n"ni r,a" arso 

"-,to.ar"o 
rnr*"1;;il;s;ffi;;;;,#.. ,.seo 01 srarisiicar iesrs ro.coForar€ comme.ar. vE sE & Ash ,ar,no modera. ,r covea ootr arscrin.narion i cEir'iliiilili:liillio* * *, o"sr pracrces ,^esvsrem is bacr<d by secured darabase wirn ba.kuD sLppon ano s capaore or gen;rg- iiii-)lii"ioi"*,,,g 

".apshor 
or rhe enn,eponrorro'or nrat"g. s and decrson makino Tre s;sbm h.s le€n ennanceo ro io'npau ir" 

"rr 
*l,is;# asse* requrred ,or sJDpo,rhgne cred racir ,a6 .r rhe tme or cr6dir o,.ei.anon and co.po.rion or ii"-r ,,i"gd;;:;ti;:';;:^",,y 

""d risk €rared Bas€r
A cenrrarized cred( Adminisrrarion oMsron rcAor Jnder cEdir &,Risx ManSgemenr Group rs workrng rowards ensuring rhar iems or.pprovaror cr.dit sancrions and resuratory stioutation3 ar. co'pled. al docum;ntalror i*rriii"g *;,;;;"*,_uto. is resutar & ,L,yenbrc€able and all drsbLirsemenis ofaDoroved rrc,t,r,.s ar6 made orty atrer nece3sary auto.r.6" LvCiO c,"O,r u.nitoang LrderCAO.keeps a warch on rhe qua, v or rh. c,edir oonrorio ir rrms or o"^".i,", o"r,."t,ilo1,"ri;;:;;;"i;r:;;,",, ,",",,o1sh,ps and ,eponsil lo lhe appopn.re author,ty wnh a view to adesidereaoEt,

]:_tl:l.tl: *"9.r',TJ requrEmenrs or manrsrns dstinquenl .nd probrem ,c&unrs, the BEnk has a separai6 crient racrns unit ronesoxare repaymenv seruemenr or rhe B.nk,s non-oe,fomins exposure lno pdea irri t"i;;;;iil;;k. d"p".ilon.nd stakshotdesunlike ouer bankins o,oups. where rhe ono v k rh. m-aximiz"ri- or e-ril."," ]," p"oaty 
"irL-;p""", 

a*"r uanageme.l Group{SAMG) s ecovery orrunds and/orio srrudure en ar.nsemenr (such as ,eschedL,,,ns. ,."i,,;,;|";. ;;1fi"", 
", ".ombinanon 

o,rhese/by-{hrch rie f,l8rssrs or.ths Bank are p,otecled. wn€re no orher recoL6e is possibje, Srvo 
^uiy iio#o *n" r"gat recoulse so .s roraxmE. ihe €covery or rhe Banks asseh rhe R,sk Ma.asemenr orvisior aiso moni* ir" Nei i"-i"i," o n" aank ,nd repo.rs rhesame ro ccc/8Rvc 

4k 
- -
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t7,1.1 Cr€dlt Risk -Gone.at ObctGures Basol Spociltc

Bank Alfa 3h Limrled rs usrno sl.ta'dEed approach rsA ofsBp Base. accord rorrhe Durcose o.6srrnaring cedl Rr3k weigh,ed Assers.undersa ba'ks are alowed ro rak€ hro consd anon erranar ,arms61 6i ao'.Ie.-ii[- lii"" p",po"" or""",,"r.9 Rjsi we,shredA3sals.A delaled pro@dL.al manJal sp6c'iy,rs reiuFbased rormai;. Eeihodotos;s a'"a proces*s ror oenvins c.ai 
",rr 

w.iliiJAsssB ln acco'oance w rh the SBp Baset Stard.rdizea App,oacrr 
" 

i" p a* -J r,;.]v aor,f,"l o
47.1.2 Dl3ctosure! tor po.fo o subJoci io lhs Standardbld Approach &Supsrvbory tukwetghrs
47.'1.2.1 Extornallating!

sBP Basel lll guidelines requilg banks to use- ratings assigned by specifBd Enemal credil A$essmeni trsritutions (EcAts) nanetyPACRA, JCR-V]S, Moodys, Fitch and Srandad & poo;.

Tha sltle Bank of Dakrslan lhrous. iis let€r nuFber BSDEAT-2,2o1/1200/2009 daied D€csmber 21, 2oo9 h.3 accorded approvat to ileBank ro, us6 or Erinss ases.ed by c€dir R.rhs asen.v 
"r 

e_oro*i icieir'iijii"di. rn" e-r *u" ihes6 Ecars ro.are rssxposures denominared i. Banerad.shi cufteicy o; c€iain "",pi.t ",,i1 
0."i" i"t-pii.red ii Bangt.dssh.

The, Bank.usos enemal rai.gs for rhe puposes oI computing rhe nsk weighb as per tha Brset t iiamewo(. For exposurcs wirh acon.actu.t marunry or t€ss rhan or squa,o-oneyear s.oni"'"- ot,g s,*" 6v 
"pp.oi"o 

iri,ig eg"*i"r,. *"0. **.;;;";-i;;;srposure wiih maunty otg,sate.lhan on6 year,.ong.tem ratrng is u3ed

whercrheE are lwo 
'alrngs 

availabls, the lower,ating is consideBd andwheE the€ ars rhr6sormore rarngs lhe second - lowest €ri.g is

47.1 .3 Disctosuros with r€sp€cr to Crcdtr Risk Mttisa(on for Standardtsod App.oach 
.

47.1.3.1 Cr6datrl3k mt0gation poticy

The Bank deiines collateral as lh€ assets or ights p.ovided to the Bank by rhs borcu/er or a thid pany rn oftrer to secuB a cred tacirity.rh€ Bank woutd have rhe.iqtrts or securea creiiror in resp"a "it" *""r. r """i"Jl"ii#j 
ji'iecunV 

ro, tne oorigations o,lhe borower

47.1 .3.2 collat€rat vatua{on and mrnagomont

As slipulated in lhs sBP Basel lll lll duiddines the€ank us€3 rhe comprehens{e approach for colal€ratvaluarioi. unde,lhis approach,lhe Eank redlc€s its credil exDosu.6 io a caLrnteryariv when carcurarrng ns epnat reqiiremenis ro rne errenr or,isk mitisation prcvided bvrh6 erisibre rinanciar corarorar as sleci,ied ,n rhaBa;d riil;r,";;.iliniffi il;i]i,ir]i"giioa,*, t. a*r.akes adjustmenrs ineris,br. corar€,ars rec€ived ro' pos'bre r, ure ,,a*r"^-i" ,,i ,ii," "ii;;;;;;;;'.';#** "" 
r€qutremenrs spscined oy sBpsuiderines rhes€ a4urmsnrs. arso €fetred. ro as ha,rc,r" r" p,"a,* ,"Lr,rriv 

"i;"Ji"i ,.i,"," ,", .o,",",.,. 
",6 

Educ€d ,rom rheeroosure locompute tho c€p tatchaSs based on the appticabt€ iak ws{hls.

47.1 .3.! Types ot colarerrt takon by tho Bant(

Bank Atfatah Lim,ted doternhes the appropnats colal€rat tor €ach facrlry based oi ths lyp€ or prclJct and coJnioryany. ,n case ofcorpo,t€ and sME rirancins. rired assst" ar6 sen6'ar! raken as sscunv r; ilg i""ji'l"liJ and curenr assers ror wo*ins capiiarrnan@ usualrv bact'd bv morlqaqe or hvpothEcal; ro, p.rua n*".r. 
""iriity.,. 

r"" 
"."-"r" " 

o" ro"o*u, rnd assignFenr or rheunderryins prqecr co.r,"crs s sen€Bry ob6,.ed. Addd,o*r ;.i;rry -in'J" prJjs,i"l 
"r,],ill].n -r.,",r,, ,0n", ssc/Dscs. ch6.seon ,aceivabres may arso b€ r.k6n. voEover in oEe.io covs. rhe;nnrc e;d;;p;;;;;;,"",."" or oiredols / Borowers aE .rsoobta,ned gerolaly by ihe Bank For relart oroducis. the s""*ty ro u" r.r"ir_i. a"i*jln r""--p-.ora pori"v ro, h" lespecrrve prcducts.Housins roans and automobire oans a€ securcd byih6se*ary;ni p,:"p.-,tviirii.io]," '01,,"'#"""*o 

"r".rvay. 
rh€ vrruarion orrhep6p6rtjes rs car,sd out byar approved vatueton aE€ncr.

-he Bank also offers ooducts which ere 
'r'nanly b.s€don co'larerar sucn as shares. sp€ciued secunt.s .nd predged commod(ies. T\ese

::i,'"',ffi :n fl"%:: [ * -irh tr"6 sBP prud;nii.r ,.eur,i;;;-"J;;*l;;il[ffi.1'*,.n n"" i,",'*ln typ"" ii lJr"oi,i

Tne decsron on lhs 0!e and qlanlLm of col.ier.llor each trrnsacrion,s taken by t6 credii approvrng aurhorily.s p€r rhe cr€dit approvar,uhonze on approved by rh€ cent.ar credir commine€ (cccl *aii t" a"-r"g"i"i, ;"*"1 
..iiirl*,,"" 

p,"rto.o 
"" 

oer app.oved producrpor,c.s (rera,rp.oducrs roan asainsr sharei 6rc.). co,r"r";.r";i;;;;;;;;i;;il;l.; ' ^ ^
47.t.3,4 Typ* of otigtbto fi.anctet cofl.t.rat

For c'edrt r'sk m salron pumoses rcaoilel ,d€ouacy purposer. rhe 8a.k consideB a[typss otf,nanc,a, coJtaterats lhat a€stigbte unde,sBp Base,, accod rhis arso inc'udi casn./ rDni. ojo. *;,"iL" "."* iyil;#il;;*"" *.,, as r-Birs and piBs, N.rioralsavinss csd,ricares csrirn de s€cu, es ,ared by a recosnisea creo ,arm! a,s;il ililil;_* ,r"" dairy Ner Asser va,u€ {NAV)rs-a*rlabre m publ'c domain and sua6.lee3 iiom c€da,a si".,ri"o 
""r.ri", 

,c'o,!..irii oi +r*ii. e-k" a" r *d", subsiirunon etlecr or
:ff:[","Tfl:1,mff[j$S,J"J:i i",H:* ; 

:.. w,h ,he serii,iJ-ti-,"qi,i.ii"a rrre eanrrecoenseso,ye,j,iL

U

!
t"]

t

47.1.3.5 Crcd[ concontraton rtsk

Cred concsnratrcn nsk ans6s o nty di.o to conce.tration ot BtposLrss unds variou3 catego €s vrz. hdustry, gsog€p"ry, andshe./sroup bo(ow€r exposu€s wirhh cred ..r''oro ,., p"ae":ri"ro.i",,.1i,;;fi;;;i'."""s"..ni and avoidance o,mncenr,arion or ,Bis ihe sBp has o€scribed ;.ouraro,y ,imd on banis, max,il;;;";;;il;g;,;"owel and e.oup borowersMoreover. n od€r ro 'usrr, rhe ,ndusirv conc€nr,aion .u;, a*r. **.r 
".a,r 

p,ii 
"p"iri ", ini-r*i,""i ,"**. 

"rposJ' 
rhai ir carrak6 on specnc indusrry. Add :ona v. rhe rnr.harRrhs Sv"r.. ar"*" t" el"i r" "i"i;i";;U;#;U;"",.",,"" "r 

bo(orels asainsidifle,enr s.!des / scores.anqrnq r.om r - r2 rr oerno'e b.ir,"o rz o"ins ro"" ..r"!ifi.';;;;"il;";:,,,"."" rhar ars rared ,r r ehnsk caiegoryisatso moriored againsr rhe ,poove;appelrte ser uy rrre mjnagemeni
Panicula* ofbank's signincanr on-baranc6 sheer and off-oarancs sheer credrr risk rn v.rous sectors.re an.rysed as ro[ow!:
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L6dthd. ro flnanctat tn tund.

lnr6t .nt ln dabl s.curlu.s
credrr .k by tndu.t, i..ror

Agid[U6FoEdlysuili^oandF6hig

Admd]oa^dl€nsp.d.tonaquem6n|

PoE(d.drcry) G33 war.r smery

62,trr,231

_ (iw.rn

cr.d[ .l.k hy publ. / lrtv.k 4ro.

@
cEdr. d.r by hdu.rry..ctor

Fh@I 

-

AoicultJre, Fo@slry, Hunting and Fishing
Automob l. snd Iransportaion equipment

Chemi@t aid Pham..euii@t3

Erectmnica .nd 6 €ctrtet appti.nes

F@tw€.r and Lealher gafrents
lndividuals

Metat& At ied ndlsiries

Powe. (e6cticily), ca5, Wale. saniiary

TraNDon, slo6ge and communi€lion
Whoesae&RelailTade

3,.q707

-___l!,!q$a
codh n.k by pub[. / pnvl. .ctor

14,41227'

1,
____1ff!311.1_
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000)..-----

41.1,1 cnnMnck. and conhnn$e

cedtr t.k by tndultry ..ctor

Agicurtur. FoEstry Hlnting and Fishing
automobile and lrensporiation equipme.l

Chemiel.nd Ph.rm.@utca s

Eledronics afd eleficat app ia n ces

Footwear and Leather Oa/m.nG

Pomr (ererdciiy), cas, waret San tary

TEnspon, SbBqe and Communi€lion
l /ho esals and R.tait T6d6

641,423 271 O4A
5,199,32t6 4 625,145
475,559 2,509,363

3,AO2,117 3,992031
4,333,141 6,243?62
1,316,994 1,A67 320
5,043,665 4 530444

17,923,56' 22033.133
7,593,502 5 230,610
176,269 401,764
213,39A 323,A78
65.33t

343,133 I,A45,122
3,922,411 74a11
586,399 9336,992

30,741,293 20,139,7 14

,,247,152 5,643991
332,925 11 079 370
.131 ,695 1a7 252

22,178,081 16 964,737
3,35a,176 3,380,401
9,4?4_251

--i75:ii :,3 d?9-6o-ffi-Credlt rl!* by pubttc, prtvat. socb.

47.1,3 Con@nrEtlonotAdv.n.d
The bank bp 10 e&osur€s on the basi! o, iota (tunded and non,runded

11,722,*2 27 669 599
110,33,,52t 110230,569
125,112.423 137 gso 153

expos! es ) agge9at6d lo Rs 136.994m tion(2017 1oo7{Smilon) are.s

119,153.93' 63344569
,7,039.556 32403343

Tot6t tund.d cta8tfled th.etn

Thes.n.tronedimrlsagainelh6s6topjO6xpos!r6.aggrclat€droRs191.245Milio.(pnoryea/:153oe2Mition)

20r3

Am6unr provtston

Rup.* ln 00O).------,

For th6 purpc. ot thB nol6, exposuE means out.tand ng fund€d t ci iti$ and ltjtis.d .on-rund€d ,adtiti4 as ai lhe Eponjng dale
47,1,9 Adv.oco. - Prcvtnc./R.gton-wt.. okbuB.n. a !ft t Eflon

ntr
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47,!

Ma st 
'isk 

exPoses the Bank lo ths risk ol linancial losses resulirng frcm movemsnis rn maftet pfices. tl j3 ihe isk associaied wirh chanoes,. rhs rte'e$ rates. forssn ercr.anoe rares. eou.rv pnces_.no 
"i.,oa,ty 

pi"".. ro ";";ila; ;il;;;".;;il#;"t;Eoard aporoved.Market & L.qud y Rist Manas;renr poticy s in p6cs The p","v 
"iiir*" 

i*"ir"n*d rsk @rlrot srucrLrerespons birrr.s or ,€r6vanr siakehordels w rh respecr ro ma*et iisr man"sem"nr ani ,;ih"d:; ;;;";;; -d corr.r marker sk eriedout ar , po.lrolio rever' Moreover' ir also incrudes conrrors which are appried, wtril.e nec!"""r1,, i" iriti*u".r ,*l ryp.., io pa(icurar booksand to spec ric gxposures. Thess contlols includ€ timils on exposure ro iidividuar m. et i ii ,l,iiir"" l" *r 
"" 

ri.ris on conc€nrraiions orlenorsand issueB. This structure is €vi€w€d, adjusted a.d approved psriodicaly,

undar lhe BoD appDved poli6v,lhe Bank's Assal and L,abliicommir6e (alco) and rnvestmsnr commi[ee (tc) a€ prima ty responsibt€ro, rhe oveB,shi or rhe mark6r nsi. suppongd oy marler risi m"naee.enr unir Lr nisrr i,r;""i"r"ii ji,.i." r*,vor -.e B.nk Lses rhestandadEed App,oach 
'o 

carcurare caDnarchame rormarr" *r *-p",n" 
",,""i .g,;r,i?;;;;;i ;"d", 8","1, / 1r. Furrhs,.or.,rhe B.nk csrfl€s oui risk assessmenr v,a d,€rs,Gd,ools inc 

"o "g 
varue 

"t 
nis^ rvanl"ili;ii, diri,., r".," porr) and ourai,on on

ii33"ilil"T""?;I".,3i.", ""o 
ascenai$ t.s imp.cr orma"a a"i 

"^ "r"*"ir,a". 'r,,"ai'.i,i"'i",r,"i *a r"r".a cap,rarAdequacy

Foroign oxchange sk

Foreign exchango (Fx) sk arEes lrom thefluctualior h th6 vatu6 ot linanoat innrumenk d!€ tothe chanses Ln foreign sxchangs rates. Fx'isk is rainry manas.d rh,oL,sh marched pos,r@rc u"marcrreo posiriois a.a iov'm;;;b:i;";;i;,#,i;1' d",,,"riv€ nsrrumenis slch as

The Banl 
'lso 

6a"ases Fx ris{ by setlrng a.d mon to ng deater ard cu src}-wss rirns The cur6.cy rsk 
's 

regLrated and mon,to,edas.inst lhe EsLrlalory/slaiutory .rmits erfocd bv ir.F Srai.i-r or c*i"t"n.rt,'" .*",s; 
","r,.ig" 

;;i,, r"rb t" .spsclre cur€nciesar6 manag€d againsr rhe prosfibed rirn,rs Risk is$ssnenr wlh lGspecr ro Fxdsk is,eis"i""J,i.J.,'" 
"- 

Lsrb, b".is rhrcugh vaR

The analvsis below Epr€senls lhe concentlalion oflhs Bank's toreign cufiency nsk lor on and ofl bal.ncs sheet financjatinstrumenlsl

cur€nry{ise asse6.nd riabiriri.s conside.ed above hav€ been prssenred on g,oss basis as per respecriv€ currencies.

3539

Rur... tn,0.0)--_--._ __ (Ru p... ri ,ooo,.-__*_-_-.-_.-,_

72,109.055 117,3tt3,74' 45,325,31irr q.569
2.339,153 5,09!,350 2,160,22! . S,S:S2,J32,2a1 4,1t2,52a ,,8i3,23G rZ,Ser315 i./Oo 3,906 2,527

30,913,270 30a.or4.-rr;;fi" -i;i;#t i;h
5.2A6 262

(Rup...tn

rn ,000)-----_-._-_
smkhs book ra.dr.o b@i 6 ffitEi---ffili;ffi

lmpa.t of 1% chan!6 in foelon 6xchana. ..tes on
- P@rt a.d tGs Ecrount
- Oth€r comp@hensive in@me

1,111

47,3,1 Balanc. .ho.t splt by hdtng .nd b.nkt.g boob

47.3.2 Equity post(on Rtsk

23,rr3dt _ 23,5!9,aa,

--n"-,rn .r:zi;r-riliiiiit

B.nklngbook tradhgbook_..---._{RuP.{ r..000)_**___-__-_

C.6h ad bEr.ncss *fln rr.6ruB bank3
8ar*! pifi orh$ b.nks
Londinss lo finaiciat hstituriqs

Equ:tv posilion rsk ar*es due io adve.e movem'nk ,n the pric€s oieoiirjes and msrrumenrs exh,birrng behavioLrr smi,ar ro equiries herdbv rhe bank rh€ B'nk s equirv ,nvesr,,6nrs !,. c,*ir'ed as Avaihbr€ ro, sare (AFs);;;;;,;',#ili;i il.-r).*srms.B.,ho objecriveor Inveslmenis classrti€d as HFr podforio s ro rak. adyilrgs o, snod r€rm capt.t gains whib rhe iis podotio is marnrah€d w{h amedrLrfi |8rm view ofcap aigarns and duidend incom
eoutvnvestrenrrsr r,iarrein.i,r,""i."i,-""iii"ir.]iaff::li';;Tff'fi:'^::Tfin;"[ffiill,"::liJ:],:i:,"H","*,i,rJi,,"

lnpact or5% chanoo in 6qutvpnce3 on
. Proiir and loss a@ounl
. Olher compBhensiv. ircohe

\il
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47.5 Op€ratlonalRtsk

Ba$l ll detines operalional risk 5s, the sk of loss resutling from ina;equate or laited internar proc6sses, peopte 6nd systems or

i3[r;t:1i1:J,".!'i;"I-:.fi1]iriance 
wth the Risk rlanas;menr o",a"i."i i"","i-uvlep, * op".ir,j""i'nri u"i"g",""i

The operalional risk management policv of lhs Bank rs duty apprcved by lhe Board and operationat Risk lltanagement t\,tanuatcoveru lhe p.ocesses, struclure and funcrions of ope,utonrrii"i ,r"rg;."t ,no p.u'ia._" grd"In"" ro ioentry, assess, moniror,corlroland repori operailo.at r,sk in a cons slenr and rransparert manne; across ihe bani
117.5.1 Operallonat Rt3k Otscto3ure3 - Baset I Spocific

Bank Allalah Limiled is among the ,i.sl lew banks Io secure sBP apprcvat for adoplion ot Aliernative standardized Approach (ASA)under Easel ll lor determinins capital chaQe on opercrionar nisr iri oecemter z6ij1"i'ri""r, 
"r"rr"o ""r"rrai"g 

rt"";pi"i 
"ii;;for ope.ationat dsk on ASA in its tinancials from Decemb€r 31, 2013.

Tho sBP approval slipulated a capital floor ie opsrational risk charge under AsA shoutd noi ral be]ow as a corrain percentage ofoperalional nsk c.Pilal chage calculated undsr Aasic rnui""t"r nppio""t' r"r i"]ii"ij-v"-"i". -n""" noor" *.re 90% for 2ot3 and2014' 8oo/r rot 2ols end 70% ror 2016.Howev6r, re'no*r +c+ir"iFr"oir"i""i"rr"riin'ii<ipit"r cn",g" ,no"r AsA was e(endedin rine wirh rnremationar deveropments and consulatio* or ri'" e"""r-co;.-ittl-"lr"el";i"g 
"rr"*,.i"" 

trcBs), srate Bank ofPakistan is in process of reviewing its instrlclions on Operational risk.

Ths Banks oRM framewod< and oractrces €ddress all the significant areas of oRM within the Baik including Risk controt setfAssessmenr (RcsA), xey R,sk tndietors {KRls), op"*rion"i io"" t"r" 1""s";i"i,'lll' op",",i"""r nisk Repo,1ins. rhe oRi/Unir €ngages wlh Ban<s bJsrless / sripport ur.ls and regr:raay co|aoorares iriol,uirii,"i 
"n6 

,"r,4nn ,n" .sks, and sLggestsco4trors on ie€d basis Add'iiona, v ar rFe porrcies p,ocrear*s -" .r";"'Jii; ;;;;"re rev,ewed rrom the operationar r.skperspecl*e and the recommenoations ol RMD are raken i"r" 
""#io"-"ii"" 

i"i"-. ii",r. 
"ppror"r 

A process rmprovementcommitee (Plc) in this resard has b€en fomed.to^evaruate ana consiaeiirre reco*i"-ni"iioi. or 
"r 

tn" ,"riewers. Further rhe unirarso reviews tuncrionar speci,icarjon documents (Fsosl *o ,"rr"*" i t""r ih" n i"ti"""iiG Ino 
"v.t"r" 

p*pa.ed on prcmise ofiheFsD The operationar Loss oatabase ano rais svsiems 
"r" 

i, pr""" 
"t 

i"r, i""" i;#rurther enhancsd and rhe repo(s aresubmitted to cenlral t anasement committee and B;a,a ai.t 11"""i",*"t c"r.ii"-".-siit aanr ras rLrrrtrer exrended the rimetineior coltection o oss data base repotu til further notice
As rcqln6d by 8asel, Bank has calegorized allils operalion.l ioss/near miss incidents intotolowng toss event categories]
- lnlernal Fraud
- Exlernal Fraud
- Employmeni pract,ce & Wod(ptace Satetv
- Chent, Product & Business pradce
- Oarnage to physicalAssels
- Business Disruption & Syslem Faitlre
- Execltion, Delivery 8 process Managem€nt

And atso mapped the incidenls into fo owing Business Lines:

- RetaitBanking
- Commerciat Banking
- Coeorale Finance
- Trading & Sates
- Payment & settefienl
- Agency Services
- Cost cente6/Cenlralized tunctions

/t7.5.2 tT Security Rtsk

tl

1"1

L

t

The Bank has rn ptace an lT Securirv Rio"""" *i,"i j""i!r?";'d"i";tffi'"*::i".lTlj["J,il#tr ],ffni:iliil"itlli;l*Iililllll.:lH"::iJ: i;Securty Rrsk Manasement unil. funaon,ng within RMO nanages rr anO informai,"" ."irrity 
^1" 

ro O*rs lechnotogy assets bydeveloping lr secunlv oaselines lor lr solutons that supponirooucrs -i""..".. i""rrn1, solurions serecrion. and acqursi(o-incrudiFs vendor aFd/or servic€ Drovioer sere*on ma";i.iJly'iis1*.v r""ii";il;;;"." *. rrc ard procLremenvceniraradm lisrrarion ronironng of ih€ars .nd vLherab,r r; rho;gi securii ooo"i-" d"iu"r 24n ), rnves.garion of rcponedhrormalion secunrv incdenrs. rehrorcemenr.or rrsecu",v ".r"'ir"""""ii "-rip,"vil"'u,li"noo. "o.rrno"uons, 
rorownq up ondue dales wflh stakehorders rcsponsibre for remed'rron ot open ,ssues, 

"i,j'lp"ir"['u," sratus of rr secur,y dsk ro lhehanagemenl and Boad tT Commrtee(A[C) /rTSC/Board

47.5.3 Environmentat & Soctat Rt3k Management Untt
In'llalive lo nlegrale sustar^able linane anprcach 

'n 
cred( evaruar.on and approvar process. Eerng a responsible corporare cirizenwrerever BAFL ooerares rhe Banr( has 

'|nrFsrared 
susr"i"ror" n"r""i 

"pp,o"ii,i][ ["iri'"o**"" ," 
"o 

regerd Green Bankino
;:::'.ilt"t:li:"ffi1?j soc'ar Manasenent svsrem res,sr' o,lv Iip,.",J'ir''i'e loiei or oirecro.s. ras reen pur .n p,ace ,-

The ESMS Framework 6ssentiallv requires thatany retevant rending opportunity is to be r.view€d and evaruared under against:- lFC gxclusion List
-Apptrcabte naiioralaws on environrnont healh, safety and sociatissLrss- IFC pertomaf,ce Standards

Thrs Framewort is an tntegrat p6rt of the credit er
pnor to approvat of the competenl auihor.lv Th;rpj::1| 

prccess and all rclevanl c€drt proposats requte ctearance of E&s officer
,",po"",oi"io, oenr,ry:"g-,"i;;il;;;"yil;:"::[,?ffi::,i"-,:""1"#:i!$ffiiiff::yJ:"1;["1.*fl,*i.#5,,J-;

,1Y
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47,5.4 Credlt Rl3t

This unil is p mailv responsible for developmenl and management of credil Rtsk syslems inctud ing credil tniliatjon & tntemat Ralingsvstem (cllRs) and ils related modul.s rire Bankarfahh ciR rakutaior (BAaiiii"t"o srppons o$,", creait retaied automation &optimization inrrarives rike ecrB automation and credrr Decrsron engrne ri c-!rr"i rrJ*" o.up as aesneo oy l.ranagemenr

47.5.5 Country.lsl

country isk refeB lo ihe Possibililv thal economic 6nd por rcar cond(ions rn a foreign coLrnrry courd adversely impacr the Bank,sexposure in rhat counrry Forrhe Bank country nsk arises as a .e*rr ll tr.," irir.:.'r#i cunencv rending, r,ads and treasurybusiness with counterparli€s domiciled in other countnes as werras invesrmenrs a"l 
"ipi"irl**rio*. r" orderro manage the risk,aank has in place a comprehensive country ask managemsnl framowork. u"o"r tt'i" ii"r-".o*, t" transfer risk is measured usingrinanciar ma*er and economic faclorc. pdriiicar risk is r""*r"o ,"ing ; r"ri"ty.oii"ai"i" jijt"r" 

ot **rrv,s wilingness ro honourits forelgn oblisaiions Based on this framework, risk timirs 
"r" 

as"ig;; ro co;ririe.-tiit-r,iiir," aouro 
"pprou"d 

timils. The timils andlhetr u-l ization are monrtored and managod al head olfi* r"""t 
""0 

-"0, 

"t.v 
l"t lrpo"ri"" 

"r" 
,"pon"o to t," r"tevant comrnittees ata de-fned trequency

47.5 Llquldity Rlsk

Liquiditv is a linancial hsntuton s capaotv lo meet its oblEalions as they tal dle wilhoul incuning tosses. L]quidity risk is the risk toan insliluiion's eaminss cap(al & r.puiaion a sins rrcm iis rnabrriry (i oipeLi""ili"'ri", * -"r,r"tr"r obtisat6ns tn a limerymannerwithoutincuring unacceplabte tosseswhenth€ycomedue

with relerence lo sBP Easel lll Liquidily standards issued under BPRD circutar # og dat6d June 23, 2016, Bank Atfatah catcutates:t!lllc:,":s" R:r".ll9l ol1 moj,hry 
-basi:. 

qi!9! ". o"*,0"*i, zori 
",,oi,"tank,s rcR js 1.42 or 142% asainst sBpmhrmum requrement of 10090. wih Tolat Slock of HiSh euatity Liquid Assets (frOL,ql of prn 261,732.849 milion and Net CashOulflows ofPKR 198 337.5i4 milion

l4oreover, under {he same circutar lhe Banis are €xpected to catculate Ner Stabte Fundrns Ratio (NSFR) on qua(erty basis. Basedon December 31,2ol8 numb6rs Bank Arfarah's Ns;R i" rlv" "g.i*r'ii; ;.i,nu,i"iiqi,."."n, ol ooz, wth rorar Avairab.srabre Fundins or pKR 63o,5s2,see milion and roiar R"q,^o si"r,i.ii,"o-"-g oi pii"iir,]l.r^ rnr,"".
The aahk manages and contrcls llquiditv isk lhrcugh a deraired risk management frcmework, whcn incrudes Boo apprcved poricymanagemen|ever procedurar documenl and-Assei & LEbiritv commrreeiALaol i","i gr,i"r"". under rhis framework, va ousLquidity metrics are rmptemented and mon,lored on a regutar basis.

Al BAFL. BoD apprcves ue Lquid v Risk porrcv. Fudt€r. { a,so approves ihe 8alk,s overal r,qud y risk appene and broao r.qu,d,iyris\ srraresy ihroLsh Annuar Business pran. n" e"*," nrco iipiii,;;;";;;J;';;',"",mpremenrai,on or BoD.s sr,aresyrhroug. oversishr or ihe asser riabrriiv runcr,on ,ncrud,ns riqudiry ma;aseme;r i;:;;il;;i 
"","" 

-"""ses the Bank.s ,qu d,rv ondav io dav basis and rs ihe Bank's fiBr rine or defe-nse 
"g 

jr""i r,qi,or, .,"*-t"il 'n]"i 
urn"n"r"" oivision L,quidiry RiskIr"lanasemenl unit E responsible for independenr monir-"g 

"i,r," """i"iii,i,o1y 'i"k;'r,n;i$ resurarory requir€menrs and bank,sown risk app€tite.

The Eank's overall funding strateEv is based on lne princptes of drversrticalion and stabilty. The Bank has a diverse tunding base,which includes slable tundins in the lom of equrry, s;b.rai*t"o ro"*, i"i"ii 
""j 

.."]iiri1r".. o"po"i,". rvoreover, ror llon-stabrefunding in form or Large votume oeposrtors. itre gant t'"" I" prr* i"iJ-"rry 
"pp.ril 

l-ii"'io n,,onito, 
"na 

."n"ge risk emanaringrrom volalile lundins concenlration. Moreover, the Banr is tutty comprianr witri e!!"iiiiiln ,"0 rsrn, *r.,i"r, ensure sufficient stockof High Ouatity LiquidilyAssets in retation to its liabitity profite.

At EAF|' stress Testjng is used in an allempt lo hghlgh! lhs vlh.rabrriry or tt,e aank s Barance sieet lo hyporheticar stress evenrsand scerarios. Urer the same .,quid v dsk fac;rs arc giv€" ,",". !r""i;. 
"r,o"irirl 

.*trng iflpad on rhe bata^ce sheer scarcuraied BAFL canies our rhe srress iesrng based 
"" s-ep st 

"1" 
r""i" 

""j'ii"ri-", o1i*o 
"**,i"" ro gauge rhe poienriarimpscrs of ditrerenr riquiditv srress scena.ios on rhe Bank,s stock or riqra 

""""i". 
ri-" r".rrs are shared wilh rhe seniormanagement BoD and the regutator.

AI-BAFL' contngencv Fundhg Plan, B implemented lo address tiquidity issues in rmes of stress / c ses situarions. The Grobar
l:fi:i,3.tii"'""r'i:'";rTn;i""Ht#P":- -l'ar oasis ror ideii,rv,ns 

"'e 
sr.""" 

"-""n",io-" "no,r," 
rLndins pran ror sLch

aLco arn ua,.y- I hese p ans are €vewed bv lh6 Risk Management D"i.i"" -o "r" "ipi.*"j oy i..
Irain driverc of LCR resu[s are HOLA and N€i.Cash Ouiflow. HOLA is defined by lhe tiquidry qualily of the Bank,s ass€ls and nel
::",1B,"T:I;,1:,:y.*,"rm,neo 

rhrousr vorari,iry or rh" e_r. ,,"r,,;,y pi.r,i" iij,,,0",",1,"[t 
"no*""."",n" 

composir,on or H.LA

HOLA' Market Value Weighted Amounl
---{Rup.e! ln 000)-.

279,406,840 279,4Cf.,A40

4 652.019 2.326 00s
284.058 281 172 8a9

Level 28 Assets

j"tY' These have been defined in detailin SBp Ckcutar No 08, daled June 23, 2Ot5
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50 GENERAL

Comparalive information has bee
wherever necessary lo facililate co

ellrxlr.rlt.a imif=b

ed or additionaly incorporated in these tjnancial sfatem
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47.7 Oerivattve Risk

48

49

The Bank cuftenty dears in derivative insrruhents namery fo*ard exchange conlracts, rnterest rate swaps and furures wththe principte view to hedge risks associated wilh int"r""t i"t"" 
""0 

r."ii" i,ri#;#:;*- -
lnteresl ral6 swaps and fulures are condu.ied,to hedg6 ioterest rate isk present in the Bank,s foreign currency bondporrforro' wirh respect ro forward exchanqe conrracts, rhe bank offers *.r, pr"a-r"t. l"'p.l*, 

"ustomers 
from adversemovemenrs in rorersn currencies. on e hFrr €rfort 0"",".,r," *"0""w" p*il;;;" #;i*r""^atched in rhe Inter-

PilL[1-El;ii""l,liill]: ;';]"ffi"TiiEB"j;;;il ,"J'i;i;;'";l"lil#1""'J'ix''"'* 
'1hat 

inc'|udes Forei;n

[,larket Risk Department under the Risk Manr
oona portroro aga,nsrlnieies-t-Li""J'il ffii:,?H,::"T';:;:i"';:H 1i."t:"""X,i.":;:T:: :i.:,fi fl,,'ifi:r:":T:",;:l
;:ar:eJ'|eoJed:J.s 

and stralesles ar6 devise;/revisled in *o,ar*ir"" 
",t, n"""r'.v',i"""i'n'.iii"'"ii"","" *nh esrabrished risk

NON.ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING OATE

The Board of Directors in rts meetrno hetd dn February 21,2019 has announced cash dividend ot jlpercent (2O.710%)' rh'|s appropriarion wr, be ap,rov.d rn rhe forrh"oi,i"g Annr"r iin;,;iM"#9.?i";1"1,.' U","menrs for rhe yearended oecenber 3t, 2018 do not inctude rhe effect 
"r 

ir,,l" 
"pp.p.l"il"^ 

'*ii"i'r.,,i,, 
i","1,""*,"0 tor in rhe,inanciatslatoments for the year endjng December 31, 2019.

OATE OF AUTHORISATION

These unconsotidaled financtal statem6nls weftuank. r authorised ,or issue on February 21 , 20 1 9 by the Aoard of Dtectors of the

y'/r,utut,, fi,

n ie-classified, re-afiang
lnparcon. 

t21 14-

u .Jh) '
+l.tr

residenUChief Executive hiet Financiat Ofticer ;;;6; Direclor Director

tl
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ISLAIUIC BANKINGBUSINESS

The b.nk ls oporaiing l52 tstamic b6nk ng bEnches (2017: 152 bGnches) and 121 tstamic banking windows (2017
121) at rhe end ofthe year.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ANNEXURE. N

NETASSETS

2018 2017

ll

!
n
LI

ti
tJ

B

l
I
I
B

n
U

I

ASSETS
Cash and baranc€s with trcasury baiks
Balances with other baiks
Ouo from tinanciat instirutions

lslamiclinancnO and rstated assets - net

LIAgILITIES
Bills payable
Due to financial inslituiions
Ooposits and olhsr accounts

Other liabllities

,1

2
3

47,094,131 139 1,550

3,854,125
6 019,338

113,525,994

112,207
11,262.890

3,944,286
3,793,E02

113 414,363

173 209
7 678.42a

'13"4 774 554 
'29 

004.0E8

1,800,000 1,E00,000

I 932.828 1,077,'137
749 7.340 325

19 577 17 462

CONTINGENCIES ANO COMIUITMENTS 7

The prclit and ross accounr of ihe aank's rsramic banking b€nches for rhs year ended 3.r oecsmber 2oiE is as rolows
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

REPRESENTED BY

SuQlug (Osfcit) on Evatuarioh otassets
Unapprcpiated/ Unrcmitted prctit

Prclit/ Elurn expens6d

_-___1?E!EZZ_ -___-19AJ-@-

2018 2017

8532,5238
9 2 999,501

7,415,773
3,238,288
4,577,4455,633 022

Fee and Commission tncomo

Forcign Exchange lncoms
lncona / (loss) rom derivarivos
Gain / (loss) on s6cu.ities

Wor*srs Welfare Fund
Othercha€€s

539 028

243.229

207 477
37 974

6,709,076 5,605,193

L]

t_

L

L

1,325
43,659

91

4,355,270
22,387

1.109
4,405,075 4 378.756

2.3A4,A01
292.541

1.226,427
77 673

2,011,464
765 036

1,14A,754
435,365

11 718,901
777,602

17,986,558
23,200,001
85,E35 616

2,788 299
3.273

10,165,273
372,714

30,891,460
37,914,191
55,605166
2,470 542

4,537

'197 667

765

852,169

203.265

(26,;a5)

Prclil / (loss) befor€ provisions
Provisions and wrile ors - net
Protit / (loss) betor6 taxalon

Prcfil / iloss) aller taxation
1 246 424
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c!mncy
o!. rom Fr...chr ln.fl ruuo..

Bai Mu.jl.r R.eiv.abr. rrcm olh.r Fi.rid€t m[turio^3
Bai Muajl.r R@iv.ht. ftm st.r. B.nk or p.kttra.

---_*-*__t R u p... tn .000,_-___--..

*_______(RuP..! tn,0o0l

2 rnv.th.nt by..ch.nt!

____39.!q3!q

F.n.nl Cov.mm.nr 3cunu..:

-olh@ F.dffil Gov.mn.d s.drri..

PBvr.cr.r cov.mn.nr S*urhl..

Non cormm.nr LLbr S..u.It..

-Non Gov.mmMl o.bl $driti.t

2,

rori tnv..rm..r.

3 |rr.mrc rrn...tno lnd r.t.r.d ....b *-]Fup... h 'ooo)----

Adv.n6r .0. 
^n 

EEmtc 4..tt
G6r. iJer flmnciE .nd 6t.r.d a$.k
Los pdr m 4./^3r srdrlc rn.noio!

lsramic riancing d.d rctErod .sc.t -n.rorp@,i.n

3.1

21,755 (336,165)

-----_-1-!!t

(203 92,r) 099,013)
F,34,0.s) (2 094,361)

Furur. tjeh oavmm! r€@rvabr.

027,439) (2O3,924)

4 205



a-

3,2.1 Mu6baha r@tvabte - srcs3
Lolr O.laiied m!6b.ha noom€

PrcftrecevEbt€ lhM in oiher alrotc
M!Eb.ha tn€ncnO3

3.2,2 lh. mov€m.il in MuGbah. fnEncino dudnolh.y6 , a3 rono@:
Op6n no bar.nc.
S 1.! during th. y6ar

Adju.r.d duins rh6 Er

3.2.3 MuEbahE s.t. plc.
MuabEh. purcha36 pric6

3.2.4 oetered m u Ebahs incom.

Ansino dun.g $a y€ar

Lo$: Re@gntled du no th6 v.sr

3 467 €90 ? 7Aa,402

4191,772 3032,a72

-___j1M9!!_ 1 2e6.532

106.516

15r,993s6a)

5101

2013

C!@ncy CurEncy.+_{Rup... r.

107,343,427 8,357,t13 107sa5,732 50s5,167

Additio.s during th. p6nod

R6c.iv€! irom cu!lo64s on ac@unt of d6tEyed o.vment
Olhe. Non-Sh.iah @molia n@m.
Prclrl or chanv s.v n! ae@ni

Payo.nE / !u znon duing Ih. p.nod

440141

330,521

4.1 CofipBtdon ol d.po!at.

- Gov.mm.nl / pubtic secior Entitio.
- Ba.knC Comprnios
- Non-AEnklnc Fin..ciat tntrirltion.

42140.432 As,012,900

3.01,1,177 3,,161 512

131 123

364,664 A13,267

27 400 5SO

2014 2011
-----(RuP... In '000)-

5

T hls ncrud6. d€po! iE euoibt€ ro b. cov€6d und€. insu Ene ar..g6m€nt! smou.ti.g ro tu. 9 s,2 06.,176 mil ion (20I 7 : N i0

3,534

(,12,133)

(15,3r6)

15,2A1

15,551

F5,333, 1132 503r

21.14A 54 zsX
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5.1 Donatiaog pad du ngrEyear6Ea.ronowrl

7 CONTINGENCIESANOCOMiII]!'EIiTS

l.l.mlc B.nkht Bu.h... U..ppbprtrr.d p.ot

Add: rtramic E.nkino prc6r b€io6lsx.lton for lh. p.riod

L€!r: R46to.r
L.ss: TEnriercd / R€m ted to H€.d orfce

12,000

1,000

5,000 15,OOO
5 000 5,OOO

2675

{ aoo
7,7aA

2,500

13,274

4,935

3 300 3.500
2 500

2 500

10.000

- 17000. 
4,500

' 2,275_ 
5,455, 1600

' 3,132_ 
616_ 

3 900
- 6,000
- 5,000_ 3000
- 7s00_ 

9.000

' 3,900_ 20,000

201a 2017..-lRupr.! tn 00o)._-_

22,131,218

Aril N@n.P*.n6 Found.toi (ANPF)

Assoc Atun or ih. physic.t y Ha.d c.pp.d Adqtr (Ap!A)
CancorC.rc HospitatA.d Feeoarch C.nr.r
Oar Uq Shir. FoundEilon

DR. AO Kh6n ltusl Hospral
F.(im. K dn€y Ca@ Hosprar

Gurab D6vi Ch.rt Hospiral
llm.il W€rr.6 Horp .l
K:BL
Pakilran chirdr.n,! H€an Foundal o.
P.ri€nr A d Found.toi J nn.h po3t c€du.t. M.d c.lc6ntr., KaEhi
Pari6.t Welta6 Soc 6ly A tied Holpit.t FE ..tabEd
R 3ino Sun Education & Wetr€E S@i€ty

Aijuhan A.[boodrE-Mar.an (LlhoG G.n.rat Hoepit.t)
Bi ouEb Foundation (8OF)

Cent For O.v6topfi.nl Ot S@ist S6toi€. (COSS)

Founra n Hosp(.t

Memon M€i6at tnsiitu(. Hospiut
Pakiltan Rans66 (Puij.b)

S.njan Nag..pub ic Eduelon Truet (SNpEt)
Special Chit&en Rehabitit5tion WgrarcOrcanizalron
Th. tndus H6prat
WetfaB S@loly For p6U6nl caB

-oiner @nrinq6nr ti.b iti€!

t Profn on D.!o.trt .nd orher Oue. &p.nr.d

O.posltand oherae.unr.
Du6 lo Fin.nciat ns|tuion!

PbfiUR.tum E.h.d ot Ftnrrchr, tnyoth.nt .nd ptrc.n.nt

P.ofit o€m€! on

lnv*tToil.

ti

ti

t,

L

932

4.s32 527

2,673 639 2,927,940

_ ?1991!L _-!2!!.?!!
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DrscLosuREs pls pooL MANAGEMENT- ISLAiIIC BAitKtNG GROUP (rBG)

a.ll,2 1. The poors, lhelr key reatues aid nsk and r*a.d ch.6d6tuuce.

The polil and oss sha'ing b€t*en $e R ab bul lr.al 1d6po.noo and Mldanb (aank. tBG)is bas6d upon th€ lndeayng pinc ptes ot Muda€ba, where aank a socoftribut€3 15 equ ry to !.rerat pool of lunds, and becom* th6 capita Dmvider

Cur€ntly IBG is manalno rol@ino poos

1 ) Gene.a I Poot tor LCY oepo sitors
2) FCY Pootror Foreion Cuftn.y (USD, cBp and €URO)deposilors
. j Frs Pool ror T€asury Pu.poses
4)|ERS P@llorts amic Expo.t Reflnane Scheme rac ites

3) lslamic oankinq Aishanistan ODe.ations po.l

Al ife MJdaEba oaee F6nureElv€ depos.ls si. I b€ @nrd.r& a3 a^ hvesrrnr t@r RaoDut MaEt in F6 pat a o.g Mo tBG B @n s.ar6 ot 6q,,ry wr.cn sa so @mmho ed ,n n6 @, rhe app,axor. o.!1e9. !-oe ee o" m*""".. r,,",r."nr", 
""i-.;;;;;;;;;;""..-, p.,1. i" b6 !..,N ahons ue

The |ERS p@t is maintain.d as perln.quLd€tine und.rsBp tERs sch6me.

ih6 a$e15, lia billlies equiii€g, in@m€ and 6xDens$ .re 369 e9 aled tor each o, the poot N o poot ,nvshent t9 r nlem mg red w Llr each oth6r. Ttr e risk a ss@ atEdsrh e.ch Doo'k rhre .qurry d srioute aho.o rh€ o@ l
2 Av€rueys&toE wh€e Mudaraba based doposib have be. depoy.d. ooc.fib.r o&.mb€.

2014 201f
{Rupo..rn.000}

Agricullure Foresry Huntingand Fshmg
Auromobir€ a.d raisponat on 6qu,Dment
a.h.ht
Uhem cal and Phamaceutcat3

El€ctro.ic a.d erectiet apptances

Fina.cial

Footwea. afd Lealhd qamenG

ireial&AIi€d ndGtles

P@6r (erer,lcrry). Ga. Warer, SaniLn
SeN'ces

T6nspori Sto€ge.nd Commlni@ion
whot€sare and Reta I T6de

Tot.l Gro3. kt.mtc Ftnrnchs..d Retat.d A.rot'rolal Gos3 tnvestmefts r

5335,332

729,632

327,045

'Mainty nvesled n Gop tjaEh suklks

3 The major components ot protit d stnbllon and ch argino oa th€ sp6n 3€!

l@tit 3 d B.n buied 
'mon9 
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ANNEXURE.III
SALE OF FIXEDASSEIS TO RELAIEO PARTIESPARTICULARS OFASSEIS SOLD TO RELATEO PARTIES

pa.t6utar. of arrots

Cotr ,uters Lapiop i7 LenovoComputec Lapiopcore i5Coinpulers HP E.vy tscore 7Conrpuers Lapiop
Computers Laptor rT Hp
computeB Laplop core i5Compulers Appt€ ipad
Cofiputers Appt€ ipad
Computers Laplop Corc i5Compulers Laplop Co(, 17rohpulers Appte iPad

9o.pr,"r" Appte,pad
Lomputers Laptop Core 17rohputers LaplopCompuiers Appte ipad
Computers Laptop Core 15
ComnL .Rc*.,re,s L"ii"i co," nLomputers Leprop i5romputers De[ Laptop
Erecironic equlpmenl Vanous items
Mob e Phones Appte phone
Mobrle Phones Appte iphone
Mobile Phones Appt. iphone
Mobite Phones Aprle iphone
Moblle Phones Mobile Set
lloble Phones Mobite set
Mob e Phones Samsuno i,iobrte
Mob'te Phones apote ptrone
Mobile Phones Btack Benv
[!obi]e Phones Bhck BerN
Mobire Phones Btack eer
Mobrre Phones appte ipho;e
Mobire Phones Appte rphone
Mot 'e Phones ADDte rphone
MoDrle Phones Appte iphone
Mobile Phones Samsuno Mobrte
Mobrte Phones Appte iphone
Mobite Phones Samsund M.hit.
Mob'le Phones stack Be;vCbss,.
Mobrte Phones samsuns iaobiteMobilePhones BhckBerrv
Mobie Phone3 Btack Ber;

'10,1 3,4

2,4A5

68,

dt.Dosat Partlcular ol Purchas€r

Fumltur. ll ftxrure3 Vanols turnilurc lems

As Per Policy Aty Mustansir
As Per Policy Mirza Zalar Baig.
As Per Poticy Mian EjazAhmad
As Per Poticy Faan. R€hman satahuddin
As PerPolicy Syed Ahmar Nizam

Per Policy Saad-UrRehman
Per Policy Sajan Hamid Marik
Per Policy Khufiam Hllsain
PerPolic] Bashf Sheikh

As Per Policl RiEzHussan Hamdani
r'! Per Polc1 F.isalFaronq Khan
As Per Policy RiazHussan Hamdini

Per Policy ttuhammad Shahab Khattak
Pq Policy Khuram Hlssain
PBrPolic] Ahmed Nauman Anees

As Por Polic) Muhamnad MunirTano
As PerPolrcy Mohammad R,&an Ut;rad
,€ Per Poricy Syed Nadeem Ahmed
As PerPolicy KaziShahid Tanvn

Per Porrcy At'f Bajwa (ex-CEO)
Per Pol'cy AJy Mustansir
Per Poriq Mian Ejaz Ahmad
PerPoticy BashirSheikh

As Per Policy Khurlam Hussain
As Per Policy Aashi. Sheikh
As Per Potic-y tmran Zata.

Per Policy Riaz Hussa n Hamdani
Per Policy Khuram Hussain

As Per Poticy Khuram Hlssain
As Per Policl SuhaitYaqoob Khan

Per Poliry Ahmed Nauman Anees
Per Policy Syed Nadeem Anmed
Per Policy Kazi Shahid Tanvir

tu PerPolicy Muhammad Shahab Khadak
As Per Policy Muhammad Ar, Karim

Per Policy Syed AhmarNiam
Por Policy Syed Fuqan Ati
Per Poticy Dr, Mushtaq

As Per Policy MohammadRizMn UtHsd
l€ Per Potcy Ahmed NaumanA.ee!
As Pq Policy lm.an Zafar

1,683 1 ,625 As Per Poticy Aiif Bajwa (ex4EO)

rre.ed$ Benz E-2OO

Mercedes-8en E.3OO
Mec€des Benz E-200

Toyola Corctla 1.8 Grande Artis
Toyota Corott. 1.8 G6nde Atris

Per Policy r,hawaja M$mad
Per Policy Aasim Wajid Jawsd
Per Poliq/ Mohtb Hassan Khan
PerPolicy t uhEhmad yahya Khan
Per Policy Hafsa Abba3y
Per Poticy Shahzad tshaq
PerPolcy TahnKhurshrd
P€r Policy Sha.if Khawa.
Per Poliq Mohammad Maqsood AtiUsmani
PerPolicy Ria2 Hussain Hamdanr
Per Policy Amsnutbn A. Satar

38,.r

185
170

112
103
103
100
100
99
90
89
7A
77
17
73
73
71
65

6,804
75
75
75
?5
75
75
75

63

51

50
50
50
50
50
50
50
45
40
31

29

30

7

3
75

51

90
I

42
20

20
5

2,861

6'l

18
60
43

102
12
10
10
10
10
10
80

9
8
I
8
7
7

23

419
I

65
15
8
8
E

38
7
6
5
5
5
5

45
23

9

3
3

3

13,773
13,760
13,097
11,789
2,806
2,666
2,604
2,511
2,446
2,382

084

9,311
4,727
1476
1,098
2,683
1 934
1,934
1,507
1,117
1,241

10,232
9,600
4,9i4
2,47A
2 806
2,128
2,126
1,657
1,226
1 336

88


